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TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL AND OPERATION HIGHLIGHTS

(BRHFBYEEBHS) - LA B BB T /3 )

(In HK$ million unless otherwise specified)

SHERE

el

FEH=E

s s F (K3 K 4)

R MR (K23 K%4)
EBITDA(/f:#3Kk4)
EBITDAR FIZE (M3 4)

N EIRE R PE (R SR (A aE3 K2 4)
SHERIIRE (A3 %4)

T EERERRE (A F3K4)
AR TR R PE (G e aw (B 3R (AT 232 4)

Sales

Gross profit

Gross margin

Operating profit (Note 3 and 4)

Operating margin (Note 3 and 4)

EBITDA (Note 3 and 4)

EBITDA margin (Note 3 and 4)

Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company (Note 3 and 4)

Return on sales (Note 3 and 4)

Return on average total assets (Note 3 and 4)

Return on average equity attributable to shareholders of
the Company (Note 3 and 4)

R MIRTTEFRIRTTER
LEES(HaE3Rk4)
BEMB(NE3L4)
BERE (A E3L4)
FEHKAREEH(RA)(HaE1)
BN E(E8) (AaE3K%4)

Cash and bank balances less bank loans
Working capital (Note 3 and 4)

Total assets (Note 3 and 4)

Total liabilities (Note 3 and 4)

Inventory turnover on costs (days) (Note 1)
Current ratio (times) (Note 3 and 4)

BERAEM — ERCEMW)
SRS CEML)
SR RIBLE CEAL)

Earnings per share — Basic (HK cents)
Dividend per share (HK cents)
Special dividend per share (HK cents)

PPy s Dividend payout ratio
M mERNOEE (FR) Number of shares outstanding (in thousands)
[ERERGEE Market capitalization
FRMAMER Stores as at year end
REEEEZHE Stores operated directly by the Group

MR L E 2 B it2)

Stores operated by franchisees (Note 2)

2IRFIT AR SN Total stores worldwide

Vo Notes:

1, FHAZEERSEHERATEUFERNBE 1. Inventory held at year end divided by cost of sales and multiplied by number of days in
the year

2. H—EEEa%Aa  MEABAERERDEMAAE 2. Stores in markets operated by a joint venture in South Korea, United Arab Emirates
(2011 ERARTEE) « BEE R REB (2015F L AR 4 and Saudi Arabia (prior to year 2011), Kuwait and Qatar (prior to year 2015), Vietnam
E) MEQOI7TFERAMFE) RE=ZEMBERMEEL (prior to year 2017), and third-party franchisees
REshn

3. 2013 FE RUMTEE 2 FW AR E S S5 EAIE 1958 3. The adoption impact of Hong Kong Accounting Standards 19 Employee benefits are

E BB mIEL R not reflected in the years in and prior to 2013

4, 2018E RURTEEZH T KA ME S BHREERE 4. The adoption impact of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards 16 Leases are not
1655 E ML AT reflected in the years in and prior to 2018
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THEHBREZBERE
TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL AND OPERATION HIGHLIGHTS

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
4,852 5,509 5,412 5,145 5,381 5,545 5,848 5,673 5,614 4,731
2,846 3,250 3,221 3,055 3,097 3,214 3,551 3,331 3,283 2,731
58.7% 59.0% 59.5% 59.4% 57.6% 58.0% 60.7% 58.7% 58.5% 57.7%
397 625 689 568 556 542 828 1,005 909 695
8.2% 11.3% 12.7% 11.0% 10.3% 9.8% 14.2% 17.7% 16.2% 14.7%
1,183 821 874 748 743 760 1,066 1,247 1,123 866
24.4% 14.9% 16.1% 14.5% 13.8% 13.7% 18.2% 22.0% 20.0% 18.3%
230 480 500 434 426 408 663 826 728 537
4.7% 8.7% 9.2% 8.4% 7.9% 7.4% 11.3% 14.6% 13.0% 11.4%
6.2% 12.8% 13.5% 12.2% 11.5% 11.0% 16.1% 21.1% 21.8% 18.5%
8.5% 16.8% 17.5% 15.2% 14.5% 13.8% 21.8% 28.8% 28.3% 23.7%
994 1,017 1,167 1,095 1,076 915 1,105 1,173 1,209 978
714 1,465 1,526 1,410 1,405 1,401 1,616 1,555 1,658 1,385
5,196 4,124 4,322 4,114 3,847 3,857 4,469 4,605 3,822 3,320
2,349 1,115 1,181 1,147 881 773 1,220 1,452 1,001 827
100 89 87 78 78 80 82 74 95 74
1.4 2.5 2.5 2.4 2.9 3.1 2.6 2.3 2.8 2.9
14.6 30.5 31.8 27.7 27.1 26.0 42.6 53.8 48.2 36.0
14.6 33.5 35.0 27.5 27.0 25.0 40.0 40.0 38.0 11.5
= - - - - - - - - 15.5
100.0%  109.8%  110.1% 99.3% 99.6% 96.2% 93.9% 74.3% 78.8% 75.0%
1,578,501 1,578,501 1,570,631 1,570,953 1,570,395 1,569,913 1,566,837 1,543,709 1,521,291 1,496,069
3,709 5,840 6,534 6,582 5,701 5,400 10,858 11,501 8,565 6,777
1,274 1,323 1,349 1,364 1,385 1,451 1,499 1,449 1,232 1,052
1,101 1,103 1,065 1,033 986 1,001 1,143 1,199 1,439 1,301
2,375 2,426 2,414 2,397 2,371 2,452 2,642 2,648 2,671 2,353
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Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Directors”) (collectively, the
“Board”), | present to you the annual results of Giordano International
Limited (the “Company”), together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”), for
the year ended December 31, 2019.

The slowdown in global economic growth, which commenced in 2018,
rapidly deteriorated in 2019. The Asia Pacific regional economies
suffered from the fallout in Sino-US trade relations. In the Greater China
region, a historically warm winter dampened demand for heavy jackets.
In the HKSAR, a significant consumer market in the area experienced
widespread social unrest during the second half of the year. These
combined forces wreaked havoc on the retail and hospitality industry in
these markets, manifesting in the weak results of the Company for the
year 2019. | should also mention that the first-time adoption of the Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards 16 in the 2019 financial reports
added HK$59 million non-cash accounting charges to the reported
results. | refer you to the Management Discussion and Analysis of Group
Results of Operations and Financial Position section in the 2019 Annual
Report for a full and detailed analysis of the reported 2019 results and
management’s outlook towards 2020.

At the time of writing, the COVID-19 pandemic continues its rapid
spread across the world, and it is hard to predict its impact on global
commerce. Most countries have implemented, or are due to announce,
‘lockdowns’, halting social and commercial activities. The aftermath
impact on consumer spending is unknown. The outcome of the Sino-
US trade conflict also remains unclear. While these threats are out of
our control, we can and will focus on those operational factors we can
control.

Giordano maintains a vigorous working capital management discipline.
In these testing times, we will unrelentingly tighten control of inventory,
account receivables and cash outflows. At this moment, your
Company’s financial condition is sound.

The early adoption of a geographical diversification program had helped
us weather regional downturns better than many of our competitors. The
Middle East, where we had previously increased our stake, performed
well in 2019. We have successfully launched the Giordano brands in
several new and developing economies, where traditionally we tend to
thrive. In our existing and new markets alike, we will continue to satisfy
local needs at global standards, and with flexible strategies.

Consumers everywhere have embraced the convenience of online
shopping, but their choices of platforms vary geographically and change
over time. It requires careful assessment to formulate a versatile and
sustainable online plan for each market. Though our overall online sales
are still small, except for mainland China, there is evidence that the
overseas online sales momentum is accelerating.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F #
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TEHRESE
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

People are the greatest asset of our Company. We have consciously
and decisively recruited and developed ‘new blood’, whom we boldly
empower with authority and delegate with accountability.

With the COVID-19 crisis, the health of our staff and customers is our
priority. We have adopted various sanitation and social-distancing
measures, as well as flexible work arrangements. We also take this time
to leapfrog company-wide technology adoption. We feel strongly about,
and are committed to embracing, revolutionary workplace changes.

Our brands are known for ‘value for money’ goods and services.
Even though we had a challenging year, we completed several quality
enhancement programs aimed at improving the looks and comfort of our
products.

The crisis provides an opportunity to look hard at our business
processes. With the support of all staff members, the Company has
revamped many of its business processes to make them more efficient,
more productive, and, most importantly, more in-tune with the times.

All businesses experience setbacks from time-to-time. A learning
organization acquires new knowledge from these setbacks, makes the
necessary adaptations, and perseveres to overcome these setbacks. A
learning organization comes out of these setbacks more robust and apt
to deal with future challenges, however unpredictable they might be.
Giordano strives to be such a company.

To our staff, | acknowledge the difficulties you are enduring and the
sacrifices you are making. Many of you have volunteered the reduction of
pay to help the Company through the predicaments. To our vendors and
landlords, | am grateful for your cooperation riding out the crisis together.
| am indebted to your understanding of our short-notice cancellation
of purchase orders, and your help with our rental payments. To our
shareholders, | am appreciative of your trust in the management. | wish
you all the best of health and good fortune.

LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter
Chairman and Chief Executive

Hong Kong, March 10, 2020

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
GROUP RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL
POSITION

The following commentaries refer to the year-on-year (“YOY”)
comparison of the Group for the years ended December 31, 2019, and
2018 unless otherwise indicated.

OVERVIEW

u The Group is an international apparel retailer with a portfolio
of brands, including Giordano and Giordano Junior, Giordano
Ladies, BSX, as well as other owned and licensed brands.

u We offer high-quality, value-for-money and easy-to-wear apparel
through a network of 2,375 stores (or 2,280,000 sq. ft. of retail
floor space) as of December 31, 2019, of which 1,274 were
standalone stores. The majority of the stores were in Greater
China, South Korea, Southeast Asia and the Middle East. We
manage our stores by geographic regions and by distribution
channels, as shown in Table 1.

u Group sales' for the year were HK$4,852 million at a gross margin
of 58.7%. The Group’s comparable store sales (“Group CSS”)?
and comparable store gross profit (“Group CSGP”)? were down
by 10.1% and 11.1%, respectively. Table 2 provides details of
significant markets.

u Profit after income taxes attributable to shareholders of the
Company ("PATS”) was HK$230 million, a decrease of 52.1%
from 2018. If applying the previous accounting standard for
leases, the Group would have reported 2019 PATS of HK$289
million, or 39.8% lower than 2018. Table 3 below shows the
impact of adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS") 16 for the year ended December 31, 2019, as
compared to Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”) 17.

u Cash and bank balances, net of bank loan, were HK$994 million
on December 31, 2019.

1. Group sales refer to consolidated sales and include retail sales from directly-
operated stores ("DOS") and wholesale sales to all overseas/non-consolidated
franchisees.

2. Group CSS/CSGP are total Giordano brand sales/gross profit of consolidated

subsidiaries, at constant exchange rates, from existing DOS and franchised stores
that have been fully operating in the same prior period.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F #
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

1 . MmaEs Table 1: Store portfolio
EEZEH
(FEER)
FmEE M12A31H
M128318 Retail floor space
Store numbers (sq. ft. in thousands)
at December 31 at December 31
2019 2018 2019 2018
ZERDH Retail and Distribution

SN 173 Mainland China
neaJE Franchised stores 641 639 475 493
BHE DOS 261 2908 218 250
TR E At 3= The rest of Asia Pacific 597 606 633 634
= Taiwan 197 200 195 198

FER The Middle East
hneaE Franchised stores 35 39 33 38
BEE DOS 146 143 179 176
B RORP Hong Kong and Macau 73 76 88 87
EININEE RS Overseas franchisees 425 425 459 454
mE Total 2,375 2,426 2,280 2,330

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019 & # 75 W BE B ER A F
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REXE

R2:AEEEEXRE

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Table 2: Group results of operations

RRES EfsZ
As published For reference only
2019 2018 2019
REES RERS REEE
BRRE SHER S ER
EHI%164 F175 F17%
2§ 24 259
Reported  {h$&HE  Reported  (HIHES Reported
under Bl under BN 28 under 28
(UBEETAEN) (In HK$ million) HKFRS16° %tosales HKAS17° %tosales ~ Change  HKAS17°  Change
TREMIHE The rest of Asia Pacific 1,584 32.7% 1,623 29.5% (2.4%) 1,584 (2.4%)
R Mainland China 995 20.5% 1,293 23.5% (23.0%) 995 (23.0%)
B RAs Hong Kong and Macau 72 15.9% 959 17.4% (19.5%) 772 (19.5%)
R The Middle East 662 13.6% 636 11.5% 41% 662 4.1%
L Taiwan 587 12.1% 671 12.2% (12.5%) 587 (12.5%)
e AR Wholesale sales to
HREESE overseas franchisees 252 5.2% 327 5.9% (22.9%) 252 (22.9%)
TEEHEER Group sales 4,852 100.0% 5,509 100.0% (11.9%) 4,852 (11.9%)
= Gross profit 2,846 58.7% 3,250 59.0% (12.4%) 2,846 (12.4%)
TeBR Operating expense (2,532  (52.2%) (2,711) (49.2%) (6.6%) (2,521) (7.0%)
eyl Operating profit 397 8.2% 625 11.3% (36.5%) 408 (34.7%)
BEER Finance expense (55) (1.1%) () (0.1%)  1,000.0% (6) 20.0%
EBITDA EBITDA 1,183 24.4% 821 14.9% 44.1% 594 (27.6%)
TR PATS 230 4.7% 480 8.7% (52.1%) 289 (39.8%)
ESnl i Global brand sales* 6,166 6,778 (9.0%)
2HREER Global brand gross profit* 3,745 4,168 (10.1%)
AEETHEMTHEBERE Group CSS growth (10.1%) 0.1%)
FEBTHEMHEFERE Group CSGP growth (11.1%) (1.4%)
FREGLBNEFFE Net cash and bank balances
at year end 994 1,017 (2.3%)
FREE Inventories at year end 548 552 (0.7%)
FEHARARERY Inventory tunover on costs
(IFERERg)(R) (*TOC") (days)® 100 89 11

FR2019F 1 A 1AM BB B EERIFE16951% - KEEH
B E2019F 1231 HIF FBZ #ERGEVET RETIIZE
BUFIHREEAF165 BEE([IRIEBBUFHIHREEAE
1655237 ) - MEE2018% 12 531 HIIEEFEr%ETF %
BB E B D ER B 17 AR E([IRIES B EAE
1795238 1) + WATZ 5 o AT 18] 2 FR B2 7T HE B
BETE - AEEEE  HEESHERFI7TRBEES
2 WHETERAEBRIZE B HHREERE 1652
2H - FIE AL FREETTRIMALE - B - AEEE B
2019F FE 2 HE G EIEIEHURIR BB G5 2ERIE17
BERMmRZ EFHRIL S — 25 F X (EHREE) -
PH B E R EFIIEL019FEXRIGE + R
IREEE - NMBEREEAAZPINE EEHER"EF
ABEE - SRR EE R EF -
FEREASIETFRITHE TR U ER A TAZFEH
ﬁa

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF

Following the adoption of HKFRS 16 on January 1, 2019, the Group’s statutory
results for the year ended December 31, 2019 are on a HKFRS 16 basis (“Reported
under HKFRS 16”), whereas the statutory results for the corresponding year ended
December 31, 2018 are on a HKAS 17 basis (“Reported under HKAS 177) as
previously reported. Hence, any comparison between the two bases of reporting
would not be meaningful. The Group believes that the HKAS 17 based report, which
is not intended to be a substitute for, or superior to, Reported under HKFRS 16,
allows a like-with-like comparison with the prior year results. As a result, the Group
has provided, for reference only, an alternative presentation of the Group’s financial
performance prepared as if Reported under HKAS 17 relating to the accounting for
leases for the year 2019.

Global brand sales/gross profit are at 2019 exchange rates, and are greater than
Group sales/gross profit to include the total of Giordano retail sales/gross profit, in
DOS, franchised stores and stores operated by a joint venture.

ITOC refers to inventories held at year end divided by cost of sales and multiplied by
number of days in the year.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F #
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

R KRBT RMBREERE16R 2 E

Table 3: Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16

(X B EETREN) (In HK$ million)

THREFIREEHESR Operating lease rentals in respect of land and building 598
FEXH-—FAEEE Depreciation expenses - right-of-use assets (589)
EREEERE Impairment of right-of-use assets (26)
FHE L 0 I8 1 FRE Amortization of leasehold land prepayments 5
Hit Others 3
HoHBERNTE IMPACT ON DISTRIBUTION EXPENSE (9)
THREFIREEHEER Operating lease rentals in respect of land and building 14
TEXH-—FRAEEE Depreciation expenses - right-of-use assets (16)
HBHITHEANE IMPACT ON ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE (2)
BmAE M FINANCE EXPENSE (49)
F 8B INCOME TAXES ©)
TR Il MR NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 7
% 3R P 11 8 PATS (59)

HEHEKER Sales and gross profit

REBEHETERA11.9% - FIRETEEZBE AR
P111% - FEEZALG  EUEHEEHUARE
FRLAEZBREBAZRZETTERRMEEER
Do HRERMAETFBERENEESNIHEELRRE

et

%o

TEBEFHBEENBAB267EBIT - B
15.0% ° TREFZRAZBRMEFRKNEES 7 HE
MRIBIABAES  NERUYMNE=ZHFEEPEL
FETHRREFME - EMENEFEFAER
B o plan - BEERMABE-—LAME=—F TS
(IMHKTVEEYI R L) R AIE - A ES KR
R -EEERCEBELCERAS U REFEY
BREFEEE E—THERMEMEGHENET
GEESE

ERIEIHERRG0.6% KR - BN 2 H 3
ERREER24.2% MY REAZAREEMRRRESS
BPIRBE TEEBRRME - R - NEE R4
BEMEZER  WERRBFPEZRRS HSNALE
KBER - REETHF  HPUFFEEERN
EEERMART WK™ - B EIEFTE2020%
BERNEMBEEEMRKRME
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Group sales decreased by 11.9%, or by 11.1% if translated at constant
exchange rates. Multiple macro factors, such as the Sino-US trade
dispute, regional social events and unseasonably warm winter affected
the retail environment and consumer sentiment. The impact was
particularly significant to our sales in Mainland China and Hong Kong.

The Group's e-commerce generated HK$267 million in sales revenue,
representing a decrease of 15.0%. The decline was primarily due to the
unsatisfactory performance of our Mainland China e-business, which
endured ferocious competition on established third-party platforms
in China. E-commerce in other regions recorded strong growth. For
instance, Hong Kong enjoyed substantial growth as we kick-started
our cooperation with some local third-party platforms such as HKTV
Mall. Management is determined to further develop our e-commerce
business in all regions by improving the product mix and collaboration
with emerging online platforms.

Sales from physical stores fell by 9.6%. Wholesales to franchisees
declined by 24.2%, partly due to the tightening of our credit policy in light
of weakening economic conditions. That said, the Group will continue
to deploy more resources to expand our wholesale and franchise
businesses in developing markets. In the second half of the year, we
opened four stores in Mauritius on a franchise basis. Management
expects store openings in India and Kenya in 2020.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
=AW EBAERAF
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BUERRERE2HMIEHEERN7.3% - A
EmRNESHNZBRLERET  $EET TREE
MHE T - BERMNPRMEEXBZFRE
HERE  EMETAZERERSEPIRFER
MEEMS o

Core Giordano lines contributed to 87.3% of global brand sales. All
lines experienced different levels of sales decrease amidst turbulent
macroeconomic conditions, although our Middle East and Indonesia
businesses recorded YOY sales growth, making them our critical
markets for business expansion in the immediate future.

R4 BREBEEDPZHEHER Table 4: Sales by channels

it L) 28

(U BEETREN) (In HKS million) 2019  Contribution 2018 Contribution Change
BRE Physical stores 4,013 82.7% 4,440 80.6% (9.6%)
Rl E-business 267 5.5% 314 5.7% (15.0%)
TEHEDR Retail sales 4,280 88.2% 4,754 86.3% (10.0%)
HNBE HBHER Wholesale sales to franchisees 572 11.8% 755 13.7% (24.2%)
rEEHER Group sales 4,852 100.0% 5,509 100.0% (11.9%)

8 B AT 5 RN B S F R EE - AEE
ERERGIENEERBEELRZIRE BB
BB FBEROTREE - RFEELERNETK -
SRR BEOFEKE - AEEFUSRHEEER
BRERERE  EMEMERIAF/NETE - KK
BEMTEE12.4%  DEBBERHE NERFHE
B/METFERTER o P9 A f A A 0T B 70 2 am A
/\“@JFF@&

HWAREMs - FHE

Hg A R E RSB IEEFERA - RERA -
FEWA e koA KERZ5 - R2019F
B AB00E B ITLES, 3008 B T » MIMIEEEMIRE
HAMBEEEBZFHRERER EEEEER

EREMEERER  wEEZREMBEER S E
R IERTS -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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With carefully calibrated pricing tactics and disciplined merchandising,
the Group managed to defend the adverse effect on profit margin,
suffering only a marginal drop YOY in the face of intense price
competition and discounting in various markets. On the back of
healthy inventory levels, the Group was able to minimize the number of
promotional offers, resulting in a minor decrease in gross margin. Group
gross profit slid by 12.4%, driven mainly by a decline in volume and a
small reduction in the average selling price. The average product cost
increased because of the change in product mix.

Other income and other gains, net

Other income and other gains, which comprise royalty income, licensing
revenue, interest income, rental and sub-lease rental income, and
exchange difference, decreased by HK$3 million to HK$83 million in
2019. Our licensing business in the timepiece and eyewear categories
recorded a small YOY growth. Management continues expanding our
licensing business, both in terms of product categories, geographical
reach and overall performance.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F #
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RKEBERARKLE BN

KRB ALMIEERE R SES22% (20184 -
492%)  ETZHRBE TBRUARKEERBER
DETER - RIRMBE B SRS ZERE 165781 - PIm
HeERETITHRAKRFDBITHEGS5%K6.1% @ 1Lt T)
R B AP BRAS B AR AN Il FE HE AT ER -

KEBEERTI70EB TLHENEREEEMY
¥ BMEDEBREZIERACEEBR RELE
ER4ER1.79B BT 0 56.6% © )T R IALERT =
FEEBRARNKE - WHBATRUABHEENT
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BT e

RE6 RMWER D 2 HERERKEE BN ER

Operating expense and operating profit

The operating expense to sales ratio was up to 52.2% (2018: 49.2%),
primarily due to a decrease in sales coupled with a significant reduction
in operating expenses. Before the adoption of HKFRS 16, both shop
occupancy charges and staff cost decreased by 6.5% and 6.1% YQY,
respectively, attributable to our stringent cost control measures.

The Group also recognized the non-cash operating expense of
impairment of right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment of
HK$37 million. Although operating expenses shrunk by HK$179 million,
or 6.6%, it was not enough to maintain the same operating expense ratio
as last year. The reduction was also insufficient to outweigh the negative
impact of the decline in gross profit, resulting in a decrease in operating
profit of 36.5% to HK$397 million.

Table 5: Sales and operating profit contribution by region

R EE D 2 ik
Contribution by region
R R
$4E%  Operating
BZE2019F12A31BLEE For the year ended December 31, 2019 Sales profit
2K H At & The rest of Asia Pacific 32.7% 52.6%
AR B K e Mainland China 20.5% (8.2%)
BB RRMA Hong Kong and Macau 15.9% 1.2%
==2) The Middle East 13.6% 31.0%
= Taiwan 12.1% 11.1%
NN 2 MBI ERE Wholesale sales to overseas franchisees 5.2% 8.8%
HIEHNIB AR 2 LB E R Wholesale sales to overseas subsidiaries - 13.5%

BEHER - HREMKRA RS Headquarter expense, net of other

income and gains - (10.0%)
100.0% 100.0%

mEE A

& B 45,5008 87T (20184 1500878 7m) » &
PEERTAELHMHEEGERNS - HEAEZ
FEHBA00BF L NHREMBEEWEHESE
BIZE165% - MEAEE(ARZHEHR 2EBAN)
ERERATNBEEEEZHENEFASATE - 4l
KREBVBREENFI6HIFE  ZEMAIES
B00E BT ©
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Finance expense

Finance expense was HK$55 million (2018: HK$5 million), which
comprised of bank interest expense and interest on lease liabilities.
Please note that the interest on lease liabilities of HK$49 million was
due to the adoption of HKFRS 16, under which the Group (as lessee in
numerous tenancy agreements) recognizes the imputed interest expense
accrued on the outstanding balance of the lease liabilities. If excluding
the impact of HKFRS 16, the expense would have been HK$6 million.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
=AW EBAERAF
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EBITDA

EBITDAA11.83{8 70 (20184 : 821 B T) »
WRA441%  TEANREMNE BT HHRE LR E16
R RIEB BT B MEERE165 - FREESEN
EXHEEENHENEBEBRNRE TEAREHF
BERPCLEHNELEHEER - WMGREBY KRS
ERFE165R 2 FE - EBITDARITF#27.6% °

FRri&®t

FriSf A1.16148%8 T (20184 -
PR A28.6% (20184F : 20.8% ) ° fisl il B £ 4%
EBVBRELEAFICH2FE  BERREAA
23.7% ° UL MNF BHRRAEBE S AL E R
BBREAFRME -

1.421B8%8L) " B

KRB RREALERTEHR & EF

% B AR A T RK52.1% -
TrRAOEEDEEAT% MM E BT HBREE
BIZE16S e E - FABEXRATR27EED S -
EXFESIERRE -

WRGFTR ° JF AR

EBITDA

EBITDA was HK$1,183 million (2018: HK$821 million), an improvement
of 44.1%, due to the adoption of HKFRS 16. Under HKFRS 16,
depreciation on the right-of-use assets and imputed interest expense on
lease liabilities replace the operating lease expense previously recorded
in the consolidated income statement. If not for the impact of HKFRS 16,
the EBITDA would have decreased by 27.6 %.

Income taxes

Income taxes amounted to HK$116 million (2018: HK$142 million),
representing an effective tax rate of 28.6% (2018: 20.8%). If excluding
the impact on the adoption of HKFRS 16, the effective tax rate would
be 23.7%. The increase is mainly due to a change in the distribution of
profits and losses suffered by the Group’s entities operating in various
locations.

Profit after income taxes attributable to shareholders
of the Company

PATS decreased by 52.1%, as shown in Table 6. Net margin was 4.7%,
a decrease of 4.0 percentage points, but would have been down by 2.7
percentage points if excluding the impact of HKFRS 16. The preceding
commentaries cite the reasons.

x6: RREMLEANES DN Table 6: Analysis of change in PATS

(X B &EETBEN) (In HK$ million)

B # 520185 RRAEL =R Reported 2018 PATS 480
PR The Middle East 37
myes South Korea 3
TR E A [ The rest of Asia Pacific (27)
$EINNEER, B AR 2B IHERE Wholesale sales to overseas franchisees/subsidiaries (30)
Gk Greater China (247)
Frisii ~ FEfEdliEfEss Income taxes, non-controlling interests,

REERANBIHER finance expense and headquarter expense 15
2019 R ERBREZH R RELER 2019 PATS without currency translation difference 231
BEHmEER Currency translation difference (1)
2 52019F RREL R R Reported 2019 PATS 230

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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ANALYSIS BY MARKET

The following comments are in local currencies or, if in HKS$, are at
constant exchange rates to remove distortions from the translation of
financial statements. These figures have not removed the impact on
imported product costs contracted at non-local currencies.

Greater China

Table 7: Greater China region

BHE Eft22
As published For reference only
2019 2018 2019
REFR RERE REAE
BBRE EhE 23t ER
ERIE16% 7% 175
24§ | 25
Reported {hHER Reported hHER Reported
(WBE#TBEN (In HK$ millon, translated under Bot under EL)d 28 under E
REFEELE) at constant exchange rates) HKFRS16 % to sales HKAS17 % tosales Change HKAS 17 Change
BHER Total sales 2,410 100.0% 2,923 100.0% (17.6%) 2,410 (17.6%)
£ Gross prof 1,403 58.2% 1,753 60.0% (20.0%) 1,403 (20.0%)
mLER Operating expense (1,406) (58.3%) (1,514) (51.8%) (1.1%) (1,381) (8.8%)
me gt Operating proft 16 0.7% 263 9.0% (93.9%) 40 (84.8%)
HEER Finance expense (17) (0.7%) - - TERENA - TERENA
WS RR Profit before income tax - 0.0% 263 9.0% (100.0%) 40 (84.8%)
ARATEERERE 0SS growth (14.6%) 0.8%
HBFTENERE CSGP growth (16.4%) 0.1%
ERFDEE Stores at year end 1,172 1,213 (41)

ZEGEEEFETHRMORPEELE - LHAR
BAEMES BEFEXESUHRE T L EE
5 1@&%%%@?&@@%7@iﬁﬁ'ﬂ}?%ﬁﬁﬁ% o
M2019F T HFHENH M BANTE
At 2B TR ° ‘:F'.%FtL\ﬂ}\}EﬁH‘i‘lﬂEﬁﬁmi
E¥BHEATAASE  RREKRE  BFEHEM
R EBEERRMERTPENMEE EEBE
B AEBBEEARMORLELEEIRELE
R BE—TCREFEERABIRNEEEENEG
A E o
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A combination of factors have significantly affected our Greater China
business, especially in Mainland China and Hong Kong. While the Sino-
US trade dispute curtailed economic growth, unseasonably warm
weather also drastically hampered the sales of our heavy jackets.
Retail sales in Hong Kong plummeted due to protracted social events
in the second half of 2019. China’s ban on solo travels to Taiwan
negatively affected the local tourism business. In the long term, however,
e-commerce and franchising will continue to be our two main business
drivers for Greater China. The Group will continue to allocate more
resources towards our online channels, which have partially cushioned
the negative impact on physical stores due to the macro-environment.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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R AHEME-ZTHED

Table 8: Greater China region — by market

AHBRAH AHBMH
HEH HEBIERE EfRRE ERMHHE
Sales CSS growth CSGP growth Stores at year end

29
2019 2018 Change 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

1,088 1293 (19.7%) (16.4%)  (0.9%) (19.5%)  (2.5%) 902 937
112 959 (19.5%) (16.1%)  31%  (16.5%)  1.9% 13 76
600 671 (10.6%) (11.8%)  12%  (11.1%)  1.7% 197 200

2410 2923 (17.6%) (14.6%)  08%  (164%)  0.1% 1,172 1213

(HEEETAES (In HKS millon, translated
KEFEFLE, at constant exchange rates)
HEXE Mainland China
e Hong Kong and Macau
niE Taiwan
Ay Total
DARHMMEE

®O: mAHME

The rest of Asia Pacific
Table 9: The rest of Asia Pacific region

BHE ERsz
As published For reference only
2019 2018 2019
REEE RERE REAE
HB&E g ERE=i
RHZ168 $17% 2178
2§ | B
Reported HHEER Reported hHEs Reported
(UBEETAEZl (In HKS millon, translated under BAt under B 28 under %8
KETEZ#E) at constant exchange rates) HKFRS16 % to sales HKAS 17 %to sales Change HKAS 17 Change
BHEE Total sales 1,575 100.0% 1,628 100.0% (3.0%) 1,575 (3.0%)
i Gross prof 932 59.2% 968 59.6% (3.7%) 93 (3.7%)
LEBH Operating expense (787) (46.8%) (744) 45.8%) (0.9%) (744) % ¥Flat
E=yeri Operating profit 206 13.1% 233 14.4% (11.6%) 199 (14.6%)
HEER Finance expense (29) (1.5%) - - TERNA - TEANA
REEBANER Profit before income tax 184 11.7% 233 14.4% (21.0%) 199 (14.6%)
ALERmEERERE 0SS growth (7.2%) 0.3%
HBATENERE CSGP growth (6.9%) (0.2%)
EXMTHE Stores at year end 507 606 9

FEEZAUGNBRE DT E THRMEE DR ZE
% AHEHREFMEAERAE - EMEEALL
EFMESENILEMIMEMNFELER 52
R JEGiordano g S AR E 2 KR °
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The repercussions of the Sino-US trade dispute also affected our
businesses in the Southeast Asia region, especially in Singapore and
Malaysia. Indonesia continued to record a growth in overall CSS and
CSGP, mainly attributable to the satisfactory performance of our non-
Giordano brands.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F #
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®10: DAHMBE-RTHE D

Table 10: The rest of Asia Pacific region - by market

AHBHH AHBMH
HER HEBIERE EfRRE ERMHYA
Sales CSS growth CSGP growth Stores at year end
(HBEETREL (in HKS millon, translated 89
KEFEZHE, at constant exchange rates) 2019 2018 Change 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
0k Indonesia 625 585 68%  (3.0%  36%  (1.9%)  0.8% 238 249
R Thailand 345 360  (42%)  (6.9%)  11%  (54%)  2.7% 172 169
it Singapore 274 312 (122%)  (10.2%)  (2.2%)  (10.9%)  (4.3%) 42 43
SRER Malaysia 182 201 (9.5%) (13.7%)  (5.2%) (14.3%)  (1.7%) 95 93
il Vietnam 920 89 11%  (3.7%) TERNA - (38%) TEANA 4 39
2l Australia 48 65 (262%)  33%  114%  (1.0%)  9.4% I i
p3-E Cambooia 11 11 BFFlat FEANA  (8.2%) FEANA  (8.4% 2 2
g Total 1,575 1623 (3.0%)  (1.2%)  03%  (6.9%)  (0.2%) 597 606
R The Middle East
x®11: PR Table 11: The Middle East
BHE ERrsz
As published For reference only
2019 2018 2019
REEE RERE RERE
BRE SR 23 ER
RAE16% E17% 2175
2§ 28 EE |
Reported E#HER Reported s Reported
(WBE#TBEN (In HK$ millon, translated under ARl under ARt #y under 28
REFELLE) at constant exchange rates) HKFRS16 % to sales HKAS17 % tosales Change HKAS 17 Change
BHER Total sales 662 100.0% 636 100.0% 4.1% 662 4.1%
EH Gross profit 48 64.7% 393 61.8% 8.9% 428 8.9%
HEBH Operating expense (307) (46.4%) (307) (48.3%) ¥ ¥Flat (313) 2.0%
B Operating profit 123 18.6% 86 13.5% 43.0% 118 37.2%
HEER Finance expense (10) (1.5%) - - TERNA - TERNA
Uil Proft before income tax 114 17.2% 86 135% 32.6% 118 37.2%
ALERmHEERERE 0SS growth 4.5% (5.0%)
ALERmENERE CSGP growth 3.6% (11.0%)
EXFMEE Stores at year end 181 182 (1)

SERNBE THRREY - KLRFIBRT43% °
EERBENTRESTERNTEEE - FibR
DT RIEEY  KMBERE - BRERKRELAE
BRI F I E AN BB INKE $H ) E R —

IR RAFEHEAE
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The Group successfully turned around the Middle East business, with
operating profit up by 43%. The turnaround was due to the improved
merchandising mix and disciplined inventory management, leading to
fewer promotional activities. Alternative supply sources also helped reduce
the average product cost. The positive momentum in the Middle East will
continue by further strengthening through heightened marketing efforts.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
=AW EBAERAF
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TR (- HAHBLIEEEMEE 2#HA South Korea (a 48.5% joint venture under an

48.5% =N EE RN T) independent management team)
£12: H§E Table 12: South Korea
hHER BHESR
Rl Aol #E

(NBEEEAELN) (In Korean Won million) 2019 % to sales 2018 % to sales Change
BEEE Total sales 205,138 100.0% 205,582 100.0% (0.2%)
7 Gross profit 118,482 57.8% 122,073 59.4% (2.9%)
I Net profit 19,394 9.5% 18,532 9.0% 4.7%
fiyanl Share of profit 9,406 8,988 4.7%
MERMMHEESERE CSS growth 2.3% (1.6%)
EBRAmERERE CSGP growth 0.9% 0.5%
FRMMHE Stores at year end 175 186 (11)

-

BT L EPITT I E M AT L RPITMEFIHE B /N South Korea reported a small growth in both CSS and CSGP, with
BiGR - FFEIEM O ERE SRR AIEHI NZE  net profit increase due to improved cost control and closure of non-

PRI EZFIT - performing stores.

HEMIMBEE R REER Wholesale sales to overseas franchisees

®13 . B MEBEEz2MPHTEE Table 13: Store numbers of overseas franchisees

A12A831H
At December 31

Emi5En By market 2019 2018
i South Korea 175 186
R Southeast Asia 229 204
HAhTi5 Other markets 21 15
FY T AR B Total stores 425 425

YEININEERY 2 HE B E TR 22.9% £ 252184  Wholesales to overseas franchisees decreased by 22.9% to HK$252
TT(20184E : 3.27(8# L) - 2HTEMNTHEEZ  million (2018: HK$327 million). Uncertainties in the global economy
TETHRMERRMEMOINBEZHESE M have affected the sales of our franchisees in various regions, which
LTRPNPEES - BEATHRMANREMSEAR  in turn have affected our wholesales performance. The tightening of
W BRAREBEHINEENEERESE MBI our credit policy towards franchisees has also led to lower wholesale
HEERLD  c ERBEERE NI ITERFE  sales, although this is for the sake of our long term financial position.
DTSN Z INBE L3 %75 2 h [ - 40 - F{f5  Management continued to persevere in expanding our franchise and
EEERNIMBEEEAEE FTELFHRZTIUER  wholesale footprint outside of our core markets. For instance, our
FIm - BEAWIIRE T K - HZEHEEMHEE  franchisee in Mauritius opened four stores in the second half of the year.
FRRAEEDR - Though initially small, these newly developed markets will reap rewards
in the medium to long run.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

18 T W E B AER LA ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F 3



EEEBzmAL K 2 M

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Bt 7 AR R
RBEERUBER

BEFNEETYK  AEB BB RIDABRE -
M2019F 12 A31H » & RIRITATF (HNBRIRITE
1) A9.94EHTT(20184F - 1017EETT) - &M
B2.3% - BRBITERE 2B MIBFTHEFHN
BEEBRREAEAENLCLEBEINEZ10.68E5
TCIRERA  (NEARZILE7,6008E 7T : (i@
R H R T MR E4.73EB T« RivEE
X2 ARG E D 2 FFRE.07TEE T

MHERITIEE B2.658 B L (20184  2.9818/8
L) RABEFMAZMEIRITZIENFREER
RelEErz —HemTHE AEEZERLR
(ZEBEARERERBITEFRERRFRE
JEGER 2L EFTE) B-0.4(20184F : -0.4) o I
2019F12H31 8 - AEBE 2t X 51.4(2018
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M HBERRE

RAFE  BARARX /760088 T (20184 -
8,4008B7T) - T2ANFIMIR - ERERHESE
KRERFEHRFETH > LERETELEPT - LA
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HERBREALHERRE

HELEHRLEESERB2012F K2015F Ik
BERRER BMEETFEREIRLTREHE
20194 B B [E N MR (A ©

F R PN 2 £ Giordano Fashions
L.L.C. (] Giordano UAE |) ' Giordano Fashions
Co. W.L.L. ([ Giordano KW ] ) X GIO Fashions
W.L.L.([ Giordano QA ) &) FEFE A% AR BR AT 37 ek
P ZE RN TER - BERLEEAE
6,200 & 7T B 70 5L BT HERR N AR B 28 2K o

REEQRFA 2=

RNEERRIZEDZBITAB%NEREENR
ﬁTl ° *ﬁ%ﬁ"iﬁqmﬁﬂ 400%2%75)3635"&(FW§T5
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FINANCIAL POSITION
Liquidity and financial resources

Despite the sales decline during the year, the Group’s financial position
remains strong. On December 31, 2019, the cash and bank balance
net of bank loans was HK$994 million (2018: HK$1,017 million),
representing a slight decrease of 2.3%. The four primary sources
and uses of the cash and bank balances, net of bank loans, are (i)
HK$1,068 million cash inflow from operating activities; (i) HK$76 million
investment in capital expenditure; (i) HK$473 million dividend payment
to shareholders and non-controlling interests; and (iv) HK$507 million
payment for principal elements of lease payments.

The short-term bank borrowings amounted to HK$265 million
(2018: HK$298 million) and was a financial instrument designed to
leverage interest rate differentials among banks in the region for yield
enhancement. The Group’s gearing ratio, defined as the ratio of total
borrowings less cash and bank balances to equity attributable to owners
of the Company, was -0.4 (2018: -0.4). As of December 31, 2019, the
Group’s current ratio was 1.4 (2018: 2.5).

Property, plant and equipment

During the year, our capital expenditure was HK$76 million (2018:
HK$84 million), mainly incurred to upgrade our stores. Management will
continue to invest in our shop ambience to strengthen our brand image,
especially in Hong Kong and Macau.

Goodwill and put option liability

The goodwill and put option liability stems from the acquisition of
the Middle East operations in the years of 2012 and 2015. We have
carried out annual impairment tests and concluded that there was no
impairment to goodwill in the 2019 financial year.

During the year, the Group has entered into agreements with the non-
controlling shareholders of Giordano Fashions L.L.C. (“Giordano UAE”),
Giordano Fashions Co. W.L.L (“Giordano KW”) and GIO Fashions W.L.L.
(“Giordano QA”) to acquire the remaining interests in these companies.
The associated put option liabilities of HK$62 million which were
previously recognized have, accordingly, lapsed.

Interests in joint ventures

Interest in joint ventures comprises a 48.5% interest in the South Korea
joint venture. The change in HK$14 million during the year derives from
our share of profit in the sum of HK$63 million, offset by dividends
received and currency translation difference.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
=AW EBAERAF

19



20

EEEBzmL K2 M

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FE

AREBNR2019F12 831 A 27 S A5.48EHE T
(20184 : 55288 ) - FEREHEEMI1IAE
100H - FEREBHEE MNP EBHNEE TR
REWEREENFIE -

HEHERMNER cFREYIFRMEEEE - &
B AEBEEEMBEHRERENBERZF
BKF - UERTERBEBZN [EEREXI T
5 -HMEFER i‘ﬁﬂaﬁxﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ& FR B KR A
BERRANGFERERS AR ERNFEERE -
f%ﬁ@%ﬁZ%%ﬁXE;%?ﬁ%Tﬁ%% 6% ° TFIH R FTF
BIRFRL5.0% °

Inventories

Group inventories on December 31, 2019, were HK$548 million (2018:
HK$552 million). ITOC increased by 11 days to 100 days. The increase in
ITOC is primarily due to a decline in sales and the early receipt of Chinese
New Year orders.

Inventories at suppliers and franchisees are not our legal liabilities.
Despite this, the Group responsibly tracks their levels to ensure that we
do not build up excessive ‘off-balance sheet’ inventories. An increase
in inventories in South Korea was to meet the recent sales. Stocks
held by franchisees in Mainland China decreased significantly due to
effective inventory management. Finished goods at suppliers significantly
dropped by 55.6%. Our system inventories had reduced by 5.0% YOY.

r14 . RBEFE Table 14: System inventories
®W12H31H
At December 31
(X BEETREN) (In HK$ million) 2019 2018
AEBBEZEFE Inventories held by the Group 548 552
HEAS SN ERNEESE AT Inventories held by 48.5%
BEZFE South Korea joint venture 196 200
FREAEMBEEREZFE Inventories held by franchisees
in Mainland China 73 94
e 2K E M Finished goods at suppliers
(RITE) (not yet shipped) 12 27
AEGFEHR Total system inventories 829 873
FE R K% BE 13 BR K Trade receivables and payables

AEBEFRUBRR 2 AT EM - AR IEERER
B o HZE2010F 12831 HIEFE - EKEREFRE
BEUR458 - BEAFHE R D148 o« BAOWERERZ
BMEE=ZFRETEEER - REAR - BRAERER
MEHEIE M5B E250 o KFEEMEEEF
T2 EERRAF - TERASEBYHEREERER
//\LHﬁRWEQ?ﬁﬁE °
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The Group monitors the recoverability of trade receivables to mitigate
bad debt risks. Trade receivable turnover days for the year ended
December 31, 2019, were 45 days, a decrease of 14 days as compared
to last year. The reduction stems from the tightening of our credit policy
to third parties. Trade payable turnover days increased by 5 days to 25
days during the year. The result is in line with the credit period granted
by our suppliers, but also demonstrates the Group’s good faith in
assisting our suppliers’ cash flow situation.
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Pledge of assets

The Group did not pledge any assets as of December 31, 2019, and
2018.

Contingent liabilities

There were no contingent liabilities as of December 31, 2019 and 2018.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group faces foreign exchange risk mainly arising from purchases
from a Renminbi-based supply chain and sales proceeds in local
currencies of the relevant Group entities. Foreign exchange risk arising
from recognized assets and liabilities is insignificant. The Group promptly
settles balances denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the relevant Group entity, leaving minimal outstanding foreign
currency position at the balance sheet date. Management regularly
monitors foreign exchange risks to the Group. The Group does not
employ financial instruments for hedging purposes. The Group may use
forward foreign exchange contracts if it anticipates fluctuations in the
relevant foreign currencies.

Dividend

The Company has adopted a dividend policy on November 8, 2018 (the
“Dividend Policy”). The Dividend Policy aims to return surplus cash to its
shareholders through the payment of dividends and share repurchase. In
line with the Dividend Policy, the Company has been paying a substantial
portion of its earnings as an ordinary dividend, the amount of which may
vary depending on cash on hand, future investment requirements and
working capital considerations.

Having considered the economic outlook, the Group’s financial
position, its future expansion plans and other factors, the Board has
recommended a final dividend of 4.4 HK cents per share (2018: 16.5
HK cents per share) for the year ended December 31, 2019. Together
with the interim dividend of 10.2 HK cents per share (2018: 17.0 HK
cents per share) paid on September 20, 2019, total 2019 dividend
would amount to 14.6 HK cents per share (2018: 33.5 HK cents per
share), representing a payout of 100% of 2019 earnings per share (2018:
110%). Subject to the approval of our shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company, the final dividend will be
payable on Friday, June 19, 2020 to shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company on Thursday, June 4, 2020.
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OUTLOOK

The spreading of the COVID-19 pandemic at the beginning of the year
undermined regional retail businesses in the first half, especially in China
and Hong Kong. The outbreak’s proximity to the traditional Lunar New
Year buying spree will exacerbate the negative impact on the Group’s
annual performance. We expect the coronavirus pandemic to continue
affecting our business significantly in the first quarter of the year. The
remnant issues of 2019, such as the Sino-US trade disputes and
regional social events, are still material in affecting the outlook for 2020.

Nevertheless, with a secure brand position and quality merchandise,
Management is confident of overcoming the challenges ahead.
Management will further strengthen the Group’s financial position
through a combination of strategies and actions. In terms of cash flow
management, Management targets to reduce account receivables by
retrieving overdue debts and tightening our credit policy. On inventory
management, the Group has been diverting and redistributing ready
garments between regions, while Management has either cut or
postponed purchases to avoid inventory glut. Stringent cost control is
also critical for long term sustainability. Thus, Management and regional
heads will aggressively pursue rental reductions and concessions, as
well as reduce other overhead costs.

The Group will take a more cautious approach in Mainland China and
Hong Kong. In contrast, Management is prepared to adopt a more
aggressive approach towards overseas markets, especially in the Middle
East and the developing markets in the Southeast Asia regions, such as
Indonesia and Vietnam.

Geographically, the Group will seize opportunities for store expansion in
developing countries. The Group made significant progress in search of
compatible franchise partners in recent years. In addition to Mongolia,
South Africa and France, we have now secured new franchises in
Mauritius, Continental Africa and India.

On e-commerce, Management will expedite the development in our
existing markets by partnering with established online channels. The
cooperation with local third party e-platforms has proven successful in
the past.
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Talent management will remain an essential aspect of our business
strategy. The restructured Fast-Track Management Scheme paid off as
graduates now shine in respective executive positions. Management
will devise various job rotations to expose graduates to all disciplines of
business operations, paving the way for their promotion to management
roles with greater exposure and responsibility.

Crisis creates opportunities. In the face of numerous obstacles in 2020,
Management will take a decisive and positive approach to rejuvenate
our operations to create more value for our shareholders. With a robust
financial position and cost control measures in place, Management
believes that the Group will persevere and weather the storm.

OTHER INFORMATION
Human Resources

At December 31, 2019, the Group had approximately 7,900 employees
(December 31, 2018: 8,200). The Group offers competitive remuneration
packages and generous, goal-oriented bonuses targeted to different
levels of staff. We offer senior managers performance-based bonus
schemes and share options to reward and retain a high calibre
leadership team. We also invest heavily in training in sales and customer
service, management, planning and leadership development to retain a
skilled and motivated workforce.
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Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter (Chairman and Chief Executive), aged 67,
is the Group’s Chairman and Chief Executive. He is also chairman of the
Management Committee and Nomination Committee and a member of
the Remuneration Committee of the Company. He joined the Group in
1987, became the Chief Executive on February 8, 1994, and was elected
Chairman of the Board of the Company on August 10 in the same year.
He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Dr. LAU is also an independent non-executive director of Fairwood
Holdings Limited, which is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Dr. LAU is currently an adjunct professor
of the College of Business at City University of Hong Kong (“CityU”) and
an external member of the School of Business Advisory Committee of
Hong Kong Baptist University (“HKBU”). He was previously the chairman
of the Advisory Committee on Management and marketing at the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University (“PolyU”).

Dr. LAU holds a Doctorate degree in Business Administration from
PolyU, a MBA degree from the University of Calgary in Canada and a
Master of Buddhist Studies from The University of Hong Kong. Dr. LAU
had over 12 years of management and accounting experience in both
the private and public sectors in Canada before joining the Group.

Dr. CHAN Ka Wai (Executive Director), aged 43, joined the Group in
January 2000 and was appointed as an Executive Director and the Chief
Operating Officer of the Company on June 20, 2014 and April 1, 2015,
respectively. He is a member of the Management Committee of the
Company and also a director of various subsidiaries and joint ventures
of the Group. Dr. CHAN is responsible for the Group’s Mainland China
business while directing the Group’s operations to meet budget and
other financial goals, as well as establishing goals, allocating resources
and assessing policies to drive the Group’s performance. Dr. CHAN
has over 18 years of experience in the apparel retailing and marketing
business.

Dr. CHAN is a member of Certified Practicing Accountant Australia.
He holds a Doctorate degree in Business Administration from PolyU, a

Master of Arts in Global Business Management from CityU and a Master
of Accountancy from HKBU.

* For identification purpose only
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Mr. Mark Alan LOYND (Executive Director), aged 41, has been with
the Group since September 2013 and was appointed as an Executive
Director on March 9, 2017. Mr. LOYND is currently the General
Counsel, Company Secretary and Group Human Resources Director
of the Company. He oversees legal, regulatory, compliance, corporate
governance, human resources and talent development affairs of the
Group. Mr. LOYND is also chairman of the Risk Management Committee
and a member of the Management Committee of the Company as well
as director and company secretary of various subsidiaries and joint
ventures of the Group. Currently, Mr. LOYND is also responsible for the
development of new overseas markets as well as brand and product
development.

Mr. LOYND was called to the Bar in Hong Kong in 2007 and is a Member
of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators in London, the United Kingdom.
He holds a Bachelor of Laws (Hons) from Aberystwyth University in the
United Kingdom as well as a Master of Arts in Arbitration and Alternative
Dispute Resolution (with distinction) and a Postgraduate Certificate
in Laws, both from CityU. He possesses over 18 years of experience
in handling regulatory and compliance matters for listed companies,
mergers and acquisitions, joint ventures and other commercial law
affairs, as well as labour and maritime law issues.

Dr. CHENG Chi Kong Jr (Non-executive Director), aged 40, was
appointed as a Non-executive Director on May 22, 2012. Dr. CHENG
was executive director and joint general manager of New World
Development Company Limited (“NWD”) and has been re-designated to
executive vice-chairman and general manager with effect from March
1, 2017. He is also an executive director of New World Department
Store China Limited, Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited and
NWS Holdings Limited, and a non-executive director of New Century
Healthcare Holding Co. Limited, all of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange. Dr. CHENG was an executive director of New World China
Land Limited, and has been appointed as executive chairman since
February 1, 2020, which was a listed public company in Hong Kong
until its delisting on August 4, 2016. He was an executive director of
International Entertainment Corporation, a non-executive director and
vice chairman of Modern Media Holdings Limited and a non-executive
director of i-CABLE Communications Limited, all of which are listed on
the Stock Exchange, up to his resignation on June 10, 2017, August
26, 2017 and July 2, 2019, respectively. Dr. CHENG is a director of
a substantial shareholder of the Company, Chow Tai Fook (Holding)
Limited and its subsidiary, Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited. He is
also the chairman of New World Group Charity Foundation Limited. Dr.
CHENG worked in a major international bank prior to joining NWD in
September 2006 and has substantial experience in corporate finance.
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Dr. CHENG holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree (cum laude) from Harvard
University, and was conferred the Honorary Doctorate of Humanities by
the Savannah College of Art and Design.

Dr. CHENG currently serves as the vice-chairman of All-China Youth
Federation, a member of the Tianjin Municipal Committee of The Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, the chairman of China Young
Leaders Foundation, the honorary chairman of K11 Art Foundation and
was a member of board of the West Kowloon Cultural District Authority.

Mr. CHAN Sai Cheong (Non-executive Director), aged 57, was
appointed as a Non-executive Director on May 22, 2012. He is also as an
executive director of Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited, a company
listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. CHAN has been in the jewellery
industry for 38 years.

Mr. CHAN currently a senior adviser of the Gems & Jewelry Trade
Association of China, a member of National Technical Committee 256
on Jewelry and National Technical Committee 298 on Jewelry and Jade
of Standardization Administration of China, a member of the standing
council of China Gold Association, an executive vice-chairman of the
Guangdong Gold and Silver Jewellery Chamber of Commerce, a vice-
chairman of the Shenzhen Gold & Jewellery Association, a general vice-
chairman of Gold Association of Guangdong Province, a vice-chairman
of the Guangdong Golden Jewellery and Jade Industry’s Association and
a director of the Gemmological Institute, China University of Geosciences
(Wuhan). He is also a member of the Liaoning Province Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference.

Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT (/Independent Non-executive Director),
aged 75, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director
on March 3, 1995. He is also chairman of the Audit Committee and
a member of both the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company.

Dr. BUTTIFANT was re-appointed as a managing director of KLC
Transactions Limited in January 2017, and was also appointed as a
managing director of KLC Corporate Advisory and Recovery Limited
from the same date.

Dr. BUTTIFANT is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Chartered Management Institute, the Hong Kong
Management Association and the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. He
has been awarded an Honorary Doctorate of Business Administration
(Honoris Causa) by Edinburgh Napier University, United Kingdom in
February 2013.
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Mr. KWONG Ki Chi GBs, Jr (Independent Non-executive Director), aged
68, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director on April
26, 2004 and is a member of the Audit Committee of the Company.
Mr. KWONG is also an independent non-executive director of another
listed company, AMS Public Transport Holdings Limited. Mr. KWONG
graduated from The University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Science
degree in Physics and Mathematics and was awarded a Master of
Philosophy degree in Economics and Politics of Development by the
University of Cambridge, England. He has served in the Government of
Hong Kong for 27 years and held positions principally in the economic
and financial fields. He was the Secretary for the Treasury from 1995
to 1998, with responsibility for public finances, and Secretary for
Information Technology and Broadcasting from 1998 to March 2000,
with responsibility for information technology, telecommunications
and broadcasting. He left the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region in March 2000 to join The Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited as executive director and first Chief Executive,
following the demutualization and merger of the Stock Exchange, The
Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited and their associated clearing
houses and retired in April 2003. Since then, Mr. KWONG had served
as the managing director/executive director/non-executive director
of various companies, including Hsin Chong International Holdings
Ltd, Hongkong Sales (Int’l) Ltd, Macau Legend Development Ltd and
Chenavari Investment Managers (HK) Limited (now known as W2 Asset
Management (HK) Limited).

Mr. KWONG is a non-official Justice of the Peace in Hong Kong and has
been awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star by the Government of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region.

Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu) (/Independent Non-
executive Director), aged 49, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director on November 11, 2015. He is also chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of both the Audit Committee
and the Nomination Committee of the Company.

Professor HUANG received his PhD from the University of Groningen
(The Netherlands), Master of Arts from Lancaster University (England),
and Honours Diploma from Lingnan University (Hong Kong). Currently,
he is the Professor and the Head of Department of Management, the
Associate Dean of the School of Business (Research & Postgraduate
Studies), the Programme Director of Master of Business Administration
and Master of Science in Business Management and the Associate
Director of Centre for Human Resources Strategy and Development of
HKBU.

* For identification purpose only
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Since 2010, he has served as an Adjunct Professor in the Centre for
Work, Organization and Wellbeing, Griffith University. He has also been
appointed as a Visiting Chair Professor in Shanghai University of Finance
and Economics since 2012. He is Deputy Editor of the Management and
Organization Review, and a member of editorial board for Academy of
Management Journal and Human Relations.

Professor HUANG's research interests include leadership, power,
proactive and abnormal work behaviors, employees’ well-being; cross-
cultural psychology and management issues in China. He has published
more than 60 papers in international journals including Academy
of Management Journal, Journal of Applied Psychology, Journal of
International Business Studies, Journal of Management, Leadership
Quarterly, Journal of Organizational Behavior, Human Relations and so
forth.

Dr. Alison Elizabeth LLOYD (Independent Non-executive Director),
aged 44, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director on
March 7, 2019. She is also a member of both the Audit Committee and
the Nomination Committee of the Company.

As Director of International Affairs of PolyU, Dr. Lloyd oversees the
strategic development and coordination of international partnerships,
international recruitment, mobility opportunities, and institutional
relations. As Director of Institutional Research and Planning of PolyU,
she steers strategic planning, performance monitoring, university
rankings, business intelligence, and analytics.

Prior to joining academia, she worked in management consultancy in
Hong Kong. Her previously consulting engagements cover strategy,
business process review and improvement, performance management
frameworks and change management for both private and public sector
organizations in Hong Kong and Asia. Currently, Dr. LLOYD serves on
a number of advisory boards and steering committees pertaining to
international higher education.
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The Board is dedicated to maintaining the highest standard of corporate
governance within a sensible and practical framework. The Board
firmly believes that the principles of transparency, accountability and
independence are essential towards upholding the interests of all
stakeholders and maximizing shareholder value.

The Board is committed to excellence in corporate governance. It is
responsible for developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance as well as compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements. The Board has adopted the code provisions
(the “Code Provisions”) as stated in the Corporate Governance Code
(the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange as the
Corporate Governance Code of the Company.

During the year of 2019, the Company fully complied with the Code
Provisions in the CG Code save for the deviations from Code Provisions
A.2.1 and A.4.2, which are explained in the relevant paragraphs below.

BOARD
Roles and Responsibilities

The Board is charged with providing effective and responsible leadership
for the Company. It sets the Group’s overall objectives and strategies,
monitors and evaluates its operating and financial performance and
reviews the corporate governance standards of the Company. It also
decides on matters relating to annual and interim results, notifiable
transactions, appointments or re-appointments of Directors, dividends
and accounting policies. The Directors, individually and collectively, are
committed to act in good faith and in the best interests of the Company
and its shareholders. Save for the power reserved by the Board or other
Board committees, the strategies and plans as decided by the Board are
implemented by Management. Management assumes full accountability
to the Board for the day-to-day operation of the Group.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
set out below or it may delegate the responsibility to a committee or
committees:

Developing, reviewing and updating the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and making recommendations
on changes and updates;

Reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

Reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

Developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors;

Reviewing the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this report; and

Reviewing and monitoring the Group’s process of disclosure,
including assessing and verifying the accuracy and materiality of
price-sensitive information and determine the form and content of
any required disclosure.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Company.
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Composition

The Board currently comprises four Independent Non-executive
Directors, two Non-executive Directors and three Executive Directors.

The Independent Non-executive Directors and the Non-executive
Directors bring a diverse range of expertise, skills and experience to
provide effective guidance and an outside perspective to all major
decisions of the Group. To assist in the discharge of their duties, the
Directors have free and direct access to both the Company’s internal
and external auditors and procedures are in place to allow the Directors
to obtain independent professional advice at the Company’s expense.

Given the overall composition of the Board and the expertise, skills
and experience that each Director brings individually, the Group
believes that the Board is appropriately structured to provide sufficient
checks and balances to protect the interests of the Company and its
shareholders. The Board will regularly review its composition to maintain
a proper balance and diversity of expertise, skills and experience to
ensure continued effective leadership and oversight of the Company’s
businesses. Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 24
to 28 of this annual report.

In accordance with good corporate governance principles, the Board
had established three Board Committees: the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee. In addition, a
Management Committee and a Risk Management Committee are also in
place to support the Board and the Board Committees. During the year
of 2019 and up to the date of this report, the composition of the Board,
the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee are set out below. The Management Committee and Risk
Management Committee are discussed in the relevant sections of this
report.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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ERZEES REZES FHEES
Audit Nomination Remuneration
BEEERE Members of the Board Committee Committee Committee
HTES Executive Directors
2B fEtE =+ Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter — C M
(FEFTEABE) (Chairman and Chief Executive)

PREEE T Dr. CHAN Ka Wai — — _
EELAE Mr. Mark Alan LOYND — — —
FHTES Non-executive Directors
EERIE L P Dr. CHENG Chi Kong up — — —
=P Mr. CHAN Sai Cheong — — —
BAFHTES Independent Non-executive Directors
iR IELT Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT C M M
BBEE A 6Bs, uP Mr. KWONG Ki Chi GBs, JP M — —
=B Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu) M M C
Alison Elizabeth LLOYD {=+* Dr. Alison Elizabeth LLOYD* M M —
ez - Notes:
C BHESZESNER C Chairman of the relevant Board Committees
M EHEFEZEENKE M Member of the relevant Board Committees

R2019F3A7AEZR T
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Appointed on March 7, 2019

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other material
or relevant relationships with each other except that Dr. CHENG
Chi Kong serves on the board of directors of New World Group and
subsidiaries as executive director and serves on the board of directors
of Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited as executive director; and Mr.
CHAN Sai Cheong serves on the board of directors of Chow Tai Fook
Jewellery Group Limited as executive director.

It is the Board’s opinion that these relationships do not affect the
Directors’ independent judgment and integrity in executing their roles
and responsibilities.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The appointment of a new Director is made by the Board upon
recommendation by the Nomination Committee. The Nomination
Committee considers a range of diversity perspectives when assessing
potential candidates for the Board.
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According to the Company’s Bye-Laws adopted on May 24, 2019 (the
“New Bye-Laws”), any new Director (other than the Chairman or the
Managing Director) appointed by the Board is subject to retirement and
re-election by shareholders at the next general meeting of the Company
(in the case of filling a casual vacancy) or at the next annual general
meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) (in the case of an addition to their
number) following their appointment. At each AGM, one-third (or the
number nearest to, but not exceeding one-third) of the Directors (other
than the Chairman or the Managing Director) will retire from office by
rotation, and every Director (other than the Chairman or the Managing
Director) including those appointed for a specific term is subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

The New Bye-Laws also allow for removal of a Director by an ordinary
resolution.

Code Provision A.4.2 provides that every director, including those
appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years.

Non-executive Directors have been appointed for an initial term of three
years and will continue in office thereafter subject to termination by not
less than one month’s prior notice in writing by either the Non-executive
Director or the Company. In addition, all Non-executive Directors are
required to retire from office by rotation and are subject to re-election by
shareholders at the AGM at least once every three years pursuant to the
New Bye-Laws and Code Provision A.4.2.

In the opinion of the Board, stability and continuation are key factors to
the successful implementation of business plans. The Board believes
that it is beneficial to the Group that there is continuity in the role of the
Chairman and, therefore, the Board is of the view that the Chairman
should be exempt from this arrangement at the present time.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year under review, the Board at all times met the requirements
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
Independent Non-executive Directors with at least one Independent
Non-executive Director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management expertise.
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Although two of our Independent Non-executive Directors; namely, Dr.
Barry John BUTTIFANT and Mr. KWONG Ki Chi, have served as our
Board members for more than nine years and that may be relevant to the
determination of independence, it is well-recognized that an individual’s
independence cannot be determined solely on the basis of a set period
of time. In assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors, the Board and the Nomination Committee consider the
character and judgement demonstrated by the Directors’ commitment
and contribution to the Board during their years of service and other
relevant factors.

We believe that the Independent Non-executive Directors who have
served more than nine years; namely, Dr. BUTTIFANT and Mr. KWONG,
provide invaluable expertise, experience, continuity and stability to
the Board, despite their length of service, and does not affect their
exercises of independent judgement. The Company has benefited from
their contribution and the valuable insights derived from their in-depth
knowledge of the Company and from their work and experience outside
of the Company. Dr. BUTTIFANT and Mr. KWONG have expressed
objective views and given independent guidance to the Company over
the past years.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from
all Independent Non-executive Directors in accordance with rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Board is of the view that all Independent Non-
executive Directors are independent in accordance with the Listing
Rules.

Code Provision A.4.3 provides that if an independent non-executive
director serves more than nine years, his further appointment should be
subject to a separate resolution to be approved by the shareholders.

Mr. KWONG has served as an Independent Non-executive Director
for more than nine years since April 26, 2004. To comply with Code
Provision A.4.3, Mr. KWONG retired voluntarily and was re-elected as
Director at the AGM held on May 26, 2017.

Dr. BUTTIFANT has served as an Independent Non-executive Director
for more than nine years since March 3, 1995. To comply with Code
Provision A.4.3, Dr. BUTTIFANT retired voluntarily and was re-elected as
Director at the AGM held on May 24, 2019.

Board meetings

The Board holds four regular meetings a year while additional meetings
are held as and when required. Regular Board meetings are scheduled in
advance to facilitate the fullest possible attendance.
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The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in setting the agenda of
the Board meetings and each Director is invited to present any business
that they wish to discuss or propose at such meetings. Notices of
regular Board meetings are served to the Directors at least 14 days
before meetings. For other Board and committee meetings, reasonable
notice is generally given. Furthermore, all Directors have access to the
Company Secretary who is also the Group’s General Council for advice
and services to ensure that board procedures and applicable law, rules
and regulations are adhered to. Agenda and accompanying Board
papers are circulated to all Directors and other attendees not less than
three days before the Board or committee meetings to ensure timely
access to relevant information. Minutes of the Board meetings and
committee meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and are open
for inspection by all Directors.

Any Director who is unable to physically attend any Board meeting may
participate electronically by conference call or via alternate arrangement
in accordance with the New Bye-Laws. Moreover, pursuant to the New
Bye-Laws, Board approval may also be obtained by way of circulation
of a resolution in writing on urgent matters when convening a Board
meeting is not practicable. Sufficient information and explanatory
materials will be provided to the Directors at the same time when a
resolution in writing is circulated.

During the year ended December 31, 2019, four Board meetings
were held to review the quarterly operating updates and discuss the
Group’s strategies, policies and budgets going forward, as well as other
business. In addition, six sets of resolutions in writing were passed.
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Directors’ attendance and time commitment

Attendances of each Director at the meetings of the Board, Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and the
AGM during the year ended December 31, 2019 are as follows:

HEE/EBRY
Attendance/Number of Meetings
EZEEE ENZEE8%E RYZREEE FMWzEeE€R  RRAFAE
Audit Nomination ~ Remuneration
Board Committee Committee Committee
EEfE Name of Directors Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting AGM
HTES Executive Directors
fEEE T Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter 4/4 @ N/A 2/2 01 11
(TRFTHEH) (Chairman and Chief Executive)
RREET Dr. CHAN Ka Wai 4/4 T8 N/A T8 N/A T N/A 11
B2 SRR Mr. Mark Alan LOYND 4/4 TEA NA TR N/A TR NA 11
FHTES Non-executive Directors
BEAETP Dr. CHENG Chi Kong Jp 4/4 TiEm NIA TR NIA TR N/A 11
Rt2%4E Mr. CHAN Sai Cheong 3/4 AR N/A AR N/A @R NA 11
BUFHTES Independent Non-executive Directors
2RAEL Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT 3/4 2/2 2/2 1 11
BPEFH A eas, o Mr. KWONG Ki Chi 6gs, Jp 4/4 2/2 TEA N/A TEE NA 11
ke Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu) 3/4 2/2 2/2 11 0/1
Alison Elizabeth LLOYDIE+  Dr. Alison Elizabeth LLOYD 2/3 11 01 NERE N/A /1

ATREARRABNAES  BUFAGTEET
B AHTEE R TR E NS -

B

ARRBEAAES2AFBEEXERUBRTE
MRSz BN REE - AABABEFEEINES
REZAMNREEH T BEZFESHOHAE
HERBEFHRAEREME -

ARRENRABAEEEBNESH R ERERE
MRER - RAMETHRNEEERLEHHRA - &
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FIEER -
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In order to facilitate free and open discussion of issues, the Independent
Non-executive Directors may also meet without the presence of the
Executive Directors from time-to-time.

Training for Directors

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Company provides a comprehensive induction package to each newly
appointed Director to ensure that they are sufficiently aware of their
responsibilities and obligations as director.

The Company provides regular updates and presentations on changes
and developments relating to the Group’s business and the Company
Secretary reports from time-to-time the latest changes and development
of the Listing Rules, corporate governance practices and other
regulatory regime to the Directors with reading materials relating to the
latest development of regulatory requirements related to director’s duties
and responsibilities.
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During the year of 2019, all Directors participated in the following
trainings:

HEBBEEKR
EERECHER
mHE g%
Attending
expert briefings/
HEEESE seminars/
WEF &R conferences
Reading relevant to the
regulatory business or
EERE Name of Directors updates directors’ duties
BITES Executive Directors
2P HETE L Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter v/ 4
(FEFITHARZ) (Chairman and Chief Executive)
REEEL Dr. CHAN Ka Wai v v
BENSE Mr. Mark Alan LOYND v v
FHITES Non-executive Directors
EEMITE L P Dr. CHENG Chi Kong uP v/ /
PRt S % A& Mr. CHAN Sai Cheong v v/
BIYFHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
ERAEL Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT v v
BPE RS A 6Bs, uP Mr. KWONG Ki Chi @as, Jp v /
=HBHE Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu) v v/
Alison Elizabeth LLOYD#E+ Dr. Alison Elizabeth LLOYD v v

EERERAEBEERR
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Directors’ and officers’ liabilities insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance in line with the CG Code.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Currently, Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter, holds the positions of Chairman
and Chief Executive. Such practice deviates from Code Provision A.2.1
which stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual.

In view of Dr. LAU’s extensive experience in the industry and deep
understanding of the Group’s businesses, the Board believes that
vesting the roles of both Chairman and Chief Executive in Dr. LAU
provides the Group with strong leadership, allowing for more effective
planning and execution of long term business strategies and enhances
efficiency in decision-making.
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The Board also believes that the Company already has a strong
corporate governance structure appropriate for its circumstances in
place to ensure effective oversight of Management. The main elements
of this structure include:

° Having Non-executive Directors comprise six of nine of the Board;

o Including all Independent Non-executive Directors as Audit
Committee members;

° Ensuring that all Independent Non-executive Directors have free
and direct access to both the Company’s internal and external
auditors and independent professional advice where necessary;
and

° Having a “whistle-blowing” mechanism in place to allow the
Group’s staff members to anonymously and confidentially report
to the Internal Audit Department any suspected acts of fraud or
gross misconduct by senior management, including that of the
Chairman and Chief Executive. Details about the “whistle-blowing”
mechanism are discussed under the section “Risk Management
and Internal Control”.

The Board believes that these measures enable our Independent
Non-executive Directors and Non-executive Directors to rigorously
supervise the Group’s management and effectively control key issues
relating to strategy, risk and integrity. The Board continually reviews the
effectiveness of the Group’s corporate governance structure to assess
whether any changes are necessary.

BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all Independent Non-executive
Directors and is chaired by Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT, a qualified
accountant with extensive experience in financial reporting and controls.

The Audit Committee is responsible for the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of external auditor, reviewing and monitoring the external
auditor’s independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit
process and discussing with the external auditor the nature and scope
of the audit. It is also responsible for reviewing the Group’s financial
information, overseeing the Group’s financial reporting system and risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing the interim and
final results of the Group prior to recommending them to the Board for
approval. To this end, the Audit Committee has unrestricted access to
both the Company’s internal and external auditors. Its terms of reference
are available on the websites of the Company and Hong Kong Exchange
and Clearing Limited (the “HKEX”).
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The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year to review financial
reporting and risk management and internal control matters. The
Director of Group Finance, the chairman of the Risk Management
Committee, the Internal Audit Department together with the Internal
Audit Advisor, Deloitte Advisory (Hong Kong) Limited (“Deloitte”)
(collectively the “IA team”), the Company Secretary and representatives
of the external auditor of the Company are expected to attend the
meetings. At the discretion of the Committee, other members of
management may also be invited to attend its meetings.

In 2019, the Audit Committee held two meetings. During the meetings,
the Audit Committee alongside the external auditor reviewed the audit
strategy summary, the final results for the year ended December 31,
2018 and the interim results for the six months ended June 30, 2019.
The Audit Committee also reviewed the activities of the IA team and
its internal audit report, and discussed with Management the report’s
findings and recommendations on the Group’s business operations.
Furthermore, it also evaluated, together with Management, the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems to ensure its
effectiveness, with particular attention to the adequacy of resources, the
qualifications and experience of the Group’s accounting and financial
reporting staff, as well as their training programs and budget.

The Audit Committee also reviewed the terms and conditions of
continuing connected transactions of the Group which took place during
the year.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the
external auditor during the year under review.

Nomination Committee

The Board established the Nomination Committee comprising of four
Board members, the majority of which are Independent Non-executive
Directors, and is chaired by Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter, the Chairman of
the Board.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board, on a regular basis, and to identify individuals
qualified to become Board members. It is also responsible for assessing
the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors and making
recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning
for Directors. The recommendations of the Nomination Committee are
then put forward for consideration and where appropriate, adoption by
the Board. Its terms of reference are available on the websites of the
Company and the HKEX.
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In 2019, the Nomination Committee held two meetings to review the
board diversity policy, to review the structure, size, composition and
skills matrix of the Board, to recommend the rotation list of Directors
to the Board, to assess the independence of the Independent Non-
executive Directors and to propose the appointment of Directors.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognizes that increasing diversity at the Board level
will support the attainment of the Company’s strategic objectives and
sustainable development. The Company will also take into consideration
its own business model and specific needs from time-to-time in
determining the optimum composition of the Board. In view of this,
a board diversity policy has been adopted by the Board in 2013, the
Nomination Committee has set measurable objectives based on a range
of diversity perspectives, including, but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge, length of service and other qualities. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidate(s) will bring to the Board.

Nomination Policy

In view of the amendments to the CG Code which took effect from
January 1, 2019, on November 8, 2018, the Nomination Committee has
adopted a nomination policy which sets out the selection criterias and
nomination procedures and process when considering candidates to be
appointed or re-appointed as Directors.

In the nomination policy, the Nomination Committee will follow the
nomination procedures and the process and criteria as follows:

° Reviewing the structure, size and diversity of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board composition in line with the Company’s strategic
objectives;

° Identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
on merit and against the objective criteria, with due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board. The Nomination Committee
shall consider suitability of a candidate pursuant to the Listing
Rules, the nomination policy and Board diversity policy, and the
independence of an individual for the position of independent non-
executive director; and

° Selecting or making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of the Board members taking into
account the Company’s corporate strategy and the mix of skills,
knowledge, experience and diversity needed in the future.
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The Nomination Committee will review the nomination policy from time-
to-time and may adopt changes as appropriate at the relevant time.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises of three Board members,
the majority of which are Independent Non-executive Directors, and is
chaired by Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu).

The Company adopted Code Provision B.1.2(c)(i) out of the two models
suggested by the CG Code. The Remuneration Committee is responsible
for reviewing and determining the remuneration, compensation and
benefits of Directors and senior management. When the remuneration
package of an individual Director is under review, the Director in question
is required to abstain from voting to avoid any conflict of interest. The
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on the
websites of the Company and the HKEX.

In 2019, the Remuneration Committee held a meeting to review and
approve the remuneration and bonus of the Chairman and Chief
Executive and to review and approve the remuneration packages of
individual Executive Directors and senior management. It also passed
one written resolution approving the bonus of individual Executive
Directors (excluding the Chairman and Chief Executive) and senior
management for the year of 2019. No member of Remuneration
Committee should be involved in deciding his own remuneration.

Remuneration Policy

The Company understands that a reasonable and comprehensive
remuneration package is an important factor in attracting, retaining
and motivating high quality personnel. As such, the Company works to
ensure that remuneration is competitive and aligned with the Company’s
objectives and performance. The Company takes into consideration
a number of relevant factors in determining its remuneration
policy, including the salaries paid by comparable companies, job
responsibilities, duties and scope, employment conditions in the Group,
market practices and the financial and non-financial performance of the
Company.

The Remuneration Committee considers factors such as the fees paid by
comparable companies, time commitment, the responsibilities and likely
workload of the relevant Directors and other employment conditions in
the Company to ensure that the Independent Non-executive Directors
and the Non-executive Directors are appropriately paid for their time and
responsibilities to the Company.
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The Company’s remuneration structure for its employees, (including the
Chairman and Chief Executive and the Executive Directors), is composed
of fixed compensation, cash performance bonuses, variable cash
incentives, long-term incentives and retirement schemes, as discussed
below.

Fixed compensation includes an employee’s basic salary, allowances
and benefits (e.g. medical). Basic salary and allowances are set and
reviewed annually for each position, taking into consideration the
Company’s remuneration policy, the Company’s and the individual’s
performance as well as market conditions and practices. Benefits are
regularly reviewed and determined largely on the basis of local standards
and practices.

Employees are also eligible to receive an annual cash bonus based on
their performance at the Group, business unit and individual levels. The
bonuses awarded to the Chairman and Chief Executive, the Executive
Directors and senior management are reviewed and approved by
the Remuneration Committee. In 2019, the cash performance bonus
component accounted for 43.9% of the total remuneration of the
Chairman and Chief Executive and the Executive Directors. Please
refer to Note 10(a) to the financial statements for details. In addition,
the Company operates sales and business-related incentive schemes
to motivate certain staff such as front-line sales associates to achieve
specific sales or other business targets of the Company.

The Company also operates share option schemes to provide long-term
incentives to reward and retain a high calibre management team. The
details of the schemes, together with information on options exercised
and outstanding in respect of the Directors and employees as at
December 31, 2019 under the schemes, are set out in the Share Option
Information section of this annual report.

Pursuant to the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, the
Company participates in a MPF scheme registered with the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Authority.

Details of Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments are set out in
Note 10 to the financial statements on pages 128 to 130 of this annual
report.

Management Committee

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
implementing its business strategies and managing the daily operations
of the Group’s businesses to the Management Committee. The
Management Committee is fully accountable to the Board and comprises
the Chairman and Chief Executive and the Executive Directors together
with one senior management representative.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group’s
strategic objectives, and maintaining appropriate and effective control of
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems, particularly
in respect of financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions, and, as such, monitors the effectiveness on an
ongoing basis.

Appropriate policies and procedures have been put in place to safeguard
the assets against unauthorized use or disposition; control over capital
expenditure; maintain proper and accurate accounting records and
enhance the reliability of financial reporting; and to ensure efficiency and
effectiveness of operations and compliance with the applicable laws
and regulations. Such policies and procedures are designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement,
loss, error or fraud, and to manage and minimize rather than eliminate
the risk of failure in the Group’s operational systems.

The Group’s risk management and internal control framework includes
the following major components:

o An organizational and governance structure with defined
responsibility, proper segregation of duties and delegated
authority;

° Systems and procedures of financial control, risk management
and internal control to identify and measure risks and conduct bi-
annual risk assessment to monitor the progress of risk mitigation;

° Operational and financial budgeting and forecasting systems for
performance measurement, including regular variance analysis
against budgets and plans, and setting key business performance
targets with appropriate measures to rectify deficiencies;

° Stringent policies and procedures for the appraisal, review and
approval of significant contracts, major capital and recurrent
expenditures;

° A “whistle-blowing” mechanism to allow the Group’s staff
to anonymously report any suspected acts of fraud or gross
misconduct by senior management, including that of the Chairman
and Chief Executive, to the Internal Audit Department which will
refer the report to the chairman of the Audit Committee for further
action; and

° Strict internal procedures and controls for the handling and

dissemination of inside information.
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The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems and the review
of its effectiveness to the Risk Management Committee. The Risk
Management Committee currently comprises four members, including
the General Counsel, the Director of Group Finance, the Internal Audit
manager and senior management representative. During the year,
the Company has engaged Deloitte, an external professional firm, as
our Internal Audit Advisor to assist the internal audit function of the
Company. The Committee reviews all material controls in accordance
with the Code Provisions on risk management and internal control
systems of the CG Code, and reports to the Board twice a year. The Risk
Management Committee is fully accountable to the Board for providing
assurance on managing and monitoring the systems of risk management
and internal controls. The Committee has evaluated and was satisfied
with the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of the staff
of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function as well as their
training programmes and budget for the year, and reported to the Board
that in all material respects the systems of risk management and internal
control over risks associated with the Group’s operations was sufficient,
appropriate and operated effectively on a continuing basis.

Co-operating closely with the Risk Management Committee, the IA
team plays a major role in monitoring the risk management and internal
controls of the Group.

The keys tasks of IA team include:

° Unrestricted access to review all aspects of the Group’s key
activities, risk management, control and governance processes;

° Conduct independent, comprehensive and regular audits
of financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions of business and support units and
subsidiaries, including recommending improvements and
monitoring corrective or remedial measures taken by the units and
subsidiaries to minimize risk exposure;

° Conduct special reviews of areas of concern identified by
Management or the Audit Committee;

° Investigation of business ethics, conflict of interest and other
Group policy violations; and

o Oversee the “whistle-blowing” mechanism.
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Adopting a risk-based approach, IA team implements the audit plan
approved by the Audit Committee and Management, which is based on
a risk assessment methodology. It furnishes independent and objective
evaluations and recommendations in the form of an internal audit report
to Management. The Internal Audit Advisor reports directly to the Audit
Committee twice a year on major findings, corrective actions and
responses from Management. The Audit Committee has free and direct
access to IA team without reference from the Chairman or Management.

During the year of 2019, both IA team and Internal Audit Advisor issued
the internal audit reports to the Audit Committee and Management,
which covered significant business processes and activities of the
Group. It worked with Management to establish action plans to address
any identified control weaknesses. Post-audit reviews were performed to
ensure those agreed actions have been implemented as intended.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS AND
EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted its own Code of Conduct for Securities
Transactions by Directors (the “Code of Conduct for Securities
Transactions”). This is on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules, and has been updated from time-to-time. Having
made specific enquiries to all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they
had complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code and
the Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions throughout the year
ended December 31, 2019.

In addition, the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Securities
Transactions by Specified Employees, which governs the securities
transactions of those employees who may possess or have access to
inside information. The said code covers areas such as prohibitions and
conduct in the dealing of the Company’s securities, avoidance of conflict
of interests and confidentiality of the Company’s information, etc. All
the specified employees are reminded of the compliance of the Code of
Conduct for Securities Transactions by Specified Employees every six
months.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements for each financial period to ensure that they give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Group, its financial performance
and cash flows for that period. The Group’s consolidated financial
statements are prepared in accordance with all relevant statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Directors
are responsible for ensuring that appropriate accounting policies are
selected and applied consistently, and that where judgment has been
applied and estimates made, they are prudent and reasonable.

The statement by the external auditor of the Group, PricewaterhouseCoopers,
regarding their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report
on pages 64 to 72 of this annual report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration charged by the Group’s external auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers and its affiliated firms for non-audit and
statutory audit services is set out below:

(U B & 8Er) (In HK$ million) 2019 2018
FEZRE (BEE@ENBER - Non-audit services (included tax-related
BTHEEEZER REMEBRRS) matters, certain agreed-upon
procedures work and other reporting
services) 1 1
EEEZ Statutory audit 5 5
“E Total 6 6

NAEME
BEYHEAEB2013FIARETRARIMWE - BINA
AEEREREEIEPE - BAEBERBER
ROTRBEMERSENESZSRHEER - UL
BEMMTEMREEER -

R ERER R 2019F NE ST ETRAIES. 295 E
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Mark Alan LOYND has been the Company Secretary since
September 2013. He is also an employee and the General Counsel of
the Group. Mr. LOYND is responsible for advising the Board through
the Chairman and Chief Executive on governance matters and facilitates
induction and professional development of Directors.

Mr. LOYND confirmed that he has complied with rule 3.29 of the Listing

Rules and received not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training in 2019.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019, there was adoption of New Bye-
Laws approved at the annual general meeting held on May 24, 2019.

If any amendment to the Bye-Laws is necessary, according to the
relevant law governing the Company, the Company will propose the
amendment for shareholders’ approval at a general meeting of the
Company.

INVESTOR AND SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

Earning shareholders’ trust and confidence has always been the major
emphasis of the Company’s efforts in investor relations. The Group’s
senior management keeps a constant and open dialogue with the
investment community through company visits, conference calls,
information sessions and patrticipation in major investor conferences to
communicate clearly the Company’s business strategies, developments
and prospects. About 22 meetings with institutional investors and
research analysts were held in 2019.

The Company has a wide and diverse shareholder base of institutional
and retail investors. To ensure all shareholders have equal and timely
access to important company information, the Company proactively
utilizes internet and other forms of electronic communication to deliver
information in a timely and transparent manner. To strike a balance
between keeping shareholders abreast of the Company’s performance
on one hand and avoiding an unhealthy focus on short-term results
on the other, the Company decided against following the CG Code
Recommended Best Practice of publishing quarterly financial results.
Instead, the Company publishes operations updates for the first three
and nine month periods on the websites of the Company and HKEX.
Annual and interim reports, Stock Exchange filings, press releases and
other materials are also accessible on the Company’s website.

The Board has established a shareholders’ communication policy and
will regularly review this policy to ensure its effectiveness to enhance
shareholders’ relationship with the Company and to comply with the
relevant rules and corporate governance code.

The Board welcomes shareholders’ views on matters affecting the
Group, and encourages their attendance at shareholders’ meetings
to communicate any concerns they may have with the Board or
Management directly. The Company’s AGM is an especially important
forum. In order to encourage and facilitate shareholder attendance at its
AGM, the Company gives at least 20 clear business days’ prior notice.
To ensure clear communication, each substantially separate issue is
proposed under a separate resolution.
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Investors and shareholders who wish to put forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings or to make enquiries of the Board may do so by
contacting our Investor Relations Department whose contact details are
listed on page 172 of this annual report.

Dividend Policy

Pursuant to Code Provision E.1.5, the Company has adopted a policy
with regard to the declaration of dividends on November 8, 2018. Such
policy aims to allow shareholders to participate in the Company’s profits
and for the Company to retain adequate reserves for future growth.

The Company intends to return surplus cash to the shareholders through
the payment of dividends, which is subject to the Company’s capacity
to pay from accumulated and future earnings, cash availability and future
commitments at the time of declaration of dividend.

The Company may also consider declaring special dividends from time-
to-time, in addition to the semi-annual dividends.

The Company’s income and its ability to pay dividends are dependent
upon, among other things, the dividends received from the Company’s
subsidiaries, which, in turn, would depend on such subsidiaries’
distributable profits, operating results, financial condition, capital
expenditure plans and other factors. The payment of dividend is also
subject to any restrictions under the Bermuda law and the New Bye-
Laws.

The Board has complete discretion on whether to pay dividends, subject
to the approval of the shareholders of the Company, where applicable.
Even if the Board decides to recommend and pay dividends, the form,
frequency and amount will depend upon the operations and earnings,
capital requirements and surplus, general financial condition, contractual
restrictions and other factors of and affecting the Group.

Dividend Policy reflects the Company’s view on the financial and cash-
flow position of the Group prevailing at the time of its adoption. The
Board will review the policy from time-to-time and may adopt changes as
appropriate at the relevant time.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholder(s) to convene a special
general meeting

Shareholders shall have the right to request the Board to convene a
special general meeting of the Company.

In accordance with the New Bye-Laws, shareholders holding at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth (1/10) of the paid-up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the Company Secretary or at the registered office of the Company,
to require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition pursuant to
Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Companies
Act”). If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionists themselves may do so in
accordance with the provision of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act.

The written requisition requiring a special general meeting to be called
can be sent to the Company’s registered office and its principal place of
business in Hong Kong as set out in the “Corporate Information” section
of this annual report for the attention of the Company Secretary.

Procedures for Shareholders to make a proposal at
general meeting

The following shareholders are entitled to put forward a proposal (which
may properly be put to the meeting) for consideration at a general
meeting of the Company:

(@) any members representing not less than one-twentieth (1/20) of the
total voting rights of the Company on the date of the requisition; or

(b)  not less than 100 members holding shares in the Company.
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The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the shareholders
concerned, together with a statement with respect to the matter referred
to in the proposal must be deposited at the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong. The Company would take appropriate actions
and make necessary arrangements, and the shareholders concerned
would be responsible for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto
in accordance with the requirements under Sections 79 and 80 of the
Companies Act once valid documents are received.

As regards proposing a person other than the retiring Director
for election as a Director in a general meeting, please refer to the
procedures available on the Company’s website.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquires and concerns to the
Board in writing through the Company Secretary at 5th Floor, Tin On

Industrial Building, 777-779 Cheung Sha Wan Road, Kowloon, Hong
Kong.

Hong Kong, March 10, 2020

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F #



BEEMARIRSAEFEEZ2019F12A31BILFE
S EIZA PSR -

FEEK

KRB AE—REEERAR - AEB X E2XE
B & T E N 5 i Giordano . Giordano Junior
Giordano Ladies ~ BSXUA N B BB MIRERKE 2
M - BEZEMEUATEME I AHEESEEZ -
BHNAEEERHEERDE - WHEFENRKER
AR o

2 EE R
AREBHZ2019F12 A31HIEFE A& K& M2
ZRBOMEHR A RERHIT S -

EBEE

BRAKEXFENERENAFRFESAEF23H
MIEREZwmAROMIZEHAR - @R AKE®T
e E E RN AR EZ N E R AF RO T
REOEE  RUBHRRMESLEFE - RAE
BYRFEERRE  UEFEHAEERTZENE
REN - ARENEBA SR AFHRE2R
EEBEAM [EEEZwmMA LT INERE - M5
ARABENBRRAEEUATE ARV ERES
RETZENFE164E @ AR [EEE 2wl RO ]
BHEA - ARAEATBRNERER 2B R AEE
MIRBERRERBENRTHRAFRFEESCGARE
ESG.40EW [T - Lg LB AMSEE] -

UNERDBAEEGRESNH &

BTERAERERER

HMERI A REF AERENL EALES BHE
BUERRRD - ER R QB ME G A STIE K 13 B
T EEgRERT M ERASERBETERR
EERTENBREER -

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 & #

EEEHRES
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors are pleased to submit their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
December 31, 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
business of the Group is the retail and distribution of men’s, women’s
and children’s fashion apparel under Giordano and Giordano Junior,
Giordano Ladies, BSX as well as other owned and licensed brands.
Although targeting different market segments, the brands all strive to
deliver excellent quality, value and service to consumers.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance by geography and by brand for
the year ended December 31, 2019 is set out in Note 5 to the financial
statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business is provided in the Management
Discussion and Analysis section on pages 8 to 23 of this annual report.
Description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group
can be found throughout this annual report, particularly in Note 3 to
the financial statements. No important event affecting the Group has
occurred since the end of the financial year under review. The outlook
of the Group’s business is discussed in the Management Discussion
and Analysis section on pages 22 to 23 of this annual report. Certain
financial key performance indicators which complement and supplement
our financial disclosures are set out on pages 73 and 164 as well as in
the Management Discussion and Analysis section. An account of the
Company’s relationships with its key stakeholders and discussions on
the Group’s environmental policies and performance are included in
the Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages ESG.1 to
ESG.40 of this annual report.

The above sections form part of the Directors’ Report.

Compliance with the applicable laws and regulations

We have in place compliance procedures to ensure adherence to
the relevant laws and regulations that are relevant to the Group. The
Board is responsible for reviewing and monitoring the Group’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
with the support and assistance of the legal and company secretarial
department.
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The Listing Rules, the Companies Ordinance and the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”) as well as their subsidiary legislation,
codes and guidelines are the principal sources of our compliance
obligations. Laws in other jurisdictions may also apply to our non-Hong
Kong operations, and both in Hong Kong and elsewhere, we rely on the
assistance of external law firms and professional advisers to manage our
legal and compliance risks.

We communicate information on relevant new laws or changes in laws
and regulations to our staff to ensure compliance, and also regularly
remind our staff of their compliance obligations.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2019 and the
financial position of the Company and of the Group as at that date are
set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 73 to 164 of
this annual report.

DIVIDENDS

An interim dividend of 10.2 HK cents per share was paid to shareholders
of the Company on September 20, 2019.

The Board has recommended a final dividend of 4.4 HK cents per share
for the year ended December 31, 2019. Subject to the approval of the
shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming AGM, the final dividend
will be payable on June 19, 2020 to shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company on June 4, 2020.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at December 31, 2019, the retained profits of the Company together
with the contributed surplus available for distribution amounted to
HK$157 million (2018: HK$316 million).

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at December 31,
2019 are set out in Note 38 to the financial statements.
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TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
ten fiscal years is set out on pages 2 and 3 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are shown in Note 24 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the New Bye-Laws
although there are no restrictions against having such rights under the
laws of Bermuda.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Company’s share option schemes as disclosed under
Share Option Information in this annual report, no equity-linked
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares or that
require the Company to enter into any agreements that will or may result
in the Company issuing shares were entered into by the Company during
the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The aggregate percentages of purchases attributable to the Group’s
major suppliers during the year are as follows:

Purchases
The largest supplier 43%
Five largest suppliers combined 64%

The percentage of the sales attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers is less than 10% during the year.

None of the Directors, their close associates, or any shareholders, which
to the knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the issued share
capital of the Company, had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five
largest suppliers and customers.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment during the
year are set out in Note 14 to the financial statements.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Donations made for charitable purposes by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$244,366 (2018: HK$28,000).

BANK LOANS

As at December 31, 2019, the Group had bank loans of HK$265 million
(2018: HK$298 million) that were repayable within one year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter (Chairman and Chief Executive)
Dr. CHAN Ka Wai

Mr. Mark Alan LOYND

Non-executive Directors
Dr. CHENG Chi Kong up
Mr. CHAN Sai Cheong

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT

Mr. KWONG Ki Chi Gss, JpP

Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu)
Dr. Alison Elizabeth LLOYD*

In accordance with Bye-Law 84(2) of the New Bye-Laws, Dr. CHENG
Chi Kong yp, Mr. CHAN Sai Cheong and Mr. KWONG Ki Chi GBs, Jp shall
retire by rotation at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, will offer

themselves for re-election.

*  Appointed on March 7, 2019
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Biographical details of the Directors as at the date of this report are set
out on pages 24 to 28 of this annual report.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to rule 13.51(B)(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in
information of our Directors since the report date of the interim report of

T - the Company for the period ended June 30, 2019 are set out below:
BEEHA EREH

Name of Directors Changes in information

2IE RAREFEFRITBBHE LG TH2019F1 A1 BB AHAE SRR -

LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter

BB 5l
CHENG Chi Kong

Dr. LAU, the Chairman and Chief Executive of the Company, has been an adjunct professor of
College of Business at CityU with effect from January 1, 2019.

ZIIE L HR2019F9A1HRHEZAHEREMEZEINIKE -
Dr. LAU has been an external member of the School of Business Advisory Committee of HKBU with
effect from September 1, 2019.

BETN2019F10A N BREZERTEIZREEBRARIZHITES -
Dr. CHENG was appointed as an executive director of NWS Holdings Limited on October 11, 2019.

EETR2020F2 A1 BB ERE RN RFBMEFR RG] ZITRESF -
Dr. CHENG was appointed as an executive chairman of New World China Land Limited on February

1, 2020.

B EXATIREESN 0 BARE 22019 HiRE B HA
PAZE - iRIE AR BIE13.51BIEETIREZES
BEFELEEME -
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Save as disclosed above, there is no other change in the Directors’
biographical details which is required to be disclosed pursuant to rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules since the date of 2019 interim report of the
Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM do
not have any service contract with the Company or its subsidiaries which
is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The New Bye-Laws provides that each Director or other officers of the
Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all losses or liabilities which he or she may sustain
or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his or her office or
otherwise in relation thereto. In addition, the Company has maintained
appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance in respect of
relevant legal actions against the Directors.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at December 31, 2019, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company and their respective
close associates in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO), as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 352 of the SFO; or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company

FESBERHE
Number of ordinary shares held
PTETE#ER
(BRE) BAERBE DL
(Btet1k2) (Kfat3)
BARER Derivative Approximate
EENR (HizE1) interests &5t percentage of
Name of Directors Personal interests (share options) Total shareholding
(Note 1) (Notes 1 & 2) (Note 3)
2)|[50 fE 27,518,000 — 27,518,000 1.74%
LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter
BREAR 600,000 7,700,000 8,300,000 0.52%
CHAN Ka Wai
‘BN 236,000 6,064,000 6,300,000 0.39%
Mark Alan LOYND
baE - Notes:
(1) s A E S TSN AR o (1) This represents interests held by the relevant Directors as beneficial owners.
@) PTAE T B4R 2 1B (7 T2 15 7K 1 G150 2 BE AR 1E = 2 7 ) Derivative interests are share options granted to the Directors pursuant to the share

RTEFZBRE BHENBINREFHEICREZE
1715

(8)  ER2019% 1231 H KA a2 #7178 171,678,600,5184%

o
B Pt EESN - 201991283818 AR AIEE

FEBTRABRWES B2 ERHEABENA
AR EAE A E (5 BE % RS 0I5
XVER) 2 Bt 8B AR S A2 o o A R R
EHRIE DI B2 R E B RN E
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option schemes of the Company and details of which are set out on pages 165 to 171
of this annual report.

3) Based on 1,578,500,518 shares of the Company in issue as at December 31, 2019.

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2019, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company or their close respective
associates had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Details of the continuing connected transactions and material related
party transactions are respectively disclosed under section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions” on pages 59 to 62 and in Note 36
to the financial statements of this annual report.

Save for the above, no other transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or
any its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or his connected
entity had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under Share Option Information section on pages
165 to 171 to this annual report, at no time during the year under review
was the Company, or any of its holding companies, fellow subsidiaries
or subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
(including their spouses and children under 18 years of age) to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company were entered into or existed during the
year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year, none of the Directors is interested in any business, apart
from the Group’s businesses, which competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s businesses.
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Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to the Directors or chief executive of the Company, as
at December 31, 2019, the following persons (other than Directors and
chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

BRERESL
RS EREE (Hi:#3)
Number of Approximate
TERRERE 5% ordinary percentage of
Name of substantial shareholders Capacity shares held shareholding
(Note 3)
BlackRock, Inc. RiEHDEE 2 Ea 110,443,518 6.99%
Interest of controlled corporation (K13t Note 2)
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) ZPEHEE 2 R 384,830,000 24.37%
Limited (4z# Note 1) Interest of controlled corporation
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings II) SPEHEB 2 s 384,830,000 24.37%
Limited (#72# Note 1) Interest of controlled corporation
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited ZEHER 2 384,830,000 24.37%
(K15# Note 1) Interest of controlled corporation
AREEER)BRAR([EARBER])  XESVEEZ #R 384,830,000 24.37%
Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited Interest of controlled corporation
("CTF") (K#s Note 1)
FRBREBAGRDR(EARERIBAL ZEGEER#n 384,830,000 24.37%
Chow Tai Fook Nominee Limited Interest of controlled corporation
("CTFN") (Htst Note 1)
Sino Wealth International Limited BEREAA 384,830,000 24.37%

(“Sino Wealth")

Wit -

(1)

@

3)

2019412431 H  Sino Wealth#¥ & 384,830,000/% 7%
DAk  BHEBAXERBAZEHE  MBEAAXELEA
Al B A #5115 %] - Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings)
Limited % Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings Il) Limited
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited% FIl#F 5 #749.0% X 46.7 %
#is  MChow Tai Fook Capital Limited B REIA #5118 5
F#981.0%# 7 + A Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings)
Limited ~ Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings II) Limited -
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited + EA 1808 R EIA #5 L 72
A ##2 ABRSino WealthFT# K 1 AR 17 H B #as o

BlackRock, Inc.# 5.2 110,443,518 A LN alflk (74 + &
1,060,00008 BIA R 25z IF FitEmiTAETA -

ZR2019F 12531 H A R A2 #7717 1,678,600,5184%
e
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Beneficial owner

Notes:

(1)

@

3)

As at December 31, 2019, 384,830,000 shares of the Company were held by
Sino Wealth which is a wholly-owned by CTFN, which in turn controlled by CTF.
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited and Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings )
Limited held approximately 49.0% and 46.7% interest in Chow Tai Fook Capital
Limited respectively, which in turn held an approximately 81.0% interest in CTF and
accordingly each of Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited, Cheng Yu Tung Family
(Holdings 1I) Limited, Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited, CTF and CTFN is deemed to
have an interest in the shares of the Company held by Sino Wealth.

110,443,518 shares of the Company were held by BlackRock, Inc. of which
1,060,000 shares were cash settled unlisted equity derivatives.

Based on 1,578,500,518 shares of the Company in issue as at December 31, 2019.
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Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2019, the Company had
not been notified of any interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Material related party transactions entered into by the Group during the
year, which do not constitute connected transactions under the Listing
Rules, are set out in Note 36 to the financial statements.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group conducted the following continuing
connected transactions, which are subject to the announcement
and reporting requirements, but are exempt from the circular and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the following continuing
connected transactions. When conducting the continuing connected
transactions during the year, the Company has followed the relevant
internal leasing evaluation policy.

(1) Pre-existing Agreements

Members of the Group and members of New World Department
Store China Limited (“NWDS”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“NWDS Group”) have in the past entered into leasing agreements
which include those that completed during the calendar year and
those that remain in force as immediately prior to the execution
of the Master Leasing Agreement (as defined below) regarding
the leasing of premises and/or concessionaire counters in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) by members of the Group
from members of the NWDS Group (the “Pre-existing Leasing
Agreements”). Most of the Pre-existing Leasing Agreements
comprise of short-term leases of one year or less, and as all of
the Pre-existing Leasing Agreements are subject to ordinary and
market rental terms based on calculation of turnover rent, (which in
turn is based on a percentage of the respective monthly turnover),
the monthly payable amount to be made by the Group to NWDS
Group will vary month by month.
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(3)

Qianhai Transactions

On December 6, 2018, a member of the Group and Shenzhen
Qianhai Chow Tai Fook Hong Kong Goods Centre Co., Ltd.
(“Qianhai CTF”) have entered into a letter agreement (the “Qianhai
Renewal Letter”) for the renewal of leasing of premises in the PRC
for a term commencing from December 7, 2018 to April 6, 2021.
The Qianhai Renewal Letter is subject to ordinary and market rental
terms based on calculation of the monthly rental, the management
fee and/or 15% of the monthly gross sales turnover (collectively,
the “Qianhai Transactions”). The Qianhai Renewal Letter was
terminated on August 31, 2019.

Master Leasing Agreement

(i) On December 29, 2017, the Company and NWDS entered
into a master leasing agreement (the “Master Leasing
Agreement”) pursuant to which the parties (i) recorded their
mutual understanding to enter into future lease agreements
with respect to the lease of premises and concessionaire
counters in the PRC from members of the NWDS Group;
and (i) set out the underlying principles of such future leases
for a term commencing from the date of the Master Leasing
Agreement up to December 31, 2019. The Master Leasing
Agreement was expired on December 31, 2019.

(i) ~ On December 31, 2019, the Company and NWDS entered
into a renewed master leasing agreement (the “Renewed
Master Leasing Agreement”) pursuant to which the parties
(i) recorded their mutual understanding to enter into future
lease agreements with respect to the lease of premises and
concessionaire counters in the PRC from members of the
NWDS Group; and (ii) set out the underlying principles of
such future leases for a term commencing from January 1,
2020 to December 31, 2022.
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The Renewed Master Leasing Agreement will expire on December 31,
2022 and will be automatically renewed for successive periods of 3 years
thereafter, subject to, among others, the Listing Rules, unless terminated
earlier in accordance with the Renewed Master Leasing Agreement.

As (i) Sino Wealth, a substantial shareholder of the Company, held
approximately 24.37% interest in the Company. Sino Wealth is wholly-
owned by CTFN, which is in turn controlled by CTF. Also, NWDS is
a subsidiary of New World Development Company Limited (“NWD”)
and Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited is a controlling shareholder
of NWD as well as a wholly-owned subsidiary of CTF; and (ii) Qianhai
CTF is owned as to approximately 50%, 30% and 20% by Chow Tai
Fook Enterprises Limited, Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited and
NWD, respectively and Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited is a
subsidiary of CTF; accordingly, each of the NWDS Group and Qianhai
CTF is a connected person of the Company and the transactions under
the Pre-existing Leasing Agreements, all future and renewals of the
existing leasing agreements contemplated under the Master Leasing
Agreement and the Renewal of Master Leasing Agreement and the
Qianhai Transactions constitute continuing connected transactions of
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

For details of the Pre-existing Agreements, Qianhai Agreement
and Master Leasing Agreement, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated December 29, 2017.

For details of the Qianhai Renewal Letter, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated December 6, 2018.

For details of the Renewed Master Leasing Agreement, please refer to
the Company’s announcement dated December 31, 2019.

The annual caps in respect of the continuing connected transactions for
the years ending December 31, 2017, 2018 and 2019 are HK$6 million,
HK$10 million and HK$15 million, respectively.

For the year ended December 31, 2019, the turnover rent paid or
payable to NWDS Group and Qianhai CTF by the Group amounted to
approximately HK$2.73 million, which is within the annual cap of HK$15
million.
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Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions and confirmed that these continuing
connected transactions were entered into:

(@)  inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(b)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(c) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Company’s independent auditor was
engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions
stated in the above paragraphs in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has issued his unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the
Group in accordance with rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of
the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any connected
transactions which were subject to the reporting requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the year.

SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

A summary of the Company’s share option schemes and details of the
movement in share options of the Company during the year are set out
on pages 165 to 171 of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during the year ended
December 31, 2019.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float required under the Listing Rules, based on the information
that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the
Directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance so as to ensure better transparency and protection of
shareholders’ interests. Information on the Company’s corporate
governance practices is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 29 to 50 of this annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The employees of the Group are selected, remunerated and promoted
on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence. Please refer
to Note 2 to the financial statements for details of the retirement benefits
provided to employees of the Group.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration
Committee of the Company, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market standards.
Particulars of the emoluments of Directors on a named basis for the year
are set out in Note 10 to the financial statements.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been audited
by PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution to re-appoint
PricewaterhouseCoopers as independent auditor of the Company and
to authorize the Directors to fix its remuneration will be proposed for
approval at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board
LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter

Chairman and Chief Executive

Hong Kong, March 10, 2020
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TO THE MEMBERS OF
GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Giordano International Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 73 to
164, which comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2019;
° the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

° the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
° Adoption of HKFRS 16 — Leases
° Goodwill impairment and valuation of put option liability

° Valuation of inventory

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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BREITSE
Key Audit Matter

BMNETNAERERETSE
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

RMCERBMBREELEAE165 —HE)
Adoption of HKFRS 16 - Leases

BRHEHUBIRENFT 16 [EHAEEEMNHEEER
& BETHEF BN F2(2) R EESFHEE R HET
gy bt at4vii) o

Refer to note 15 “Right-of-use Assets and Lease
Liabilities” and Accounting Policies note 2(z) and
Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements in
note 4(vii) to the consolidated financial statements.

ERER2019F1 A1 BERMCEB M B IMELRE
1655 —HEN [ EBMBMELAE165%]) - W&
BEMNKAFER MEAERLERET - HHE
HREFENESERAREN2019F1 A1 B EHY)
EHEEBBERNER - R2019F1A18 - &
EEBERNHEEEEA11.1EE T BB R ERE
BERIBTAEETT °

The Group adopted HKFRS 16 — Leases (“HKFRS
16”) on 1 January 2019 and elected to apply the
new standard under the modified retrospective
method, which does not require restatement
of comparatives. The reclassifications and the
adjustments arising from the new leasing standard
are recognized in the opening consolidated
balance sheet on 1 January 2019. Lease liabilities
of HK$1,110 million were recognized on 1 January
2019 together with corresponding right of use
assets of HK$1,374 million.

HRACHEBMBMELAZE165) HEHMBHREDN
FEEXN RESHEHERA  URETEER
RN MK F SR EL &2 H b R A5 -

The impact to the consolidated financial
statements of adopting HKFRS 16 is significant
due to the large volume of leases amount.
Significant judgements and estimates are involved
in determining the appropriate discount rates and
lease terms.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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We obtained an understanding of management’s assessment of the
application of the new standard, including validating key controls in place

over the identification and recognition of leases.

BARESOHE LB FPIEEEOMRE - FETEEENGEERRR
BEE  BRAGEMEEENK LEREE-

We assessed the appropriateness of management’s assessments of
the identification of leases, including those with renewal and termination
options, based on the contractual agreements and our knowledge of the
business.

BMUEEEEGTHEREZ - YUHEAX - AR TSEHEER R
BHR(BEEROFAREENFOIBPIEERESL

We obtained a summary of leases from management, and tested, on
a sample basis, the key terms of each lease including lease terms and
lease payments by tracing such information to the underlying lease
contracts.

BPRBANGR EENEERBER - URBMAEEBOME - 771
THETRE X RELOFRMENHE LA IR -

We assessed the judgements and estimates involved in determining
the discount rates and the lease terms based on the contractual terms,
nature and condition of the assets and our knowledge of the business.

BAAMES R - AR TREBEHEENK
HEEE-

We tested, on a sample basis, the mathematical calculation of the lease
liabilities based on lease payments, the discount rates and the expected
lease terms.

MR EREOFRAEN

BMRA  BEEENRM(EBNBRE
BIREEBXE -

We found the key assumptions made by management in respect of
the adoption of HKFRS 16 were supportable based on the available
evidence.

R 165%) R ERANEREKRR
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BMNETNAERERETSE
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BEREREHAHESEENGE
Goodwill impairment and valuation of put
option liability

BREEHUBIHREN T 17 HE] - fiF28[#H
BOLHIRERE ] EETHE R A2k 2R E
EE a1 KA B 89T 4(0) K 4(v) -

Refer to note 17 “Gooawill”, note 28 “Put Option
Liabilities”, Accounting Policies notes 2(k) and 2(t)
and Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
in notes 4(ii) and 4(v) to the consolidated financial
Statements.

JIRREHEEABRNBBHAGS46EET - H
F5.41EE TR B R ES NP RER(LATE
BIRREK] - WBOPEECRIEBZTREESE
B (AT [ ReEEEET]) - ETHERE
AR o BN RERAEIRGFER P REBHIEE
HIMERRARANRSRERTD - RAHREENSE
BEEEBEBEXRANABREENS - R2019F124
31 EXEXRLHEAERCSIEET -

Of the HK$546 million goodwill on the consolidated
balance sheet, HK$541 million arose from
the acquisitions of the Giordano Middle East
businesses (the “Middle East Business”), which has
been allocated to a group of cash generating units
(“CGUs”) for the purpose of goodwill impairment
testing. In addition, put options exist over the
remaining interests held by the non-controlling
shareholders of the Middle East Business. The
put option liability is measure at value of the
redemption amounts at each balance sheet date,
and as at 31 December 2019, amounted to HK$59
million.

W HE R SRR TS PR IS B ) P] T & RE AT ik B2 320 BR
REENMEANEEERENRERBARE
B WERARBEREHERAKTE -

The assessments of the recoverable amount of the
goodwill and the put option liability valuation for
the Middle East Business were based on the same
cash flow projections prepared by management,
using fair value less costs to sell calculations.

BRI ZERERRAAMERE SR EEEMF
REBARKEBEENEZ HE -

We focussed on these balances because the
valuation models involve significant judgements
made by management about the future results of
the Middle East Business.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 & #

BMEAETEEREREMEERARANGERE  MERZEG
BEEGHNEE MR EEGEER - B AREESHEN TN
TEEETHER - AR BMESELEREREE ZAINEEETHE
8 UAHERENEAES -

We evaluated management’s valuation models by assessing the
appropriateness of the valuation methodology, the process and controls
by which the models were drawn up and compared the underlying
inputs to the latest Board approved budget. We also compared historic
actual results to those budgeted to assess the quality of management’s
forecasting.

BMESWRIFTERHANBRERERA - FilZ
We have focussed on the key assumptions and inputs used in the
calculations, particularly:

. KANRBABRFEE  WRBEBARMITEREKEFEENFLL
BERNE AR AHZENHREETIME
the risk adjusted discount rates used, and assessed these against
the cost of capital of the relevant companies and industry and
country specific comparable entities;

. AR FEHEEREXEBSEAS TINGRIERE  BRAELARE
WR AR REBRGEENZOEBD - KAUFETESEREEN
LRI EEITEA SRS NE R A RIEAETT
LEER o
the projected annual sales growth rates and the terminal growth
rates for the CGUs, as these were considered to be the key
drivers of the valuation of the Middle East Business. We compared
management’s assumptions of these against external retail
industry outlook reports and country specific economic growth
forecasts from different sources.
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FEME

Valuation of inventory

FREE B HRENF22[FE ] - SFFHETH
Wiit2n) R EZ & a1 KA aybf it 4(v) -
Refer to note 22 “Inventories” and Accounting
Policies note 2(n) and Critical Accounting
Estimates and Judgements in note 4(iv) to the
consolidated financial statements.

R2019F 128310 BEEEKFIF G5 R5.48
BT - FEERKAETERFENREEIITR
O ImE - RETEFENAERFEHEAG
T BAlgER ERELEMEMELERRE
AR %P an bR A5 5 T R T 5 6 1 B P
REHTTEIN B LR -

The net inventory balance at 31 December 2019
was HK$548 million. Inventory is carried in the
consolidated financial statements at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. The net realisable
value of inventory in the apparel industry is difficult
to estimate and could be impacted by changes in
economic conditions in places where the Group
operates, as well as changes in customer taste
and competitor actions in response to changes in
market conditions.

BT ZEERRA ARG IR FEERSER
TEE B MG RN A F E /L 6 o

We focused on this area due to the inherent
complexity and judgement in estimating the
amount of inventory provisions required.

AT

?

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF

BMEETERRBASFEAALHTT B OBURIEAR - EULBR
PHEMEBRREARET —EEUENSEHE  UWEEEMABRERGE
TRE o ) &= RS HOH R ©

We reviewed management’s sensitivity analysis and performed our own
sensitivities, where we flexed the key assumptions within a reasonable
range, to determine at what level the headroom in the model would be
eliminated.

ERBAER  BARREBENGHERRKANHBNRRERBIERE
SFF e

We were satisfied that management’s judgements and assumptions
used in the valuation were supportable, based on the available evidence
obtained.

BUER TREEBEMAFFEAZRFERTHECBRETRME
IEEBRRAR T -

We have obtained an understanding of the key procedures implemented
by management in estimating the net realisable value of inventories and
periodic reviews of inventory obsolescence.

BPMARATZEERZRTIAZH»ENTFERES  UERGFE S HER
BRHEEN - WARBERANENE T AL EGLL A E®ME -
We tested a sample of inventory items categorised into different
seasons of the year to gain comfort over the categorisation and ageing
of inventory and recalculated, on a sample basis, the mathematical
accuracy of the provision percentage applied.

RB2EFLHELR  BMNEUEEBEYENBEEFRTFERT KNE
BIREE R - DRl EFEEBENSEMN - BMESFFEBEBEER
HEREERIHEHETLER - W EFEEEN SR -

We assessed the reasonableness of the provisions by challenging
management’s projections on current trends and demands for the
remaining inventories, with reference to historic sales experience.
We also assessed the reasonableness of the inventory provisions by
comparing a sample of inventory items to actual post year end sales.

ERBARE  HMARSEEERHERRANBRRERAEESS

We found the assumptions made by management in respect of the
inventory provisions were supportable based on the available evidence.
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ERREBEFRAHEMERAR - HMEEREREFR
NEHAAES  BETEEGEEFBRELRANEK
BN L -

BHPEEHPBERRINBEAALTNEEEMES - R
I THZFEMERBRREMTANEZTES -

BAERMEAHMBRERNET  RPANEEEH
HEMES  AHEART  ZEHEMBEEREHES
HHBHER AR MEETBRETABRENBRFE
BEANEBREUFFEERHERRANER -

EREMESHTHOIE  RERARBEMESTT
EEAHERRL  RMATERESZEE -HES
|- BFPRBEEMSRSE -

EERAEERSHUYBRRAREN
B

BERREZARARBEEEHMAERHMN(E
AR BREER) REECRTHED) R E B E 2K
BREEEMTENAHIBERE  YHERBRE
B OB RER M EE T BN REF R B2
MBE A RRAPTFHABEHER

EREEHVBRRE  EFA5FE E5EF
BREMEEN  YEERBATRREEASELES
BER  URERFEKESSHER  RIFE
EEER BEXEBRIELLE  SFIEEGE
BREVERITER -

EEENMBEHREERE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 & #

BUZBERES
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all of the information included in the annual report
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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BREMBET SN M BRRAENSR

BAWBER RHAHVBERRERBESAEFEAR
PR ERRF Sk EE AR 1 B Z M B K8 R BUS & BB AR
F o OUYHABREMEENZIE RS - HAE
m ETUERER)RREREI1BIF(RARE)
FO0MGME - BRI ZINARTRE B EEAD B A - A
TERABENARAEAMEMALE ESHARE
MEME - BEFREZLFKFORE - ETEREBR
RCEBEEL)ETOHET  EX -—EAHERK
MAFER BRI - #5 SR B AT LA BRGF sl 88 AR 5
B MRAEEBHEMEBKELLEKAEZES
BFRA 75 R (6 A B KRR & BF R 75 SR P AR OI8O
RTE - RIE RS RR IR AT R AR EE K -

ERBC(EBFAERDETRAEES - HIFE
RTEZRHE - REFTERIREEE - BT

o HRIAMFHEBRNKFFRERMERA H I
WREFEERFERRANER - RETRHTT
EiREF AR E LR - JARERTEEM
EEMNENRE  FRERMABERMNER - /A
REFFARESRER  BE F5ER &
R - SORBERABESH 2 £ Bt REe
I R IRFE M G B B A SR AR R # [ =
TR BE 3 3R R 35 AR T B B e B ARS8 AR PR AL 9
e

o THREZHAMORNBES  XREE
BiEF  BEMLFY BEERNBZ
MBRIERRER -

s HEEFARAGHTRENBREERELE
FHART AR EN SN -
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

QOur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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o 38R HE P AR I B0 (E T ARG o
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B ARRE R ERMBELIENMERERNEME
B LWREERERT - HREHiEE
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
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The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent

auditor’s report is Tse Ming Yee.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, March 10, 2020
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

HZE2019F12A31HILFE
For the year ended December 31, 2019

(Br &R FIS) (In HK$ million, ftet

KB EETAENM) except earnings per share) Note 2019 2018
HERE Sales 5 4,852 5,509
SHE AN Cost of sales 7 (2,006) (2,259)
EH Gross profit 2,846 3,250
HE A R EMWE - EEE Other income and other gains, net 6 83 86
DB Distribution expense 7 (2,300) (2,440)
THER Administrative expense 7 (232) (271)
48R T Operating profit 7 397 625
MEEH Finance expense 8 (55) (5)
JE(EE ERB) & Share of profit of joint ventures 18 63 64
R P15 150 Al 4 A Profit before income taxes 5 405 684
PRI Income taxes 11 (116) (142)
REERFABHABER Profit after income taxes for the year 289 542
FE1h Attributable to:

ZIN/NET 3 Shareholders of the Company 230 480

FEFESI MR A Non-controlling interests 59 62

289 542

PN/NET 3y S g Earnings per share attributable to

BRRAF) shareholders of the Company 12

EHAKRGENM) Basic (HK cents) 14.6 30.5

B5E BN ) Diluted (HK cents) 14.6 30.4
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HZE2019F12A31H L FE
For the year ended December 31, 2019
Htet
(A B EETAEN) (In HK$ million) Note 2019 2018
REERAEHERER Profit after income taxes for the year 289 542
Hiima s - Other comprehensive income:
KO EFHIEEIEEEIEB Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
REMESWRIR AR ERE Y Fair value change on financial asset at
CREEANEED fair value through other
comprehensive income 19 (1) (10)
BINRB AT - AEAFI R Exchange adjustments on translation of
DARIRE 7 IE AR overseas subsidiaries, joint ventures and
branches (6) (65)
AEEHEZESWRE Total comprehensive income for the year 282 467
L Attributable to:
ZIN/NE] )23 Shareholders of the Company 217 414
FEVE SR Non-controlling interests 65 53
282 467

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

201912 H31H
December 31, 2019

BZ12A31H
B et As at 31 December
(X BEETREL) (In HK$ million) Note 2019 2018
BE ASSETS
EREEE Non-current assets
VI - R REE Property, plant and equipment 14 171 207
FREEE Right-of-use assets 15 1,279 -
B Investment properties 16 23 25
EE= Goodwill 17 546 546
BENRER Interest in joint ventures 18 538 552
REMGERSEZ AN ERE . SREE Financial asset at fair value through
other comprehensive income 19 5 6
REBREERAAREREZ S BEE Financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss 20 28 28
HMELRBSENRE Leasehold land and rental
prepayments 21 5 134
HeExe Rental deposits 181 122
BEHIBERE Deferred tax assets 29 54 47
2,830 1,667
REEE Current assets
F&E Inventories 22 548 552
HETH RESTENFIE Leasehold land and rental
prepayments 21 6 62
REZEEANEEREEZCRHEE Financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss 20 200 -
JREE 52 B R R Lt LS K Trade and other receivables 23 353 528
R RIRTTET Cash and bank balances 31 1,259 1,315
2,366 2,457
EEHAE Total assets 5,196 4,124
EakAE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
BRAR #E Capital and reserves
[N Share capital 24 79 79
s Reserves 27 2,492 2,450
BOR AR B Proposed dividends 13 69 260
ViNNEI Y g Equity attributable to shareholders
of the Company 2,640 2,789
FEFE R Non-controlling interests 25 207 220
R Total equity 2,847 3,009
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EHEEREXR(A)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (continued)

2019412 H31H
December 31, 2019

HZ=12A31H
k23 As at 31 December
(KB EETRENN) (In HK$ million) Note 2019 2018
ERBERS Non-current liabilities
HEBRE Lease liabilities 15 572 -
BELEHIBAR Deferred tax liabilities 29 125 123
697 123

REBEE Current liabilities
JE A BR 3R M Eo At B A 3R Trade and other payables 30 692 476
HEAE Lease liabilities 15 536 -
BRI EEaE Put option liabilities 28 59 121
RITEN Bank loans 32 265 298
FEATFTIS TR Income tax payables 100 97

1,652 992
EE%E Total liabilities 2,349 1,115
xRk aERE Total equity and liabilities 5,196 4,124
FREBEE Net current assets 714 1,465
EEHAERABEE Total assets less current liabilities 3,544 3,132
2R RE#E
LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter CHAN Ka Wai
E3 EFE
Director Director

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

A X EBAERLE
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

EHEERE R

HZE2019F12A31HILFE
For the year ended December 31, 2019
Htet

(KEEETREN) (In HK$ million) Note 2019 2018
mEER Operating activities:
Br TS T A A Profit before income taxes 405 684
THE Adjustments for:
FE1E & &N R A Share of profit of joint ventures 18 (63) (64)
RERRE AR EREZ Fair value loss on financial asset

SMEEZ AN EREE at fair value through profit or loss 6 1 -
HELH & Amortization of leasehold land and

TS TEN FRIEE Y rental prepayments 21 9 72
FBWA Interest income 6 (21) (20)
ME - HERRER Depreciation of property, plant and

EMERE equipment and investment properties 7, 14, 16 97 107
FHREEENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 7,15 605 -
HEME - HRER Net loss on disposal of property,

B2 FEE plant and equipment 6 1 2
Y - MR REREZRERE Impairment of property, plant and equipment 7, 14 11 -
FREEE ZRERBE Impairment of right-of-use assets 7, 15 26 -
PR & 17 E BB M AE & hlss Provision for obsolete stock and stock written off 7 6 9
AR BME Provision for doubtful debts 23 17 9
ZNEE A AT U [ FE U AR R Receivables written off during the year as

17 2 18 uncollectible 23 (4) )
BEixEE R Share option expense 9 1 3
BEER Finance expense 8 55 5
FE 37 28 Exchange difference 3 (26)
HiEES  FIBR Operating cash inflow before changes in

e 2 &2\ ERA working capital, interest and income taxes 1,149 779
& 218 Increase in inventories 2 (37)
JFE LT B iR B EL A R R 2 Decrease/(increase) in trade and

md,(Em) other receivables 93 8)
JEMEBRFR N EMENARZ Decrease in trade and other payables

e (2 (10)
KEEBFIEA RS Cash generated from operations 1,238 724
=ERpIS] Interest paid (55) ()
B ESFIER Hong Kong profits tax paid (1 (47)
o AESNEIE Overseas tax paid (114) (133)
REEBRCBHSRNFE Net cash inflow from operating activities 1,068 539
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EOHREREXR(E)

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continued)

HZE2019F12A31H L FE
For the year ended December 31, 2019

Htet
(XBEEBTRERL) (In HK$ million) Note 2019 2018
REEK . Investing activities:
EBEYE SN RE Purchase of property, plant and equipment 14 (76) (84)
HEME - WSS RERHEZ Proceeds from disposal of property,

FTiS30A plant and equipment 1 -
HELH MBS BFKIBEZIEIN  Increase in leasehold land and rental prepayments 21 (4) (68)
RITTHFER 2 (4E) R (Increase)/decrease in bank time deposits 31 (116) 142
B U F & Interest received 21 20
SR E=RTNEI ¥, Dividends received from joint ventures 18 54 52
REE£¥K2BHE(FRH)FA Net cash (outflow)/inflow from

HE investing activities (120) 62

RLE T Financing activities:
BATIRAFT SRR Proceeds from issue of shares - 33
HERSZ20%m),m (Increase)/decrease in rental deposits (59) 13
FREEEZHAENK Leases payment for right-of-use assets (11) -
HESTHZARLSIHD 2R Payment for principal elements of lease payments (507) -
BAME R T ED Payment for acquisition of partial interest of

¥R R subsidiaries (37) (6)
A& 1 = B Share repurchase - (1)
B IEiE S A R R B Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (52) (49)
RN, Dividends paid (421) (583)
HILIRITER Addition of bank loans 209 _
BEERITER Repayment of bank loans (332) -
MEXEESRHFE Net cash outflow from financing activities (1,120) (593)
HERBREEEZGRD), i (Decrease)/increase in cash and

cash equivalents (172) 8
FORER Cash and cash equivalents at the

ReZEEER beginning of the year 1,142 1,150
RePBESEENMEER Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

gEowE on cash and cash equivalents - (16)
FHREAER Cash and cash equivalents at the

RE%EER end of the year 970 1,142
RERAESEELEFZDN ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS
Re RIRITETT Cash and bank balances 31 1,259 1,315
B FRAEEB=RANE Less: Bank deposits with maturity over
BIEY 2 SRITE K three months, from date of deposit (289) (173)
970 1,142
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(HBEETAER)
(In HKS millon)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

ARARRESRR
Attributable to shareholders of the Company

For the year ended December 31, 2019

EHREZEH X

HE2019%F12A310ILEE

B4
Share
capital

YRS
Contributed
surplus

ERRERE
Capital
redemption
reserve

RV
Share
premium

ERERE
Share
options
reserve

EiRRE
Exchange
reserve

HibfE
Other
reserves

REMEARE
RAMEREZ
EREERRE
Financial asset
at fair value
through other
comprehensive
income reserve

ity
Retained
profits

At
Total

FEAp
i
Non-

controlling
interests

BRAE
Total
equity

R2018512A318
At December 31, 2018

79

383

978

2

(10)

I}

8

1,267

2,789

220

3,009

fHIRRE

Change in accounting policy
RAERHBRERRE 16503
Adjustment on adoption of HKFRS 16

01951418
At January 1, 2019

79

383

978

2

(10)

2

B

1,274

2,796

220

3,016

RERRAER LR
Profit after income taxes for the year
Afbsala
Other comprehensive income:
-REMGAYERAL EREL SHEE
AEHEH

Fair value change on financial asset at

fair value through other comprenensive

income
-EOMBAT  AERARARAREL
ER A%
Exchange adjustment on translation of
overseas subsidiaries, joint ventures
and branches

(12)

U]

230

230

Ul

(12

59

289

U]

G

(12)

U]

230

27

65

282

BRRLG
Transactions with shareholders:
FEREE
Transfer among reserves
ERiEtE
Share option scheme

-BREER

Share option expense

FEbILEERS
Dividends to non-controlling interests
RE-SRBHEARIREER AL

RiigRa R

Put option liabilties lapse from further acquisition

of partial interest of subsidiaries
B SREHBLAI EaTiEL 229

Recognition arising from further acquisition of

partial interest of subsidiaries
1BERFRE (Wit 13p)
2018 finl dividend (Note 1305)
0195 R R E M 136)
2019 interim dividend (Note 13/3)

)

8

62

(17)

(260)

(161)

62

(17)
(260)

(161)

(54)

(24)

(52)

62

(4
(260)

(161)

ARARRLERAAARRR KA
Total contributions by and distributions to
shareholders of the Company

4

(415)

(373)

(78)

(451)

ARFERS
Total transactions with shareholders

4

(415)

(373)

(78)

(451)

R2019%12831R
At December 31, 2019

7

383

978

2

(22)

114

“

1,089

2,640

207

2847
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EHEREBR(E)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)
HE2019F12A31BILFE

For the year ended December 31, 2019

ARARFELER
Attributable to shareholders of the Company

REfEANE
BALEREZ
SHAERA
AEE  Financal asset JEiERlE
BRBE S BiRERE CHAERR at fair value R
BE BARS Coptel ~ RIVEE Share  [EREE  EiEE  Avalablefor thoughother S Non-  HEREE
(UBEATEEL) Share  Contriouted  redemption Share options  Exchange Other  salefinancial ~ comprehensive Retained A3 controling Total
(In HK$ millon) capital surplus reserve premium reserve reserve reserves  assetreserve  income reserve profits Total interests equity

R2017E128318
At December 31, 2017 79 383 3 945 19 4% 70 7 - 1,369 2921 220 3,141

gHIRRE
Change in accounting policy - - - B - - - U 7 - - - _

R2018%1A18
At January 1, 2018 79 383 3 945 19 46 0 - 7 1,369 2,921 220 3141

RERRAEREER
Profit after income taxes for the year - - - - - - - - - 480 480 62 542
Afpals
Other comprehensive income:
-REMGARERD L EREL
SREELLENED
Fair value change on financial asset at
fair value through other comprehensive
income - - - - - - - - (10) - (10) - (10)
-BIMBAF  ARRARARA
REZEREE
Exchange adjustment on translation of
overseas subsidiaries, joint ventures
and branches - - - - - 56) - - - - (56) 9 (65)

=

f5alha
Total comprehensive income - - - - - 56) - - (10) 480 44 53 467

BHERRS
Transactions with shareholders:
REHRE
Transfer among reserves - - - - @ - ] - - 2 ] - @
Bzl
Share option scheme

~fifeiiRE

Exercise of share options - - - 38 - - - - - - 33 - 33
-[ERiEER
Share option expense - - - - 3 - - - - - 3 - 3

FEHILERRS
Dividends to non-controlling interests - - - - - - 3 - - - 3 (52) (49)
REE-EHEAT SR ERmANL

R BEaE
Recognition of put option liability lapse from

repurchase of partial interest of a subsidiary - - - - - - 6 - - - 6 - 6
REE-ENEARDhEEMEL 2D
Recognition arising from repurchase of

parial interest of a subsidiary - - - - - - () - - - (9) (1) 6
NTERERE (Wit 13p)
2017 final divicdend (Note 13(b)) - - - - - - - - - (315) (315) - (315)
N18ERFRE (Wi 150)
2018 interim dividend (Note 13(3) - - - - - - - - - (268) (268) - (268)
BERHE R (Hi240)
Shares repurchased and cancelled (Vote 24(c ) - - - - - - - - - (1) (1) - (1)

ARARELERAARARRARES
Total contributions by and distributions to
shareholders of the Company - - - 33 1 - 2 - - (582) (546) (53) (599)

ARFLRS
Total transactions with shareholders - - - 38 1 - 2 - - (582) (546) (53) (599)

H20185127318
At December 31, 2018 7 383 3 18 20 (10 n - (3 1,267 2,789 220 3,009

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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RARR1995F 3 ASHIRIE B RIE1981F
REVEEBRETIMA L2 ERRERE T
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Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM10,
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M FENERER -

(a) MREXE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

201912 H31H
December 31, 2019

GENERAL INFORMATION

Giordano International Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) distribute and sell fashion apparel under the
brand names of Giordano and Giordano Junior, Giordano Ladies,
BSX as well as other owned and licensed brands through an
extensive network with approximately 2,400 shops spanning over
30 countries and regions.

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda on March 3, 1995 as
an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda. The address of its registered office is
Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM10,
Bermuda. The address of its principal place of business in Hong
Kong is 5th Floor, Tin On Industrial Building, 777-779 Cheung Sha
Wan Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company has its primary
listing on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 709).

The consolidated financial statements have been presented in
million of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$ million) unless otherwise
stated. These consolidated financial statements have been
approved for issue by the board of directors (the “Board”) on
March 10, 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) of the Stock Exchange and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for certain financial assets and liabilities
(including derivative instruments) measured at fair value.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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B %% R M EE (4R )
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2019412 H31H
December 31, 2019

2.

TESTHHE(E)
(a) MREE(E)

(b)

HEEREBYHRELENREGBREK
HHEEMR - LEZEE - EEE
Nk BERAARE 2 5 BRFED
HI o — BB FE HE P05 KA
B HAHYBHRRBEEATEZR
RAMAEE M 4R -

FHRELKER2ENNEE
AREBEAUTESSHIIASERZ
RSN 2 BBV S REER - I
R2019F1 A1k 2 kA2 A& E
BT E AR
- BB GRS ERF165HAE
- BB REEREH ZIBFT A
BEMEZEMEE

- BREGFEN(EZBGER])
FBRZERTMERGEDLEY
RS

- BB RS %R 22015-2017
FEAF S

- BAREFERFE19R 2B
BR] - MEREAEE &

- EA(ERUBHREREZE
g) —REF2RREHEMEHE
B2 AT

AEBRFRABT BV HEREERF 1657
BREANEEGTTHR - TESFTHRD
SEH T XHTE2(d) - IR EXXHE
e ER R RRA AN ERTE
ERAEEN G BORAMFERA TR

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(a)

(b)

Basis of preparation (continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgment in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 4.

Impact of new and amended standards

The Group has applied the following new and amendments
to HKFRS issued by the HKICPA which were effective for the
Group’s financial year beginning on or after January 1, 2019:

- HKFRS 16 Leases;

- Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation;

- Amendments to Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKAS”) 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures;

- Amendments to Annual Improvements to HKFRS
Standards 2015-2017 Cycle;

- Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment,
Curtailment or Settlement; and

- Hong Kong (IFRIC)-Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over
Income Tax Treatments.

The Group had to change its accounting policies as a result
of adoption HKFRS 16. Changes in principal accounting
policies are set out in Note 2(d) below. The adoption of other
above new effective interpretation and the amendments to
existing standards did not result in substantial changes to
the Group’s accounting policies or financial results.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F #



MBHRRWE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. FEETEHRE)

(c)

(d)

B9 5 18 14 R 4 3 BT AT RS
BT 2 B B 5

AREE I IR ATEAZEER/MEE AR
ERREFN AT MARIER] < BRI R 2 8 - %
MR EEANBER TS HARENMHE
BBRBEATE -

TEETEENES
AW ERFARMET B BRELERF16
RHEHARBHMBHRRITE -

n 32 () Al - AREEE 520194F
1A1ARBEPRMNE BN EWMEERE
165 E - RIBEEBEERLF

WEET2018F [EFREALLEEH T -
Eit - SRR EENEFH D BN
BE019F1A1EHMBMEEARBER
FHER o TS ETHREM F2(2)

&= o

RERNE B BHREERIE165 - A
EEERARIRIEE BT ELE17HH
HEZENDERMCENE INWHER
REEAE ZETAERAENRSBE
MIREFE @ WIEAREEEZ201941
A1B MRS E R RiETINIE - A&
ER2019F1 A1HERREEAEN
FISE N F KR FEA1.3%=F10.0% °
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201912 H31H
December 31, 2019

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(c)

(d)

New and amended HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the new and amended
standards and interpretations that have been issued but not
yet effective. The adoption of these are not expected to have
a material impact on the financial results of the Group.

Change in principal accounting policies

This Note explains the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16
Leases on the Group’s financial statements.

As indicated in Note 2(b) above, the Group has adopted
HKFRS 16 Leases retrospectively from January 1, 2019,
but has not restated comparatives for the 2018 reporting
period, as permitted under the specific transition provisions
in the standard. The reclassifications and the adjustments
arising from the new leasing rules are therefore recognized
in the opening balance sheet on January 1, 2019. The new
accounting policies are disclosed in Note 2(z).

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognized lease
liabilities in relation to leases which had previously been
classified as ‘operating leases’ under the principles of HKAS
17 Leases. These liabilities were measured at the present
value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using
the Group’s incremental borrowing rates as of January 1,
2019. The Group’s incremental borrowing rates applied to
the lease liabilities on January 1, 2019 ranged from 1.3% to
10.0%.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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B %% R M EE (4R )
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

201912 H31H

December 31, 2019

2. FEEFHEHE(E) 2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(d) TEEHEHENEE (&) (d) Change in principal accounting policy
(continued)

(i) FERWNAITEERE (M)
RYVREREEMBHRELERIE
165506 - NEREER T 22 R
AFFE NI AIITRE A -

Practical expedients applied

In applying HKFRS 16 for the first time, the Group has
used the following practical expedients permitted by
the standard:

AEEAEMAUEENE .

E. applying a single discount rate to a portfolio of
EHERMNE B E

leases with reasonably similar characteristics;

o  KEZRIWFMARETEMR .
ERTEEME  UBERE
TRER -8 EZ20194F
118 RBEBENE
A s

relying on previous assessments on whether
leases are onerous as an alternative to
performing an impairment review — there were no
onerous contracts as at January 1, 2019;

o  RR2019F1A1BHZ#THE o
EHION12@AMEERH

accounting for operating leases with a remaining
lease term of less than 12 months as at January

SYRERHERE

s RUXRBERBEMFERER
REERMRAOIGER
A R

s WAREBSERAKILHE
EREERE AERON
RERTEETE -

1, 2019 as short-term leases;

° excluding initial direct costs for the measurement
of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial

application; and

° using hindsight in determining the lease term
where the contract contains options to extend or

terminate the lease.

AEBETCDEBEIEHNFEER
ENRERBERREREESNE
EHE - Bk BHREBEHZ
RIZFIHNAR - AEBEREEE
AEB ST EENTRNE4HR
BIRE-BLHELEEHE]
tEHRFE ©

The Group has also elected not to reassess whether
a contract is, or contains a lease at the date of initial
application. Instead, for contracts entered into before
the transition date the Group relied on its assessment
made applying HKAS 17 and Interpretation 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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2. FEETEHRE)

(d) FESFRENEE (F)

(ii)

(iii)

HESENHE

(A B ZETREN)

B 3% R M EE (AR
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

201912 H31H
December 31, 2019

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(d) Change in principal accounting policy

(continued)

(ii) Measurement of lease liabilities

(In HK$ million)

MR2018F12 A1 BT 2 &%

Operating lease commitments disclosed

HERIE as at December 31, 2018 1,247
RS BRI (& 5RH & Discounted using the Group’s incremental

1.3%-10.0%3E1TAAIR borrowing rate of 1.3 - 10.0% (104)
W RERENEREERE Less: Short-term leases recognized on

= 9:3] a straight-line basis as expenses (180)
Eonc BHASNREESHRE S Add: Adjustments relating to changes in

I the lease payments 147
R2019F1 A1EERZ2AERE  Lease liabilities recognized as at January 1, 2019 1,110
He - Of which are:

mEHEAE Current lease liabilities 391

InBHEaRE Non-current lease liabilities 719

1,110

FRAEEENGE (iii) Measurement of right-of-use assets

FREEESERASENEESE
NS E - WIREEZE20184F
12A31BEEEBBERFPHERM
BZ A E A BRI TE R Rk e
ETARE N RRHEITHE

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 & #

The right-of-use assets were measured at the amount
equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of

any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that

lease recognized in the balance sheet as at December

31, 2018.
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B %% R M EE (4R )
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2019412 H31H
December 31, 2019

2. FEGIHEX(E) 2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(d) TESHHENEE (&) (d) Change in principal accounting policy
(continued)
(iv) 20191 A1BEEEER (iv) Adjustments recognized in the balance
BERIERNAE sheet on January 1, 2019
BREAR
R2018% ERHH
128318 &5 REED R2019%
Asat #16%M¥E 1R1RES
December 31, Impact on As at
2018 initial  January 1,
As originally  adoption of 2019
(WUBEATAESN) (In HK$ millon) presented  HKFRS16  Restated
AHEEARR(ER) Consolidated Balance Sheet
(extract)
FRBEE Non-current assets
nE BELGE Property, plant and equipment 207 1) 200
fPRELE Right-of-use assets - 1,374 1,374
RELHRALBATE Leasehold land and rental
prepayments 134 (128) 6
RBEE Current assets
RETHRALEAZTE Leasehold land and rental
prepayments 62 (53) 9
e R AR Trade and other receivables 528 (59) 469
EEEE Total assets* 4,124 1,127 5,251
BARGE Capital and reserves
i Reserves 2,450 7 2,457
Bl Total equity* 3,009 7 3,016
FrBaE Non-current liabilities
HE&GR Lease liahilties - 719 719
hEaE Current liabilities
ERERRABERN Trade and other payables 476 10 486
%HEET,\ Lease liabilities - 391 391
BEEE Total liabilities* 1,115 1,120 2,235
ERREREE Total equity and liabilities* 4,124 1127 5,251
FRBEE Net current assets* 1,465 (513) 952
EEAEHRDAR Total assets less current
liabilities* 3,132 726 3,858

- EREINEEEFHA CHE o #
BEETREZHZENEA -

86 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
A REBRABERLIA

The above table shows the impact on each individual line item.

Line items were not affected by the changes that have not

been included.
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2.

MBHRRWE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

TESTHHE(E)

(d) FESFRENEE (F)

(v)

(e) K

(i)

HAE A& &

PR AN B B T 95 RIS 16
¥ ARESEHEEREER
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B -

NG
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EREG T HEHAERLR L
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BIEZEBIER I ARELEEH
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AEBRERBBEEBEBAHA
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B RAEEEE  HiREES
MBI AEAEENEE  hAK
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HERNUEREXBUERIM
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201912 H31H
December 31, 2019

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d) Change in principal accounting policy
(continued)

(v)

Lessor accounting

The Group did not need to make any adjustments
to the accounting for assets held as lessor under
operating leases as a result of the adoption of HKFRS
16.

(e) Subsidiaries

(i)

Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has
rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are
fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date that control ceases.

Business combination

The Group applies the acquisition method to account
for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred
to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at
the acquisition date.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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B %% R M EE (4R )
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2019F12H31H

December 31, 2019
FESHHE(E)

2.

(e) BT (&)

(i)

a0t (#E)
RXEBEEO(E)

AEBEIRERWEEE  ER
I E 5 HO LA IR M #E aS o
WEEE TR IR s R IR
WA EED  TETHEA—
BRRKZLHEEEIENFE
B ARAAENIERGHEAE
REEERBED BN FEE
MRER TR PIMETE o RS
MR M P E b A AR AR 0 1R IR
BRMNOAAENE  KRIFFRE
MRS ERRE LA MET
BRAEGE -

WERRR AR ELRTI B -

HEBEHDBEBOETT - WEA
BERRBET HH 2 BHERR
WEEHZAAEEEEERE
Hatg o DAEHERLRZ
Yot R BRI E R RARER -

FresmeE ~ WAEE T (I IReE
1) 1 e e e o W B O (] 3B A R
RRUE B2 2 a BB AT
BEEFEAARBZEZBENER
BEIE - HEFTINEEZBR
T FrEELE DRI
MEELEFEZBERAER
PRAKEEN B AR 2 EEFE
NRE - EREERRAHAER

SEARFZHENRS - BHK
RHZREBRNGTIAEE - K
HIEBRITAGEE - RIFZR
SRR EEZRERIE
B-MBARZEFIBRRERS
BRTEEERT - UREREARE
BPTER AN 2 BB — B »

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e) Subsidiaries (continued)

(i)

Consolidation (continued)
Business combination (continued)

The Group recognizes any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis.
Non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the
event of liquidation are measured at either fair value or
the present ownership interests’ proportionate share in
the recognized amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at their acquisition date fair
value, unless another measurement basis is required
by HKFRS.

Acquisition related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are
recognized in profit or loss.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree
and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interests in the acquiree over the fair value of
the identifiable net assets acquired are recorded as
goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred, non-
controlling interests recognized and previously held
interests measured are less than the fair value of the
net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a
bargain purchase, the difference is recognized directly
in the consolidated income statement.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealized
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealized losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted
to conform with the Group’s accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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(i)

(ii)
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December 31, 2019

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e) Subsidiaries (continued)

(i)

(i)

Consolidation (continued)

Change in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not
result in loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners
in their capacity as owners. The difference between
fair value of any consideration paid and the relevant
share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of
the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposal to non-controlling interests are also recorded
in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value
at the date when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognized in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously recognized
in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may
mean that amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost,
less impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2019412 H31H
December 31, 2019

TEESBE(E)
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(f)

(9)

Joint arrangements

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint arrangements.
Under HKFRS 11 investments in joint arrangements
are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures
depending on the contractual rights and obligations each
investor have. The Group has assessed the nature of its joint
arrangements and determined them to be joint ventures.
Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint
ventures are initially recognized at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognize the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition profits or losses and movements in other
comprehensive income. When the Group’s share of losses
in a joint venture equals or exceeds its interests in the joint
ventures (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
joint ventures), the Group does not recognize further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the joint ventures.

Unrealized gains on transactions between the Group and
its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the joint ventures. Unrealized losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
the joint ventures have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the senior decision-
makers. The senior decision-makers, who are responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, have been identified as the directors
and senior management that make strategic decisions.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F #



MBHRRWE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. FEETEHRE)
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h) Foreign currency translation

(i)

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s companies are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the company operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (HK$), which is the
Company’s functional and the Group’s presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the transaction dates or valuation where items are
re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognized in the consolidated income
statement.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognized in profit or
loss as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences on non-monetary financial assets, such as
equities classified as available for sale, are included in
other comprehensive income.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
=AW EBAERAF

91



92

B mRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2019412 H31H
December 31, 2019
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
companies (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

- assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
balance sheet date;

- income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average rate is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case, income and expenses are
translated at the exchange rate on transaction
dates); and

- all resulting exchange differences are recognized
in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entities and translated
at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are
recognized in other comprehensive income.

Disposal of foreign operation

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a disposal
involving loss of joint control over a joint venture that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the equity holders of the
company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(i)

Property, plant and equipment

Buildings, leasehold improvements and other fixed assets
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Cost represents the
purchase price of the asset and other costs incurred to bring
the asset into its existing use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognized. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed in the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate cost over their
estimated useful lives or lease term, as follows:

Freehold land is not amortized.

- Buildings situated on freehold land are depreciated
over their estimated useful lives, being no more than 50
years after the date of completion.

- Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the
shorter of their estimated useful lives or lease term.

- Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease or their
estimated useful lives, being no more than 50 years
after the date of completion.

- Plant and equipment 5 years

- Other property and equipment 3 - 5 years
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December 31, 2019
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(i)

)]

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date. An
asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognized in
the consolidated income statement.

Investment property

An investment property is a property which is held for
long term rental yield or for capital appreciation, or both.
Investment property comprises buildings held under finance
leases. It is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Cost represents
the purchase price of the investment property and other
costs incurred to bring the property into its existing use.
Depreciation of investment property is calculated using
straight-line method to write off its cost over the unexpired
period of the lease.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying
amount only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the
consolidated income statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Investment properties are derecognized either when they
have been disposed of or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic
benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss
arising from derecognized of the property (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss
in the period in which the property is derecognized.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(k)

(1)

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures and represents the excess of the
consideration transferred, the amount of non-controlling
interests in the acquire and the acquisition-date fair value of
any previous equity interest in the acquire over the fair value
of the net identifiable assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is allocated to each of the cash-
generating units (“CGUs”), or groups of CGUs, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.
Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of
goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which is
the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal. Any impairment is recognized immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject
to amortization and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortization are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and value-in-use. For the purpose
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
level for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(CGUs). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at each reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2019412 H31H
December 31, 2019

2. XESHEEE) 2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(m) EMEE (m) Financial assets
(i) 28 (i) Classification
REBRUTHFAEEANKES The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
BMEENE measurement categories:

those to be measured subsequently at fair value

Aﬁf@?ﬁéﬂﬁlﬁﬁk?ﬂ\?ﬁ (either through other comprehensive income
=) & (“OCI”) or through profit or loss), and
- REERRARETE - - those to be measured at amortized cost.

DEIAREEEESCHEED
EBEA MRS MENE LER -

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

RRAREFENEEMS @ K
mREBRBREERIEMES

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For

W5k - LA FEHIEEBENR investments in equity instruments that are not held
ATEKEME @ BEUARAEE for trading, this will depend on whether the Group

leé TR A T 5R B 1 S 1S AT B
BE - BERAREAR AR
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has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).

AEBERBERREEEZETEEN The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
A KE
PANS=Y

(¥BEANERETHEEBLER only when its business model for managing those
& o assets changes.
(ii) BMARBUCHEER (i) Recognition and derecognition

CHEERREE NN AHE
RNAEEAEBRERNHES
EEH - - BWHIREREREN
BN EMEE BAKED

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognized on the trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognized when the rights

to receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership.

HEPTE R XD Ak & O
B AERILERESREE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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2. FESTHE(H) 2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(m) EMEE(E)
(iii) 3t &

(m) Financial assets (continued)

(iii) Measurement
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At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit
or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for managing
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the
asset. There are three measurement categories into
which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

- Amortized cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest are measured at amortized cost.
Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition is recognized directly in profit
or loss and presented in other gains/(losses)
together with foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as separate line
item in the consolidated income statement.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(m) Financial assets (continued)

(iii) Measurement (continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements
in the carrying amount are taken through
OCI, except for the recognition of impairment
gains or losses, interest income and foreign
exchange gains and losses which are recognized
in profit or loss. When the financial asset is
derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognized in OCI is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss and recognized in
other gains/(losses). Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in
other gains/(losses) and impairment expenses
are presented as separate line item in the income
statement.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortized cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL.
A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVPL is recognized
in profit or loss and presented net within other
gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(m) Financial assets (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Measurement (continued)
Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and
losses to profit or loss following the derecognition
of the investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognized in profit or loss as other
income when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL
are recognized in other gains/(losses) in the income
statement as applicable. Impairment losses (and
reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments
measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from
other changes in fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortized cost and FVOCI. The
impairment methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognized from initial
recognition of the receivables.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
=AW EBAERAF

29



100

B %% R M EE (4R )
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average
basis. Cost of purchased goods is invoiced prices plus
procurement costs.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price at which
inventories can be sold in the normal course of business,
less applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified
as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognized initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest method, less loss allowance.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call
with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within bank loans in
current liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

(s)

(t)

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they
are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method.

Bank loans

Bank loans are initially recognized at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and are subsequently stated at
amortized cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognized
in the consolidated income statement over the period of the
bank loans using the effective interest method.

Bank loans are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.

Put option arrangements

The potential cash payments related to put options issued
by the Group over the equity of subsidiary companies are
accounted for as financial liabilities when such options may
only be settled other than by exchange of a fixed amount of
cash or at the fair market value of the equity interest of the
investees. The amount that may become payable under the
option on exercise is initially recognized at amortized costs
with a corresponding charge directly to equity.

The Group recognizes the cost of writing such put options,
determined as the excess of the fair value of the option
over any consideration received, as a financing cost. Such
options are subsequently re-measured at fair value as a
result of the change in the expected settlement amount
at each balance sheet date, with any resulting changes
recognized in the equity. In the event that the option
expires unexercised, the liability is derecognized with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(u) Borrowing costs

(v)

Borrowing costs are expensed in the consolidated income
statement in the period in which they are incurred, except
to the extent that they are capitalized as being directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use or sale.

Current and deferred tax
(i) Current tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognized in the consolidated
income statement, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognized in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognized
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the countries and regions
where the Company’s subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

(ii) Deferred tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognized, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized if
they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises
from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(v) Current and deferred tax (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Deferred tax (continued)
Inside basis differences (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognized only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilized.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on interests in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, except for deferred
income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of
the temporary difference is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements only to the extent that it is probable the
temporary difference will reverse in the future and there
is sufficient taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilized.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(w) Employee benefits

(i)

Pension obligations

Except for the pension scheme arrangements in
Taiwan, the Group operates defined contributions
schemes and, if applicable, participates in central
defined contribution provident fund schemes for all
qualified employees. The assets of the said schemes
are held by independently administered funds
separated from those of the Group. Contributions to
these schemes are made by both the employers and
employees at rates up to 20% on the employees’
salaries.

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution
plans and mandatory provident fund scheme are
expensed as incurred and, if applicable, are reduced
by contributions forfeited by those employees who
leave the scheme or the plan prior to vesting fully in
the contributions. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been made.

The branch of wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group in
Taiwan has a defined benefit scheme (“Old Scheme”)
governed by the Labor Standard Law and a defined
contribution scheme (“New Scheme”) governed by the
Labor Pension Act which became effective on July 1,
2005.

Under the Old Scheme, the Group has an obligation
to ensure that there are sufficient funds in the scheme
to pay the benefits earned for the service years of
all employees before the New Scheme was effective
and the subsequent service years of employees who
chose to continue to participate in the Old Scheme.
The branch currently contributes at 2% of the total
salaries of participating employees as determined and
approved by the relevant government authorities. The
assets of the Old Scheme are invested by the Bank of
Taiwan.

Under the New Scheme, the branch contributes each
month at 6% of the salary of employees, with a cap
of NTD9,000 who choose to participate in the New
Scheme into individual pension accounts at the Bureau
of Labor Insurance.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(w) Employee benefits (continued)

(x)

(i)

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognized as an expense. The total amount
to be expensed over the vesting period is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options granted,
excluding the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions (for example, profitability and sales growth
targets). Non-market vesting conditions are included
in assumptions about the number of options that are
expected to become exercisable. At each balance
sheet date, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to become
exercisable. It recognizes the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in the consolidated income
statement and a corresponding adjustment to equity
over the remaining vesting period.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal
value) and share premium when the options are
exercised.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount
can be made.
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(y)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable
for goods supplied, stated net of discounts, rebates, returns
and value added taxes. The Group recognizes revenue when
the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it
is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the
entity; and when specific criteria have been met for each
of the Group’s activities, as described below. The Group
bases its estimates of return on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction
and the specifics of each arrangement.

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Sales of goods - retail

Sales of goods are recognized when products are sold
to the customer. Retail sales are usually in cash or by
credit card. The recorded revenue is the gross amount
of sales, before netting off credit card fees payable for
the transactions. Such fees are included in distribution
costs. Revenue is shown net of returns, rebates and
discounts.

Sales of goods - customer loyalty
programme (deferred revenue)

The Group operates a loyalty programme where
customers accumulate points for purchases made
which entitle them to discounts on future purchases.
A contract liability for the award points is recognized
at the time of sale. Revenue is recognized when the
points are redeemed or when they expire 24 months
after the initial sale.

A contract liability is recognized until the points are
redeemed or expired.

Sales of goods - wholesale

Sales of goods are recognized when products
are delivered to the customer, the customer has
accepted the products and collectability of the related
receivables is reasonably assured.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(y)

(2)

Revenue recognition (continued)
(iv) Interestincome

Interest income is recognized on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method, taking into
account the principal amount outstanding and the
interest rates applicable.

(v) Royalty income

Royalty income is recognized on an accrual basis
in accordance with the substance of the relevant
agreements.

(vi) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the right to
receive payment is established.

(vii) Rental and sub-lease rental income

Rental and sub-lease rental income is recognized on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leases

The Group has changed its accounting policy for leases
where the Group is the lessee. The new policy is described
below and the impact of the change as explained in Note
2(d).

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership were not transferred to the Group as lessee
were classified as operating leases (Note 33). Payments
made under operating leases (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) were charged to profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease.

From January 1, 2019, leases are recognized as a right-of-
use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which
the leased asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on
their relative stand-alone prices.
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(2)

Leases (continued)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the following lease payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

° payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of
the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate
that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the
right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with
similar terms, security and conditions.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(2)

Leases (continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

° where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received;

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held
by the Group, which does not have recent third party
financing; and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,
country, currency and security.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable
lease payments based on an index or rate, which are not
included in the lease liability until they take effect. When
adjustments to lease payments based on an index or rate
take effect, the lease liability is reassessed and adjusted
against the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each

period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

o the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received;

o any initial direct costs; and

° restoration costs.
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(2)

(aa)

Leases (continued)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment
and vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are
recognized on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit
or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12
months or less.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is
a lessor is recognized in income on a straight-line basis
over the lease term (Note 6). Initial direct costs incurred
in obtaining an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the underlying asset and recognized as expense
over the lease term on the same basis as lease income. The
respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet
based on their nature. The Group did not need to make any
adjustments to the accounting for assets held as lessor as a
result of adopting the new leasing standard.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognized as a liability in the Group’s financial statements in
the period in which the dividends are approved.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUE

The Group’s activities exposed it to a variety of financial risks:
(a)(i) foreign exchange risk, (a)(ii) credit risk, (a)(iii) liquidity risk,
(a)(iv) cash flow interest rate risk, (b) capital risk management and
(c) fair value estimation. The Group’s overall risk management
program seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the
Group’s financial performance. The Group uses derivative financial
instruments to manage certain risk exposure when necessary.

(a) Financial risk factors

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed
to foreign exchange risk arising from commercial
transactions, recognized assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations. Foreign exchange
risk arises when future commercial transactions or
recognized assets or liabilities are denominated in a
currency that is not the entity’s functional currency.

As at year end, the foreign exchange risk of the Group
mainly arises from purchases from a Renminbi-based
supply chain and sales proceeds in local currencies
of the relevant group entities. Foreign exchange
risk arising from recognized assets and liabilities
is considered to be insignificant. This is due to the
balances denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entity are
generally settled promptly leaving minimal outstanding
foreign currency position as at the balance sheet date.

To manage foreign exchange risk arising from
commercial transactions, recognized assets and
liabilities, companies in the Group may use forward
foreign exchange contracts when major fluctuation in
the relevant foreign currency is anticipated.

The Group has certain investments in foreign
operations, whose net assets are exposed to foreign
currency translation risk.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

(i)

Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group is primarily attributable
to balances with bank, trade and other receivables
and rental deposits. The carrying amounts of these
balances represent the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to financial assets. The credit risk
on deposits with banks is limited as the Group mainly
places the deposits in banks with high credit rating.

Retail sales are usually made in cash, bank transfer,
through credit cards or through reputable and
dispersed department stores. The Group’s credit sales
are only made to wholesale and franchise customers,
with an appropriate credit history and on credit terms
of 30 to 90 days. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s
exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The table below shows the major types of debtors of
the Group as at December 31, 2019 and 2018.

(KBEEBTREN) (In HK$ million) 2019 2018
HESPR Counterpart:
BEAQFH Department stores 141 182
InEERE Franchisees 69 112
FEYE A RERFK Credit card receivables 9 19
) Others 20 17
FEMER R (B 7£23) Trade receivables
(Note 23) 239 330
xx Landlords 213 210
452 540

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)

(a) HHERABEE(E) (a) Financial risk factors (continued)
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Credit risk (continued)
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Trade receivables

The Group applies the simplified approach to providing
for expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS
9, which permits the use of lifetime expected loss
provision for all trade receivables. To measure the
expected credit losses, trade receivables have been
grouped based on share credit risk characteristics.

For the trade receivables, the counterparties primarily
are large corporation and have strong financial position
and management considers the credit risk is not
high. The Group maintains frequent communications
with these counterparties. Management has closely
monitored the credit qualities and the collectability
of these receivables and consider that the expected
credit risks of them are minimal in view of the history
of cooperation with them and forward looking
information.

Other receivables

The directors of the Group consider the probability of
default upon initial recognition of asset and whether
there has been significant increase in credit risk on
an ongoing basis during the year. To assess whether
there is a significant increase in credit risk the Group
compares risk of a default occurring on the assets as
at year end date with the risk of default as at the date
of initial recognition. Especially the following indicators
are incorporated.

° Actual or expected significant adverse changes
in business, financial economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the
company’s ability to meet its obligations;

° Actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the company;

o Significant changes in the expected performance
and behavior of the company, including changes
in the payment status of the third party.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
=AW EBAERAF

113



114

MBRRWE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2019412 H31H
December 31, 2019

3. MHEAREERQIAEEE)

(a) MHEEREE(E)
(i) FERR(E)

HtER AR (&)

T LA DA anf] - 5 ka4
IR R B REENEBS AR S
HiE30H - AIBRERFERBR AR

KB e

EXHHETFHEEANEIH365H
NEH AR IREREER
AlemEELRELD -

N 5 [ 5E HA 2= B B A {8 Al R WK
EH AW E S5 - AERLEE
Yg ol & BE1F RS9V BLE BB -
EREREENGK
BREFIREZERMEEBER
HAHEERR - RFEEHRE
EREXE  AREEERSAE
BANBERBER - LTHEAHE

MBI HEER -

M20184F & 2019412 A31H -
EEERAEMEWRFENEE
ERENERR  EAXZHF
FTHREHEEHENEHANEG
HRERET - AEBEFTHE
th FE U5 SR I8 B T8 ER {
FEMZEEHRERNSERE

YTEX -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

(i)

Credit risk (continued)
Other receivables (continued)

Regardless of the analysis above, a significant increase
in credit risk is presumed if a debtor is more than
30 days past due in making a contractual payment/
repayable demand.

A default on a financial asset when the counterparty
fails to make contractual payments/repayable
demanded within 365 days of when they fail due.

The Group reviews regularly the recoverable amount
of each individual receivable to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. Over the term of the financial assets, the
Group accounts for its credit risk by appropriately
providing for expected credit losses on a timely
basis. In calculating the expected credit loss rates,
the Group considers historical loss rates for each
category of debtors, and adjusts for forward looking
macroeconomic data.

As at December 31, 2018 and 2019, management
consider other receivables as low credit risk as
counterparties have a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term. The
Group has assessed that the expected credit losses
for other receivables and the loss allowance provision
recognized during the year for these balances is not
material.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)
(iii) Liquidity risk

The liquidity risk of the Group is controlled by
maintaining sufficient banking facilities and cash
and cash equivalents, which is generated from the
operating cash flow and financing cash flow.

As at December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018, all
of the Group’s and Company’s financial liabilities are
due within one year, except to note following:

15#%
B5% R
After BemE
one year ReRE
15/ but 5ELE Total BEE
Contractual maturities of Within within Over contractual  Carrying
CREEZARESA financial liabilities oneyear fiveyears fiveyears cashflows  amount
HERE Lease liabilities
12019127318 As at December 31, 2019 570 585 10 1,165 1,108
R2019%F1 A18 As at January 1, 2019 574 1,167 24 1,765 1,110
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(iv)

Cash flow interest rate risk

Except for the bank balance of HK$1,259 million
(2018: HK$1,315 million) and short-term bank loan
of HK$265 million (2018: HK$298 million); the Group
has no other significant interest-bearing assets and
liabilities. The bank balance and short-term bank
borrowings at floating rate expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk which is insignificant to
the Group. The Group’s income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates. Management does not anticipate
significant impact resulted from the changes in interest
rates.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
=AW EBAERAF

115



116

3.

ji&ﬁ%pﬁ-?(mﬁ)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2019412 H31H
December 31, 2019

BHEREABEERAABEE)

(b) ESEERR

(c)

ZIXE@E’Jéf BRI RRELAKE
BEFFEEE 2R URRBRRIEHE
K@i&&%ﬁﬁt%fﬁ/\ﬁé/\ °

RENMBHRARMBETR  NEBMNE
AEBBERAE - B REBTEFUAR
IRITEN -

REIEERERE -
HEE - HBIRN T RRAR
FRRREEE AR KBTI

AEEA B MNE
&R

AEBEFAEBRFFHRSMAEER
BN o FHSMRETIAIRE MIRITHE

TR ERITERFTES L - K2019
F12A31H8  XEERFM4EET
(20184 10178 L) K F IR S AREE -

D REEME

BAREAEZESRITANZTIAR
BFFEEEOH

F—H - HRAEEHABERERTS
H¥RE CREFE)

F_R -BRTFEF-MAEENRE

5h - ZEBEELBENEMA

B A A8E  IR/ER

(BN pIan(EAR ) sk @ (AR

BER) -

BESBEWIFRETER
mHE RS TN E A BIE
(BI3ERI Bz i A B -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)

(b)

(c)

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives on managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern as well as
maximizing returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders.

The Group’s capital structure consists of equity, cash and
bank balances and bank loans as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

In order to improve the capital structure, the Group may
raise long term debts, adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders and issue new
shares.

The Group monitors capital by maintaining a net cash
position throughout the year. Net cash positions is
calculated by cash and bank balances net of interest
bearing bank loans. As at December 31, 2019, the Group
maintained a net cash position of HK$994 million (2018:
HK$1,017million).

Fair value estimation

Financial instruments that are measured at fair value are
disclosed by the level of the following fair value measurement
hierarchy:
Level 1 - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 - inputs for the asset or liability that are
not based on observable market data

(unobservable inputs).
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)

(c)

Fair value estimation (Continued)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the date of
the statement of financial position. A market is regarded as
active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from
an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service,
or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length
basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets held
by the Group is the current bid price. These instruments are
included in Level 1. The Group’s financial asset at FVOCI and
FVPL measured at fair value are included in Level 1 of the fair
value measurement hierarchy (Note 19 and 20).

As at December 31, 2019, if there had been a 5% change in
the fair value of financial asset at FVOCI and financial asset
at FVPL with all other variables held constant, the Group’s
equity would have increased/decreased by HK$0.3 million
(2018: HK$0.3 million) and net profit would have increased/
decreased by HK$11.4 million (2018: HK$1.4 million).

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximize the use
of observable market data where it is available and rely as
little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable,
the instrument is included in Level 2. No financial instrument
is included in Level 2 as at December 31, 2019 and 2018.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in Level
3. The Group’s financial asset at FVPL are included in Level
3 of the fair value measurement hierarchy (Note 20).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below.

(i)

(ii)

Assessment of impairment of non-
current financial assets

The Group conducts impairment reviews of non-current
assets that are subject to depreciation and amortization
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Management
assesses the recoverable amount of each non-current asset
based on its value in use or on its fair value less costs of
disposal (by reference to market prices), depending upon the
anticipated future plans for the assets. These calculations
require the use of judgments and estimates.

Fair value of written put option liabilities

Certain of the Group’s business combination activities
involved put options issued by the Group over the equity of
subsidiary companies. The Group recorded such written put
option liabilities at their fair values which are determined in
accordance with the terms under those relevant agreements
and with reference to the estimated post-acquisition
performance of the acquired subsidiaries. Judgement is
required to determine key assumptions (such as growth
rate, margins and discount rate) adopted in the estimation of
post-acquisition performance of the acquired subsidiaries.
Changes to key assumptions can significantly affect the
amounts of future liabilities. Put option liabilities shall be re-
measured at their fair value resulting from events or factors
emerging after the acquisition date, with any resulting gain or
loss recognized in the consolidated income statement.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets.
The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of the assets
regularly in order to determine the amount of depreciation
to be recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives
are based on the Group’s historical experience with similar
assets. The depreciation for future periods is adjusted if
there are material changes from previous estimates.

Net realizable value of inventories

Net realizable value of inventories is the estimated selling
prices in the ordinary course of business less estimated
selling expenses. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of selling
products of similar nature. It could change significantly
as a result of changes in economic conditions in places
where the Group operates and changes in customer taste
and competitor actions in response to changes in market
conditions. Management reassesses these estimates at each
balance sheet date.

Impairment of assets (other than investments
in debt instruments and trade and other
receivables)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired or,
except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognized no longer exists or may have decreased:

- Property, plant and equipment;

Right-of-use assets;

Interests in joint ventures; and

Goodwill.

The sources utilized to identify indications of impairment are
often subjective in nature and the Group is required to use
judgement in applying such information to its business. The
Group’s interpretation of this information has a direct impact
on whether an impairment assessment is performed as at the
end of any given reporting period.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Impairment of assets (other than investments
in debt instruments and trade and other
receivables) (Continued)

If an indication of impairment is identified, such information
is further subject to an exercise that requires the Group to
estimate the recoverable amount, representing the greater
of the asset’s fair value less costs of disposal or its value in
use. Depending on the Group’s assessment of the overall
materiality of the asset under review and complexity of
deriving a reasonable estimate of the recoverable amount,
the Group may perform such assessments utilizing internal
resources or the Group may engage external advisors to
counsel the Group. Regardless of the resources utilized,
the Group is required to make many assumptions to make
these assessments, including the utilization of such asset,
the cash flows to be generated, appropriate market discount
rates and the projected market and regulatory conditions.
Changes in any of these assumptions could result in a
material change to future estimates of the recoverable
amount of any asset.

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in determining
the worldwide provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognizes liabilities for anticipated tax
audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Determination of lease term and discount rate

In determining the lease term, management considers all
facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive
to exercise an extension option, or not exercise a termination
option. Extension options (or periods after termination
options) are only included in the lease term if the Group has
enforceable rights to extend the lease term and the lease
is reasonably certain to be extended (or not terminated).
Potential future cash outflows have not been included in the
lease liability because it is not reasonably certain that the
leases will be extended (or not terminated).
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Giordano Junior ~ Giordano Ladies ~ BSXA
FEMBAEREELE Mg -

KRR EBITDATEARTIGBREER - T
WoERAREEEME  HERRBIRE
B EREE  BHAEQRENALK
DECZARERBRRE TR B ATAE A o D EBEAETY
AMGREER  BIEAZLAREMN - I8
MR ARDEZAREREEIRE © UL IREEE
Ko @ R E TE MIAVEE IR D B M 7F & 7 A
RAWTERE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 & #

201912 H31H
December 31, 2019

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)

(vii) Determination of lease term and discount rate
(Continued)

The assessment is reviewed if a significant event or a
significant change in circumstances occurs which affects this
assessment and that is within the control of the lessee.

In determining the discount rates, the Group is required to
exercise considerable judgement in relation to determine
the discount rates by taking into account the nature of
the underlying assets and the terms and conditions of the
leases, at both the commencement date and the effective
dates of the modification.

SALES AND OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Group determines its operating segments based on its
development strategies and operational control. There are two
major operating segments: Retail and Distribution and Wholesales
to Overseas Franchisees. Management manages the Retail and
Distribution operating segment geographically and by brand.

Geographically, the Retail and Distribution operating segment in
Mainland China and the Middle East comprise directly operated
stores (“DOS”) and franchised stores. Hong Kong and Macau,
Taiwan and the rest of Asia Pacific do not have material local
franchised stores. Group stores span most of Asia Pacific and the
Middle East.

As for brands, the Group presently operates Giordano and
Giordano Junior, Giordano Ladies, BSX as well as other owned
and licensed brands.

Adjusted EBITDA is profit before finance expense, income
taxes, impairment of right-of-use assets and property, plant and
equipment, depreciation and amortization, share of profit of joint
ventures and unallocated corporate items. Segment results are
before finance expense, share of profit of joint ventures, income
taxes and unallocated corporate items. This is the measurement
basis reported to management and the senior decision-makers for
the purpose of resources allocation and assessment of segment
performance.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
=AW EBAERAF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

201912 H31H
December 31, 2019

5. SHEREREESH(E) 5.

AEBzZENRHERREZRNIRMER

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
3 o BB R

2T o

SALES AND OPERATING SEGMENTS
(continued)

Analysis of sales and operating profit of the Group’s operating
segment by geographic regions is as follows.

(U BE&EETREL) (In HK$ million)

HER Sales

£CFHEEEBITDA Adjusted EBITDA

e R Depreciation and

amortization

- FERREEE - Right-of-use assets

R /ERR — Property, plant and
PET-L equipment and
REWE investment properties

-HE+ ~ Leasehold land
TaftFIE prepayments

RE Impairment

- EHEREE - Right-of-use assets

- EBREE — Property, plant and

equipment

DEELE Segment results

fakile Corporate functions

MEER Finance expense

JEIEAERANEF Share of profit of joint

ventures
BRETEB AR R Profit before income

taxes
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

201912 H31H
December 31, 2019

HEBRREED (& 5. SALES AND OPERATING SEGMENTS
(continued)
2018
Eapisgl
BEER mEEmz
JRFT TEAREAM #rag
Hong i [&@ FE  Wholesales
B R RE Kong The rest The to
Mainland and B of Asia Middle Overseas A&t
(UBE#TAEN) (In HK$ million) China Macau Taiwan Pacific East  Franchisees Total
SHER Sales 1,293 959 671 1,623 636 327 5,509
4 AEEEBITDA Adjusted EBITDA 111 126 83 273 102 49 744
EREH Depreciation and
amortization
B /ERE 1 - Property, plant and
EGEE equipment and
REME investment properties (1) (13) (17) (40) (16) - (107)
- HE+TH - Leasehold land
TN IR prepayments ™) (5) - - - - ®)
DEBEE Segment results 89 108 66 233 86 49 631
1A 0 Ak Corporate functions ®)
RMEEA Finance expense (5)
[E1hE & DR F Share of profit of joint
ventures 64
R BT 1S A& 7 Profit before income taxes 684

ImfEgIn 2 TERDIELEEN R 2 E—F

DR o

brand is as follows.

Further analysis of the Retail and Distribution operating segment by

2019 2018

R RR mEER

$HE%E Operating BEZE  Operating

(U BEETAEN) (In HK$ million) Sales profit Sales profit
ZERDHE Retail and Distribution

Gilordano Giordano and

Giordano Junior Giordano Junior 3,831 307 4,362 483

Giordano Ladlies Giordano Ladies 395 34 452 72

BSX BSX 101 () 137 6

Het Others 273 10 231 21

4,600 348 5,182 582

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 & #
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2019412 H31H
December 31, 2019

5.

HERREEDI(EA)

RARHREE - ERBEERBM(BETE
Rt E ) BB HINEP ZHERE R10.24
BB T (20184  12.861E L) + RAAEIARE
£9.9518 L (20184F + 12,9318/ 87L) : M
REA TS E NG P 2 S5 E 58 £28.3318 8 T
(20184 : 29.30f88 L) °

Dz M2 HERR11.6088 7T (20185 -
12.088/87C) B TAGFHH -

B KR 2 TS T E A A5008 7% 7T (2018
F 11,8008 87T) + BB KB A3008E T
(20184 : 1,1008% L) + &/EAE1,0008 %5
JC(2018%F 1 1,200& %8 7T) * BAHMIBE A
6,0008 7 7T (20184 : 6,700& /& 7L) © MH
FA900E 7 7T (20184 : 600EBTT) o

AEBZEERMWRE D 2 OITWAT -

SALES AND OPERATING SEGMENTS
(continued)

The Company has its domicile in Hong Kong. Sales to external
customers recorded in Hong Kong and Macau (including retail and
wholesale sales) are HK$1,024 million (2018: HK$1,286 million),
Mainland China HK$995 million (2018: HK$1,293 million) and
external customers from other markets HK$2,833 million (2018:
HK$2,930 million).

Inter-segment sales of HK$1,160 million (2018: HK$1,208 million)
have been eliminated upon consolidation.

Income taxes charged relating to Mainland China was HK$5 million
(2018: HK$18 million), Hong Kong and Macau HK$3 million (2018:
HK$11 million), Taiwan HK$10 million (2018: HK$12 million), the
rest of Asia Pacific HK$60 million (2018: HK$67 million) and the
Middle East HK$9 million (2018: HK$6 million).

Analysis of the Group’s assets by geographic regions is as follows.

DEEE
Segment assets
(X B EETAEN) (In HK$ million) 2019 2018
DEEE Segment assets
B RRM Hong Kong and Macau 1,174 973
TR H b [ The rest of Asia Pacific 1,159 750
FR The Middle East 1,044 832
EAlETPNS Mainland China 704 740
&8 Taiwan 290 196
4,371 3,491
B NEERE Interest in joint ventures 538 552
REMGERRIZ AR ERE Financial asset at fair value through
LEMEE other comprehensive income 5 6
RIBRFEEAAERERRE Financial asset at fair value through
LEBEE profit or loss 228 28
ELEFIBE E Deferred tax assets 54 47
EERE Total assets 5,196 4,124

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF
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MBHRRWE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

5. HEBEREEIH(A)

ReMTARBEEMRBBEEN  REBR
B ZIEREHEERRBE B4 TTEB L(2018
F167ERABTL) RHPBEKEA1.761ES
JL(20184F : 0.66(8%8 L) : MREMTIHA
20.9012/8 L (20184 : 13.53(E/8 L) °

6. HitARHEMWE  F8

201912 H31H
December 31, 2019

SALES AND OPERATING SEGMENTS
(continued)

The total of non-current assets other than financial instruments
and deferred tax assets located in Hong Kong and Macau was
HK$477 million (2018: HK$167 million); Mainland China, HK$176
million (2018: HK$66 million); and other markets, HK$2,090 million
(2018: HK$1,353 million).

OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS, NET

(X BEBTRER) (In HK$ million) 2019 2018
SET PN Royalty income 31 31
A EWA Interest income 21 20
He koBkA Rental and sub-lease rental income 12 13
P 3 U ) F 58 Net exchange gain 5 1
& BURA Dividend income 3 3
HEWS - MR R TR Net loss on disposal of property,

plant and equipment (1) 2)

RERFERALBEREZSHEE Y Fair value loss on financial asset at
AREBE fair value through profit or loss (1) -
HAth Others 13 20
83 86

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 & #
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B mRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2019412 H31H
December 31, 2019

7. RE&ERA

RN IR

OPERATING PROFIT
Operating profit is after charging:

(XBEETREN) (In HK$ million) 2019 2018
SHERAK Cost of sales
FEIFEKRA Cost of inventories sold 2,000 2,250
REFTERER Provision for obsolete stock and
FEMH stock written off 6 9
2,006 2,259
THEHR Distribution expense
BIAA Staff cost 763 811
WEZN Depreciation expenses
- [FREEE - Right-of-use assets 589 -
- W% - eI NEE - Property, plant and equipment 90 100
THREFIKEHEER Operating lease rentals in respect
of land and building
- &EEeXH — Minimum lease payments 183 808
-HRHEER - Contingent rent 189 237
YEERE Building management fee,
TR b 7R e 2 A government rent and rates
RAREXER and utilities 122 132
EEESE  HER Advertising, promotion and
B e e incentives 107 129
BERER Packaging and deliveries 58 56
wITRERRKE Bank and credit card charges 33 35
DERIE] Impairment
- [FREEE — Right-of-use assets 26 -
- W% - B NEE — Property, plant and equipment 11 -
FHE - M FE T FRIE 8 Amortization of leasehold land
prepayments 1 6
HAtb Others 128 126
2,300 2,440
THEAR Administrative expense
B IR Staff cost 145 157
WEZN Depreciation expenses
- [FREEE - Right-of-use assets 16 -
- W% - e NEE - Property, plant and equipment
ML EME and investment properties 7 7
FERNBEER Legal and professional fee 15 40
ZE AN & Auditor’s remuneration 6 7
EX PSSR Computer and telecommunication 6 7
EIRE Travelling 4 5
T REFIEEHEBR Operating lease rentals in respect
of land and building
- &EHEEXH — Minimum lease payments 3 17
EERAMIIIE Business and other taxes 1 1
EHAfth Others 29 30
232 271

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

201912 H31H
December 31, 2019

8. MEERHR 8. FINANCE EXPENSE
(U Ea&EETREN) (In HK$ million) 2019 2018
HEBEF S Interest on lease liabilities 49 -
IRITEF B Interest on bank loans 6 5
55 5
9. BEIKAX 9. STAFF COSTS
(K EEETREN) (In HK$ million) 2019 2018
FehI&A(BREESWE) Salaries and wages (including
Directors’ emoluments) 828 881
ElEER Share option expense 1 3
BIRE— Pension cost —
FOEMEGTE defined contribution plans 79 84
908 968
REFEAN  ARERBERREERMZHEHK During the year, no unvested benefits were utilized by the Group
(20184 : ) URE (EFRKF o 7820195 & to reduce the level of contributions (2018: Nil). As at December 31,
201812318 ' )R E AR F(FE A 2 Kee 2019 and 2018, no unvested benefits were available to be utilized
EEHER - in future years.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2019412 H31H
December 31, 2019

10. EENFENER

10. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(a) EEE & (a) Directors’ emoluments
Ex
RIFSHH
Employer’s
KA  EftWs*  contribution
e #¢ Discretionary Other  to pension B3t
EENA Name of Directors Fees Salaries bonuses*™*  benefits* schemes  Total
BEFT BEFL BEFT  BETT BEFT BEFL
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
2019
2| LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter®t - 3,676 6,494 1,820 - 11,99
G2t CHAN Ka Wai2 - 2,343 860 160 18 3,381
BEY Mark Alan LOYND? - 2,153 750 151 18 3,072
HERA CHENG Chi Kong? 200 - - - - 200
Bt 21 CHAN Sai Cheong? 200 - - - - 200
2R Barry John BUTTIFANT* 420 = = = = 420
BEE KWONG Ki Chi* 360 - - - - 360
=N WONG Yuk
(alias, HUANG XuJ* 390 - - - - 390
Alison Elizabeth LLOYD* Alison Elizabeth LLOYD* 308 - - - - 308
1,878 8,172 8,104 2,131 36 20,321
2018
il LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter®t - 3,597 16,032 1,824 - 21453
[ CHAN Ka Wai® - 2,297 1,375 217 18 3,967
BEY Mark Alan LOYND? - 2,110 1,150 247 18 3525
BERN CHENG Chi Kong? 200 - - - - 200
Rt S A CHAN Sai Cheong? 200 - - - = 200
2 Barry John BUTTIFANT* 400 - - - - 400
BEE KWONG Ki Chi* 350 - - - - 350
=M WONG Yuk
(alias, HUANG Xu)* 350 - - - - 350
1,500 8,004 18,557 2,348 36 30,445

' TR RITIRAE

B WITES

" FHMITES
BUFRITER

# Hi s @R RER AR

BRE FE=

Bh -~ AR R E U ([ E A e )
BB METEAL A R DAL R R TFASRE 2

A B R R PR E

R2019F3A7THRZERB L INTES

FA - BEERELR B HE2019F

2408 B THES

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

122 s mmmaemaa

Chairman and Chief Executive

Executive directors
Non-executive directors

Independent non-executive directors

Other benefits include insurance premium, share options, housing
allowances, other allowances and benefits in kind (“Other Benefits”)

Discretionary bonus is determined based on profit sharing ratio or pre-

determined achievement rate of profit targets.

Appointed as Independent Non-Executive Director on March 7,2019

During the year, Lau Kwok Kuen, Peter, waived and has
agreed to waive 2019 bonus of HK$2.4million.
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MBHRRWE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

10. EENRNZMER (E)

(a) ESM= (&)
RAFER  MEEXNZME BN

201912 H31H
December 31, 2019

10. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

The aggregate amount

of emoluments payable to Directors

™ of the Company during the year is as follows:
(LB T BEN) (In HK$°000) 2019 2018
we Fees 1,878 1,500
Hime Other emoluments:
AEXFE R Basic salaries and
HAb iz Other Benefits 10,303 10,352
RIRSET BB Contribution to pension
schemes 36 36
15 ETEAT Discretionary bonuses 8,104 18,557
20,321 30,445

EVERSEFERE

RAREER > REBRNZSHBES
BIE3ML(20184F : 3 ) B = - HEl&
HBEEREXWE  c KAEER - %R2
(20184 : 20 ) = ¥k 8 2 FE ST EM

(b) (b) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year include 3 (2018: 3) Directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above.
The emoluments payable to the remaining 2 (2018: 2)

W : individuals during the year are as follows:
(LB T BEN) (In HK$°000) 2019 2018
EARFHE M Basic salaries and

E e Other Benefits 4,955 4,933

RIKSFTEIHR Contribution to pension
schemes 90 92

1 [ TEAT Discretionary bonuses 4,036 3,593

9,081 8,618

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

s mmmemraa 129
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2019412 H31H
December 31, 2019

10. EENRNZMER (E)

(b) EUESHBE (F)

10. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (continued)

AB

< 48 B Number of individuals
Emolument bands 2019 2018
JEIE

HK$

2,000,001-3,000,000 - _
3,000,001-4,000,000 - 1
4,000,001-5,000,000 2 1

5,000,001-6,000,000

(c) MEE - ZZEEEEHME
AEBRZESNBEETIRE
HPWER  EEFNHEHMAERS
HnER
RABER K TFEURAGES
FHZEE LT EABRSEZE
EEEMENTREAYTAZER £
BERMEMR S  EFREETEQF
B 28 383(1)(d) 1§ & 5 622G E 55 = 1 5
EH R FE (20184 - ) -

11. FrBH
EBFEHRBEAFE 2 Mt EREREF
1216.5% (20184F : 16.5% ) 7 T X5t E - &
78 LAY B 2 FE ST S B Ty IR (@ Bl 5 A i &
BAZMETE -

D I

11.

(c) Information about loans, quasi-loans and
other dealings in favour of Directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such Directors

There are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in favour
of the Directors, their controlled bodies corporate and
connected entities for disclosure pursuant to section
383(1)(d) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part
3 of 622G (2018: Nil).

INCOME TAXES

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at the rate of 16.5% (2018:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the year. Income
taxes on profits assessable outside Hong Kong are calculated at
the rates applicable in the respective jurisdictions.

(A BEEBTREN) (In HK$ million) 2019 2018
EEEFBH Current income taxes
BE Hong Kong 15 20
EBLAGN Outside Hong Kong 70 87
WA FE B Over provision in prior years (1) ®3)
HEFIE Withholding taxes 34 33
118 137
ERE PS8 Deferred income taxes
RYMERE ZITERED Origination and reversal of
temporary differences (2) 5
116 142

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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12.

B HmRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

201912 H31H
December 31, 2019

Frie® (&) 11. INCOME TAXES (continued)
T HTBREAFEEEGEEZE NI ZITERK This charge excludes the share of joint ventures’ income taxes
2,000,870 (20184 : 1,90 O‘ 73) na of HK$20 million (2018: HK$19 million) for the year. The share
HFEEP ZEESEATGAN I NG % T of profit of joint ventures in the consolidated income statement
EMEEE 2 FRERETR © is after income taxes accrued in the appropriate income tax
jurisdictions.

BB EMEMEE 2 ANEB % TSR RS Reconciliation of the Group’s profit before income taxes at the tax
TSR B 2 HERAOT o rate of Hong Kong to the income tax charges is as follows.
(KX BEETAEN) (In HK$ million) 2019 2018
B P45 A5 AL g ) Profit before income taxes (before

(T EIEELHEERRHEA) share of profit of joint ventures) 342 620
EATSHE16.5% Calculated at an income tax rate

(2018%F : 16.5% )5t H of 16.5% (2018: 16.5%) 56 102
HMBER MR E 78 Effect of different tax rates in

other regions - 13
AR 2 H Expenses not deductible for tax
purposes 39 31

RERZBELERIEEE Deferred tax assets not recognized 8 8
BERMZ BA Income not subject to tax (7) (35)
AT H] Utilization of previously

REHRZ A unrecognized tax losses (13) (7)
A Withholding tax 34 33
MBI FE AR Over-provision in prior years (1) ®3)
Frisdix Income tax charges 116 142
BRAEF 12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

FRRERNNEERF TR AFE QAR RE
1R TS RIE % F2. 3B L (20184F : 4.818
BIL)ETE -

EREABIDEAFEADBETRMDZ
hnAE F 5 B8 801,578,500,518 % (2018 4F -
1,575,281,071 IRt &

HREREEEREEER  #Z=2019F12
AS1BILFENERESEANNEGREARR
FIFERE o

HZE2018F 12 A3 AL FEN TR EE
BRI FRNBEETRG 2 NEFHRE
1,575,281,071 8% h1 E R &R A R &) #E Ik
BAEIRH A M ARITEERESEITE
i85 1T 2 Bt 2 INAE 39 IR 82,922,810 &t

s

E_o

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 & #

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based
on the profit after income taxes attributable to shareholders of the
Company for the year of HK$230 million (2018: HK$480 million).

The basic earnings per share is based on the weighted average
of 1,5678,500,518 shares (2018: 1,575,281,071 shares) in issue
during the year.

Diluted earnings per share for the year ended December 31, 2019
was the same as the basic earnings per share since the share
options had anti-dilutive effect.

The diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average of 1,575,281,071 shares in issue during the year
ended December 31, 2018 by the weighted average of 2,922,810
shares deemed to be issued if all outstanding share options
granted under the share option schemes of the Company had
been exercised.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2019412 H31H
December 31, 2019

13. K&
(a)

(b)

AKEEREWMT :

(LB &EETRENMN)

13. DIVIDENDS

(a) Dividends attributable to the year:

(In HK$ million) 2019 2018

EERZFHBREAER10.27810
(20184 : |AX17.0581l)

REEE BREZR RS AER4 4

(20184 : FAZ16.57481(l)

Interim dividend declared and

paid of 10.2 HK cents per

share (2018: 17.0 HK cents

per share) 161 268
Final dividend proposed after

the balance sheet date of

4.4 HK cents per share

(2018: 16.5 HK cents per

share) 69 260

230 528

R2020F3 8108 ' EFEEZH A
BEER44EN  AEREREARRQF
BEFEFKD FEESREE - I8k
EREEREEATERRAAE - B
KRB 2 SREDNIERREB Z2ARTFE
BITRMHOEBE -

BRE-—FE ¥IRETFER
CEHERRKBENRE :

(A BEETRENN)

(b)

On March 10, 2020, the Board has recommended a final
dividend of 4.4 HK cents per share and is subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. The proposed dividend has not
been recognized as a liability at the balance sheet date. The
amount of proposed dividend was based on the shares of
the Company in issue as at the reporting date.

Dividends attributable to the previous year,
approved and paid during the year:

(In HK$ million) 2019 2018

B KK 3 2018F R B B A& 16.5/8 1

(20174 : |A%20.07(L)

2018 final dividend approved
and paid of 16.5 HK cents
per share (2017: 20.0 HK
cents per share) 260 315

2018F R HIMR B TyL AN A R20194F6
A6l 2z B a7 BERN °

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
A REBRABERLIA

The payment for 2018 final dividend was based on the total
number of issued shares of the Company on June 6,2019.
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MBRRWE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

14. Y% - HBRRE

2019412 H31H
December 31, 2019

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(U BEETHEN) (In HK$ million)

KAE Cost

12018F12 4318 At December 31, 2018

SHHREE Change in accounting policy
KB EYBaEEY Adjustment on adoption of

F169MHE HKFRS 16

#2019F1A1A At January 1, 2019

BEEE Translation difference

RE Additions

EEh Transfer out

LE Disposals

R2019F12A31H At December 31, 2019

ZRINE Accumulated depreciation
RRE and impairment

12018F 124318 At December 31, 2018

SHBRER Change in accounting policy
RaEEYBaSER Adjustment on adoption of

Z165MHE HKFRS 16

H20195171H At January 1, 2019

BEEE Translation difference

HE Impairment

TEERE Depreciation charge for

the year

=R Transfer out

L& Disposals

12019F 124318 At December 31, 2019

#2019612A31A Net book value at
ZEAFE December 31, 2019
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2019412 H31H
December 31, 2019

14, Y% - WBERFE(E) 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
HEME
BE - BRR
WOERE
KAEREZ Leasehold
THREF e k4 improvements, HE
Freehold land BF Plant & furniture & office Motor &3t
(U BEETAEN) (In HK$ million) & buildings  Buildings equipment equipment  vehicles Total
BAE Cost
R2018F1A1H At January 1, 2018 56 23 51 1,157 22 1,309
BMEZE Translation difference (1) - (1) (77) (1) (80)
NE Additions - - - 83 1 84
e Disposals - - - (48) (1) (49)
R2018%12A31H At December 31, 2018 55 23 50 1,115 21 1,264
2RNE Accumulated depreciation
REE and impairment
R2018%1 A1H At January 1, 2018 15 8 50 985 17 1,075
BEZES Translation difference (1) (1) (1) (79) - (76)
KEERE Depreciation charge
for the year 1 1 - 102 1 105
= Disposals - - - (46) (1) (47)
R2018%F12A31H At December 31, 2018 15 8 49 968 17 1,057
R2018F12A31H Net book value at
ZIREFE December 31, 2018 40 15 1 147 4 207

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

201912 H31H
December 31, 2019

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES

The balance sheet shows the following amounts relating to leases:

15. EARKEERBEERRE

BERBBEREIINTHHEERBENEHE

EREEE Right-of-use assets At
(X Ba&EETREN) (In HK$ million) Total
RAE Cost
M2018%12831H At December 31, 2018 =
ERTBURESE Change in accounting policy
RN E B SRS R 165 M T Adjustment on adoption of
HKFRS 16 1,374
R2019%F1 H18* At January 1, 2019~ 1,374
BmE R Translation difference 11
0 Additions 524
HEB®R Lease modifications 3
& Disposals (4)
M2019412831H At December 31, 2019 1,908
ZENE Accumulated depreciation
RiRE and impairment
M2019F1 /18 At January 1, 2019 =
HmE = Translation difference 2
B Impairment 26
RKEEGHE Depreciation charge for the year 605
= Disposals (4)
M2019412731H At December 31, 2019 629
A2019F12A31 B 2 REFE Net book value at
December 31, 2019 1,279
12H31H 181H
December 31, January 1,
2019 2019*
HEaE: Lease liabilities:
Vi) Current 536 391
IERE Non-current 572 719
1,108 1,110

2019FEMEMIRE R H A% 504285 7T o The total cash outflow for leases in 2019 was HK$942 million.

BR2019F 17 1A IRMNE BN HREERE 165 *
2 BHERHE - B2 E2) ) o

For adjustments recognized on adoption of HKFRS 16 on January 1, 2019,
please refer to Note 2(d)(iv).

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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B %% R M EE (4R )
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2019412 H31H
December 31, 2019

15.

ERAREEREERE(HE)

AEEHEREDE  BREMRAE BEM
TERH - HEARMIFE20%F -

HEEMERBERNBRHEETH - EF
BETRMGERMGEE - BT HEARED
HEBETOERFRERI - HEBZETIEM
EEMER - HEBEETSBIEEERR

MoMEHRERSRBMMMELHERE S
Z A NI - HRERIPIT - &S A A
100% M E R 5GE E N A # & N RGN E
o AN LBERHERENS.0%-30.5% © {£
RAENRERNRAEZRE - B REIE
HRFIMAEERAN - RIZFHERETHA
BHENK  BEFARFMNTEEERER
R T IARER ©

AEBERENFEHESSEREERNK
LTHEEEE ERFACAREEEERE
EBLAMERZEERRNE - ARERKAHNAK
MoBEHEEEMK LTHEEERERALS
BT - MIFRAREAEEATTRE -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (continued)

The Group leases various properties, including offices,
warehouses and retail stores. Rental contracts are made for
periods of 1 to 20 years.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security
interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased
assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Some property leases contain variable payment terms that are
linked to sales generated from a store. For individual stores, up
to 100% of lease payments are on the basis of variable payment
terms with percentages ranging from 8.0% to 30.5% of sales.
Variable payment terms are used for a variety of reasons, including
minimizing the fixed costs base for newly established stores.
Variable lease payments that depend on sales are recognized in
profit or loss in the period in which the condition that triggers those
payments occurs.

Extension and termination options are included in a number of
property leases across the Group. These are used to maximize
operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in the
Group’s operations. The majority of extension and termination
options held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the
respective lessor.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

201912 H31H
December 31, 2019

16. BEW INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
REBFBYEERRIA - The Group’s properties which are held for long-term rental yields.
(X B EETAEN) (In HK$ million) 2019 2018
BAE Cost
M1 A1H At January 1 61 64
MEEE Translation difference (1) @)
»W12A8318 At December 31 60 61
2BNE Accumulated depreciation
M1 A1H At January 1 36 36
MEEE Translation difference (1) )
e Depreciation 2 2
128311 At December 31 37 36
M12A31H 2 BREFE Net book value at December 31 23 25

ZARBYEN2019F12 A1 HZ AR EH B
Y HEEZHEQRFME c FENDREBEREE
% BBRMARINHEHER S RMEE
MEIRITIREENF LA LEME LN EE
BEREEEE - HFFRARBERENTUER
bt - HEMRAMNBTTSHSE2ZEHH
PIERME M AT R T BB -
MR2019F12A81H » ZWE(BIEHEE i
REFHD) 2B RARERST00EBTT ° £
AHFBERFPEREREMEZASRAL
3408 BT ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 & #

The fair value of the investment properties at December 31, 2019
was assessed by an independent professional valuation firm.
Valuation was based on income capitalization method which is
based on the capitalization of the net income and reversionary
income potential by adopting appropriate capitalization rates,
which are derived from analysis of sale transactions and valuers’
interpretation of prevailing investor requirements or expectations.
The prevailing market rents adopted in the valuation have
reference to recent lettings, within the subject properties and
other comparable properties. The total fair value of the properties,
including leasehold land and the building portion, was HK$37
million as at December 31, 2019. In the consolidated income
statement, rental income relating to investment properties of
HK$3.4 million was included.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
=AW EBAERAF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2019412 H31H
December 31, 2019

16. REWMWHE(E)
RIESMEZ DRER  ADEZSES RS
ERBRIERERBRR

BB EMER BRI AT ERINE

HELXH  HEHR

BF HEHR AT ZNE0F
(ABREERE)

BREMEZREFEINNOT

16.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best
use of the properties is their current use.

The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight-line
basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold Land Over the term of the lease
Buildings Over the shorter of the term of the lease or no
more than 50 years.

The net book value of the investment properties are analyzed as
follows:

(X BEBTREN) (In HK$ million) 2019 2018
EEBUINES Outside Hong Kong, held on lease
10FE E=50F M4 of between 10 and 50 years 23 25

BREMENRAERRBEOBIEER A
BRMS EBRGSHER(TABERBA) 1R
BEEBMBREERNFEISRNIAENER
DERE=R -

The fair value of the investment properties was based on inputs
that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs), which is categorized as Level 3 under the fair value
hierarchy pursuant to HKFRS 13.

17. B8 17. GOODWILL
(A BEETAEN) (In HK$ million) 2019 2018
M1ATEER12A31H At January 1 and December 31 546 546

BECREBESAEMBEEGDBOEE
AEBZORANRCELET - HERKE

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s CGUs identified according
to the locations of operation and business segment. The goodwill

DEAWTAT - analyzed by operating segment is as follows:
(K E&EETREN) (In HK$ million) 2019 2018
TERDH Retail and Distribution
— R KE b [@ — The rest of Asia Pacific 5 5
- R — The Middle East 541 541
546 546

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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B HmRMEE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BmE(E)

78R E A
TRENHECOEEPREEN - B
ENEETENRERERFERASEERR
MEEERAE BEZARDSBEIRE
ARARERHERAN - FTERERREER
B AREERIFAERERNTSEE(F =
A — REE3(c)) « B EEAERER
HEZBFMEREANFEVARSRE - B2
ERBEBEFREFLEATISER ZEMN
KREEEE - RPR - EEGHE - BHN
BFHFHERRER3.5% - SFHEINR
ZHEERE  HATERREREEFI.0%MH
o R ABeERE(TMEE] S
R ERATERZHABEIRES10.4% - Hit
FERRAERZ AR REER11.5%
E13.0% % C RBREBELD B ERR

EFTRAMN2019F K2018F 12 A31 B (LI
EEERFE -

AEEETHREFERENSANERER
ETHRMEDN - AREERER R 2 B
BROEEEDHEIEETRERB CREE
HETZRECHBEBETEOEE - RE
RERME M FEMGFHE R RERERE1% - B
WE SRR A1.49BHE T o REBAME
KIRB1% - RIAT B & B AR 2 1.2618 8
T o
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17. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment test for goodwill

The Middle East goodwill has been allocated to the Middle
East operating segment, which represents the lowest level at
which goodwill is monitored internally. The recoverable amount
of goodwill is determined based on fair value less costs of
disposal, using inputs for the fair value estimation that may
include unobservable market data (Level 3 — see Note 3(c)).
These calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year
period. Management determines the financial budgets of Middle
East based on past performance and its expectations of market
development. The weighted average annual sales growth rate in
the forecast period is estimated to be 3.5%. Cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using the estimated terminal
growth rate of 3.0% per annum. The pre-tax discount rate used
for United Arab Emirates (“UAE”) as a tax-free zone is 10.4% while
other Middle East Regions use pre-tax discount rates ranging from
11.5% to 13.0% which reflect specific risks relating to the current
market assessment of risks specific to such assets.

The Directors are of the opinion that there was no impairment of
goodwill as at December 31, 2019 and 2018.

The Group has performed a sensitivity analysis on key
assumptions used for the annual impairment test for goodwill.
A reasonably possible change in key assumptions used in the
impairment test for goodwill would not cause any of the carrying
amount of the Middle East CGUs to exceed its respective
recoverable amount. If the Middle East’s forecasted annual sales
growth rate had been lower by 1%, the recoverable amount would
decrease by HK$149 million. If the pre-tax discount rate had been
higher by 1%, the recoverable amount would decrease by HK$126
million.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
=AW EBAERAF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2019412 H31H
December 31, 2019

18. ¥ N EliExm

TXEINZAERRAZEAZREBER

- EEMEERTZEHNT

B REE R
Place of
incorporation
and operation

SERNTER
Name of
joint ventures

18.

FEROBEIHLR
Percentage of
equity holding

INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES

The joint ventures listed below have share capital consisting solely
of ordinary shares, particulars of the unlisted joint ventures are as

follows:

ERTR2BHRKRAE
HEMER

Issued and fully
paid share capital or
registered capital

EX-3 34

Principal activities

2019 2018

Giordano Corporation RERE 48.5 48.5 5,150,000,000% B K&TEREMEEEAMm

Limited* Republic of Korea KRW5,150,000,000 Retail of apparel and

accessories

BREEER AR Bk 49.0 49.0 200,000 KLBEMHES
Cheong Yiu Enterprises Hong Kong HK$200,000 Trading of packaging

Limited* products

BEEEZASAT * Jjoint ventures held indirectly
(X BEEBTREN) (In HK$ million) 2019 2018
M1A1H At January 1 552 563
JEAG % A Share of profit 63 64
BlaENaRE Dividends received from joint
ventures (54) (52)

MEEE Translation difference (23) (23)
Mm12A31H8 At December 31 538 552

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

. RENFES(E)
NPT
Sl

DA ZMBERER

TXHINALERR 2 EERFHEE -

201912 H31H
December 31, 2019

18. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

Summarized financial information for joint
ventures

Set out below is the summarized financial information for joint

ventures.
EEEERER Summarized balance sheet
(X Ba&EEThEN) (In HK$ million) 2019 2018
FE Current
RENHESEEET Cash and cash equivalents 648 675
Hmeh&E Other current assets 514 516
MENVEERLTR Total current assets 1,162 1,191
HinsafE Other current liabilities (208) (123)
mENBELREE Total current liabilities (208) (123)
FERB Non-current
BE Assets 337 75
A& Liabilities (183) (4)
BEFE Net assets 1,108 1,139
LN E R Summarized income statement
(U F&EETAEN) (In HK$ million) 2019 2018
Wz Revenue 1,385 1,474
e R Depreciation and amortization (121) 27)
& Expense (1,092) (1,277)
R FT1S 75 A g Profit before income taxes 172 170
FraR Income taxes (42) (38)
FRPTIS T8 % 7 & Profit after income taxes and

iz A Wan

total comprehensive income 130 132

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 & #
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2019412 H31H
December 31, 2019

18. ¥ AR (&)
BHARBEATR
2EARBEREZ A HEHREROE -

18. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)
Reconciliation of summarized financial information

Reconciliation of the summarized financial information presented
to the carrying amount of the interest in the joint ventures.

(U F&EETHAEN) (In HK$ million) 2019 2018
1A1HEEFE Opening net assets at January 1 1,137 1,160
REF = Profit for the year 130 132
& 2. Dividends (110) (107)
"mE=% Translation difference (49) (46)
12A31HEEFE Closing net assets at December 31 1,108 1,139
[N Share of interest in joint ventures 538 552
HEHIE Leases commitments 399 462

AEERFHBEZAERBIZ BRI RE LR
TAHARBEREANAE  MZEELERQF
AEEERIRBEREAEE -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
A REBRABERLIA

There are no material contingent liabilities and capital
commitments relating to the Group’s interest in the joint ventures,
and the joint ventures have no contingent liabilities and capital
commitments themselves.
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MBHRRWE(E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

REMGERBERAAREEEZS
BMEE

201912 H31H
December 31, 2019

19. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(K E&EETREN) (In HK$ million) 2019 2018
Bz AnE Opening fair value 6
A Transfer in - 16
NREZEEHEA Change in fair value

REMGERSIZARERIE 2 transferred to financial asset

TREERME at FVOCI reserve (1) (10)
Rz ARE Closing fair value 5 6

R2019%F12 A31H K2018F12A31H » R
HMERARERAREREEZCHMEERR
ARIRBIEBR AR AR ([EREIREK])3.21%
ZHEZ  R2018F1 B1HMAHEESRE
EEE - ZBELNBILHE - ERKRY
ERKEEER  EAEENTEHER

— o

MR2019F12A31H » REMERE WEIZAR
EREBZSMEAEZ AR ERBIEE AT
B2REET  BESEVERSELFES
KRR BEERDERE R -

RESREAANEREZSHMEE

20.

As at December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018, financial asset
at FVOCI represented 3.21% interests in Speedy Global Holdings
Limited (“Speedy”), which had been transferred from available-for-
sale financial asset as at January 1, 2018 and are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars. Speedy is engaged in garment manufacturing
business and is one of the key suppliers of the Group.

As at December 31, 2019, the fair value of the financial asset
at FVOCI is determined using its quoted price on the Stock
Exchange, which is categorized as Level 1 under the fair value
hierarchy pursuant to HKFRS 13.

FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

BER R2HEH
Preference Forward EEr
Shares contract Total
(U GEETAEN) (In HK$ million) 2019 2019 2019 2018
M ATBZBYIZ AnE Opening fair value at
January 1 28 - 28 28
H#0 Additions - 200 200 -
M12A31B 2R ARE Closing fair value at
December 31 28 200 228 28
g HIE Current portion - (200) (200) -
REIEE Non-current portion 28 - 28 28

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 & #
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2019412 H31H
December 31, 2019

20.

REZEZEAAEREEZERMEE
(#&)

MR2008F 6 H27H  AEEFTVEEWE D
£ Placita Holdings Limited ([ Placita])21.0%
s o BIEZE - 6,055,440 TR KK
REBIFHHT30.0% 0 T2 RABEE
E 5 456,055,440 Placitaz B % i ([ B
Fef% ) o dbAN  REBER TEER R
HERRE o

ZEERERNARMEENBaRARS
HE - AREEREFRMEE - RN
ZBFEFRABLERGBEIRENTGE

yR=|
1%

o /i

TR AEEE—HEBERBITIIL—H
RHIEH R R2,6008ETT c ZARE
R2020F1 A7HEE °

RESREARNBEREZSREEZARE
FEBEREaHAERCHEREMBA -

BREARORBRERRAAEREZ SR
BEAABERREBUMRRESR REREZ
BREMNBERTABEMS ERENER (T
AEBRBA) REFEMBEHREERE13H
MARENERIBRE=M -

BREHANNNBaRRARNEREZS
MEEZAABERREMSAHA ZEXRE
E o REEEMBEREENFISRZAAE
BRABRE— -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF

20. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

On June 27, 2008, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to dispose of its 21.0% interest in Placita Holdings
Limited (“Placita”). As part of the agreement, 6,055,440
ordinary shares representing the Group’s remaining 30.0%
of the total issued share capital of Placita were redesignated
into 6,055,440 preference shares of Placita (the “Preference
Shares”). Furthermore, the Group was granted a put option on the
Preference Shares.

The Preference Shares and the related options are measured at
fair value through profit or loss. The fair value has been and will be
re-assessed by an independent professional valuation firm at year
end and the end of each subsequent period.

During the year, the Group entered into a forward contract with a
principal banker approximately USD26 million. The contract had
been settled on January 7, 2020.

Changes in the fair values of financial asset at FVPL are recorded
in other income in the consolidated income statement.

The fair value of the financial asset at FVPL in respect of Preference
Shares is determined based on discounted cash flow, using inputs
that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs), which is categorized as Level 3 under the fair value
hierarchy pursuant to HKFRS 13.

The fair value of the financial asset at FVPL in respect of forward
contract is determined using its market exchange rate, which is
categorized as Level 1 under the fair value hierarchy pursuant to
HKFRS 13.
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201912 H31H
December 31, 2019

21. HELTHREAESHEMNRE 21. LEASEHOLD LAND AND RENTAL
PREPAYMENTS
HELH
BATE e
Leasehold E9re]
land Rental &
prepayments  prepayments Total

(UEEBTAEN) (In HK$ million) 2019 2019 2019 2018
R20185F12A31 A 28R EEE  Net book value at December 31, 2018 114 82 196 205
YHMEMESHERE%E  Impact on the initial adoption of

F16TENTE HKFRS 16 (108) (73) (181) -
M1 A1EZRRFE Net book value at January 1 6 9 15 205
BEEE Translation difference - 1 1 (5)
NE Additions S 4 4 68
AEEHE Amortization for the year (1) (8) (9) (72)
M12A31 B 2 REFE Net book value at December 31 5 6 11 196
L Current portion - (6) (6) 62)
RS Non-current portion 5 - 5 134

22. 78 22. INVENTORIES

(X BEETAEN) (In HK$ million) 2019 2018
SIRK oh Finished goods 548 552

FEECHRAABEATCLEEHEKAR A
20.001E# 7T (20184 : 225088 7T) °

The cost of inventories recognized as expense and included in cost
of goods sold amounted to HK$2,000 million (2018: HK$2,250
million).

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

s mEmBERAD 1
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2019412 H31H
December 31, 2019

23. EWEBR T & H th fE IR =X 23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(A BEBTREN) (In HK$ million) 2019 2018
FEUSBR 5K Trade receivables 239 330
W B Less: Loss allowance (27) (14)
eI BR FUFE Trade receivables, net 212 316
Higsr - aFrlak Other receivables, including
B FRIR deposits and prepayments 141 212
353 528
FEWEZTEXRAMEE  BREKLEILA Trade receivables mainly comprise amounts due from franchisees,
BERRIZZEEWA - KREBELTEBA T4 licensees and retail proceeds due from department stores. The
F30E0HEEHE o fE UK BR ZU N E 4th JiE U 7k Group normally allows a credit period of 30-90 days. The carrying
ZEmMERERAAERE - amounts of trade and other receivables are stated approximately at

their fair values.

TEWEE R R EMEWNZANNEMERRE R The other classes within trade and other receivables do not contain

SEREEE - impaired assets.

(a) BRER 7T (a) Ageing analysis
REBEZEAFFC NG EBRBE ZERER O Ageing analysis from the invoice date net of loss allowance is
wn as follows:
(U BEETREN) (In HK$ million) 2019 2018
0&30H 0-30 days 165 203
31260H 31-60 days 31 66
61£290H 61-90 days 13 28
#90H Over 90 days 3 19

212 316

AARERZEED RN EREM - A There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to
FBEKEF L EERE 2 EERR - trade receivables as the Group has a large number of

internationally dispersed customers.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

23. EWERAR HE M EYRK(E)

(a)

(b)

AR 2 A7 ()

201912 A31H » BEME I & B E
2 FEUW BR 3B 3,0008 78 7T (20184 -
6,800&87L) - MAETHEBEFERI
WEERCE: - RIEDHAE D ZRKR
DT -

201912 H31H
December 31, 2019

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(a)

Ageing analysis (continued)

As at December 31, 2019, trade receivables of HK$30 million
(2018: HK$68 million) were past due but not impaired. These
relate to a number of customers for whom there has been no
recent history of default. Their ageing analysis from the due
date is as follows:

(U B &EBTREN) (In HK$ million) 2019 2018
0&30H 0-30 days 23 45
#30H Over 30 days 7 23
30 68
VRS EE R (b) Loss allowance of trade receivables

FEMRBR SRR B 1B B - TOABBIRE A
R BIEAEERSREERRAE SIS
i LB T - BREFSERER
W BR SR AR 8 o

AEREREBEEZ2Y(BREETELE
BERTD)WT

Loss allowance in respect of trade receivables is recorded
using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied
that recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the loss
allowance is written off against trade receivables directly.

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the
year, including both specific and collective loss components,
is as follows:

(KB &EETREN) (In HK$ million) 2019 2018
W1 A1R At January 1 14 7
B AR 8 Reversal of provision for
doubtful debts - -
NG A AT U [ AR R ER 4 Receivables written off during
Z W 8H the year as uncollectible (4) )
IER A Provision for the year 17 9
W12A31H At December 31 27 14

1851 FE Ut BR 3R 2 S 1B B 4 04 I H 3R B IR
REMEF @ KEEEETEHR AT
B0 FEURBR X - IR B E IR
B - AEBERAFTEEN121ESBT
(2018%F : QOOE B T ) EIF M o

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 & #

The individually loss allowance for receivables relate to
customers that are in financial difficulties and management
assesses that only a portion of the receivables is expected
to be recovered. Consequently, specific allowances for
doubtful debts were recognized. The Group holds a
collateral amounted approximately of HK$121 million (2018:
HK$9 million) over the balances.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2019412 H31H
December 31, 2019

24, A 24. SHARE CAPITAL
B EE ;&S
(In HK$ million, except number Number of Share
(BB H SN A FEE T AEN) of shares) shares capital
ZEEBREESSBILZEER - Authorized ordinary shares
of HK$0.05 each:
M2018F1H1H - At January 1, 2018,
2018 12H318 » December 31, 2018,
20191 A1H K January 1, 2019,
2019412 A31H December 31, 2019 2,000,000,000 100
ERITREZEHZE Issued and fully paid:
M2018F1H1H At January 1, 2018 1,570,630,518 79
1T BB R RE Exercise of share options 8,378,000 -
FREHE RN Shares cancelled during
the year (508,000) -
M2018F 12 A31H &2019F12HA31H At December 31, 2018 and
December 31, 2019 1,578,500,518 79

(a)

(b)

BRITR MG

RIBEAR QA 2 BT El - BiZ 20184
12A31HIEFE - KRAFE M8 E
BEACRFERITEEERE 2 ER)
¥£778,378,000x #T & B - FIREE
58 c RAFAWMIEITHNEBA -
FRNREITE BB B EBEH N
FRF1GSEE17T1BIZE S | BIREST
EHIAR

ARRBET AN EBRERNRRE
BZRBERNESETEAZTARSE

N2
ZS o

I

BREEH

(R 8 | 2 ME R AR BBRER
AERERZ BB FBHNANFRF165
BE171H o

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

= & W H

AR & A

(a)

(b)

Issue of shares

Pursuant to the share option schemes of the Company, the
Company issued 8,378,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.05
each in the capital of the Company to option-holders who
exercised their rights attached to share options during the
year ended December 31, 2018. No new ordinary share was
issued during the current year. Movements in the number
of the outstanding share options during the year is set out
on pages 165 to 171 under the heading “SHARE OPTION
SCHEMES” of this annual report.

All the new ordinary shares issued by the Company ranked
pari passu with the then existing shares of the Company in all
respects.

Share option information

Summary of the “SHARE OPTION SCHEMES” and details of
the movement in share options of the Company during the
year are set out on pages 165 to 171 of this annual report.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

24, A (4E)

(c)

(d)

8 o &% = 85 IR 1

HZE2018F12A31HILFER » RIE
RARRRAEFTSH LN MR -
AAE B R FTEE R4 $£240,000%
AAREBREG  BREBI100EE
JC 0 EH240,000BBEIRMHEZE T
HEANRBBEITRADRZERD Z
EEARDR °

M 2017 4 £ T 268,000 f% & [ % 15 E
% 52018F 1 HFEHH © 525268,000%
D R2017F12 ABT B ERAETF
I REEEATREN 2BEDFTAR
nNalZREERF - HMRREEHERNE
B2 FBECHEF SR =& AEE
s -

B2019F1 A1 EAER 2 ZHER -
AR B AR TS O H X AR

T/'\ °

—HEEQARERENRS

M2019F12A31H - —BA SR A
B 28R 711,800,000 & 37 A A% 7 (2018
£ 1 1,800,000 BALALD ) ©
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24. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(c)

(d)

Repurchase and cancellation of shares

During the year ended December 31, 2018, pursuant to
the general mandate granted by the shareholders of the
Company to the Board, the Company repurchased a total
of 240,000 of its ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange
at a total consideration of HK$1 million, in which 240,000
repurchased shares were subsequently cancelled and the
issued share capital of the Company was reduced by the
nominal value of the cancelled shares accordingly.

The remaining 268,000 repurchased shares in 2017 were
subsequently cancelled in January 2018. These 268,000
shares were recognized as treasury shares at December
31, 2017. The premium paid and payable on repurchase
was charged against the retained profits of the Company.
An amount equivalent to the nominal value of the shares
cancelled was transferred from retained profits to the capital
redemption reserve.

From January 1, 2019 up to the approval date of this annual
report, the Company did not repurchase its ordinary shares
on the Stock Exchange.

Shares held by a joint venture

As at December 31, 2019, 1,800,000 ordinary shares (2018:
1,800,000 ordinary shares) were held by a joint venture.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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25. ERFEF RS 25. MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST
HZE2019F 12 A31 1L 7 EIr R ER L% A The total non-controlling interests as at December 31, 2019 are
2.0718%& (20184 : 22018/ 7T) * EHPT. HK$207 million (2018: HK$220 million), of which HK$185 million
Giordano Indonesia ([ Giordano Indonesial) (2018: HK$170 million) is for PT. Giordano Indonesia (“Giordano
{185 B L (2018F 1.7 EEH L) » Indonesia”), HK$ nil (2018: HK$17 million) is for Giordano Fashions
Giordano Fashions L.L.C. ([ Giordano UAE ) L.L.C. (“Giordano UAE”) and HK$17 million (2018: HK$17 million)
(20184 : 1,7008 87T ) » i Textile and is for Textile and Ready Garments Co. Ltd. (“Giordano KSA”). The
Ready Garments Co. Ltd.([ Giordano KSA]) non-controlling interests in respect of the rest of the companies are
51,7008 % 7T (20184F : 1,7008 %8 L) - & not material.

R R IR AR N E K o

MR2019F8 221 » AREE EHGiordano UAE On August 22, 2019, the Group entered into agreements with
BIFEPERR AR R AT 3 13 sk - W Giordano UAE the non-controlling shareholder of Giordano UAE to acquire all
BRI 20% A8 ERE A o remaining 20% economic interests in Giordano UAE.
ORI B AR IEE 201965 A31H AR The acquisition is deemed to have been completed on May 31,
5 2019.
EEEERESE Summarized balance sheet

Giordano Indonesia Giordano UAE Giordano KSA
(U FEFTLAEN) (In HK$ million) 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
wE Current
BE Assets 235 253 - 80 99 93
AafE Liabilities (86) (35) - (45) (51) (17)
MEFEERE Total current net assets 149 218 = 35 48 76
ERE Non-current
BE Assets 222 66 - 21 66 22
afE Liabilities (64) - - - (13) _
FERBFEELSE Total non-current net assets 158 66 = 21 53 22
REE Net assets 307 284 - 56 101 98

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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B 3% R M EE (AR
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2019F12H31H

December 31, 2019
25. MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

(continued)
N IREE K Summarized income statement
Giordano Indonesia Giordano UAE Giordano KSA

(U FEETAEN) (In HK$ million) 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
WA Revenue 630 585 - 225 342 320
PR ER1S AT A Profit before income taxes 102 103 - 14 46 39
Fis®i Income taxes (28) (26) - - (8) (5)
BRETEB&ET Profit after income taxes 74 77 - 14 38 34
HAR A W Other comprehensive income 10 (16) - - (1) 1
bl Total comprehensive income 84 61 - 14 37 35
RIS RRA s Total comprehensive income

allocated to non-controlling

interests 38 42 - 3 9 9
FEHMRERE RS Dividends paid to non-controlling

interests 29 23 - 3 9 12

HEeERERFE Summarized cash flows
Giordano Indonesia Giordano UAE Giordano KSA
(U FEFTAEN) (In HK$ million) 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
REERKIRERNFR Net cash inflow from
operating activities 126 99 - 33 82 29
REERzReRLFE Net cash outflow from
investing activities (8) (20) - (4) (49) (6)
BMEXK RS RLFE Net cash outflow from
financing activities (101) (46) - (15) (29) (40)
RehBeSE2EM/ Increase/(decrease) in cash and
CR) cash equivalents 17 33 - 14 4 (17)
M A1RZEE&RESE Cash and cash equivalents at
BT January 1 72 44 - 23 43 60
HVETER S B 2 B Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes 2 (5) - - (1) -
M12A31AZREREE Cash and cash equivalents
ZEER at December 31 91 72 - 37 46 43

B ERMR/ARGFEERR A HEANTHE

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 #
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The information above is the amount before inter-company
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26. PRI EEEBRKRERZREHX

26. BALANCE SHEET AND EQUITY MOVEMENTS OF

THE COMPANY

ANBEEERER Balance sheet of the Company
HZ12H31H
As at 31 December
(X EEETREN) (In HK$ million) 2019 2018
& E ASSETS
ERBEE Non-current assets
VERR ST Property, plant and equipment - 6
ERAEEE Right-of-use assets 106 -
N EENGEIE Interest in subsidiaries 816 816
HELHN Leasehold land and
HeBmE rental prepayments 3 98
HEZRS Rental deposits = 1
REZEEAREREZ Financial asset at fair value
CRLEE through profit or loss 28 28
JE U B BB A &) R IE Amounts due from subsidiaries 181 181
1,134 1,130
REBEE Current assets
HELHN Leasehold land and
e TEHIAE rental prepayments = 5
7 i B 3 % EL b LR Trade and other receivables 2 4
JE LB 8 R B 5108 Amounts due from subsidiaries 1,433 1,484
He MRTTET Cash and bank balances 136 310
1,571 1,803
EERE Total assets 2,705 2,933
EzRAE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
B @S Capital and reserves
[LEN Share capital 79 79
] Reserves 1,158 1,057
BORAR B Proposed dividends - 260
REFBEE Total equity 1,237 1,396
RBEE Current liabilities
FEATBR 3 R Ho At FE S 3R Trade and other payables 4 4
HEAE Lease liabilities 2 -
JRE S BT BB 1 ) 3B Amounts due to subsidiaries 1,459 1,532
FETPTIEHR Income tax payable 3 1
BEAEHE Total liabilities 1,468 1,637
EERkEEERH Total equity and liabilities 2,705 2,933
BERBEE Net current assets 103 266
BEABRRBERE Total assets less current
liabilities 1,237 1,396
2| E R RE#E
LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter CHAN Ka Wai
o o
Director Director

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF
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26. NOEEEBERLEESSHKR(E) 26. BALANCE SHEET AND EQUITY MOVEMENTS OF
THE COMPANY (continued)

DPEREBZEEHR Equity movements of the Company
B ERE
BERE e
BA  #ARE Capital  RAEE Share &R < ER4E
Share Contributed redemption Share options  Retained Total
(WEEETAEN) (In HK$ million) capital surplus reserve  premium reserve profits equity
12019F1 1R At January 1, 2019 79 540 3 978 20 (224) 1,396
REEGRH Profit for the year - - - - - 261 261
Brals Total comprehensive income - - - - - 261 261
REREE Transfer among reserves = - = - 1) 1 -
ERETE Share option schemes
~BREER ~ Share option expense - - - - 1 _ 1
2018 KR8 (73 13(b)) 2018 final dividend (Note 13(b)) - - - - - (260) (260)
20195 R ERE (M7 13(2)) 2019 interim dividend (Note 13(a)) - - - - - (161) (161)
- = - = = (420) (420)
72019%12531A At December 31, 2019 79 540 3 978 20 (383) 1,237
2018F Z L BB FIAT ¢ The comparative figures for 2018 are set out as follows:
X falkiE
BEREE FE
BAR  HABR Captal  REEE Share  Efafl  BEzAE
Share  Contrbuted  redemption Share options Retained Total
(NUBEETEEND) (In HKS million) capital surplus reserve  premium reserve profits equity
R2018F1 1R At January 1, 2018 79 540 3 945 19 (149) 1,437
KEERH Profit for the year - - - - - 507 507
anilE Total comprehensive income - - - - - 507 507
ClEE Transfer among reserves - - . . 0 9 i}
ERETE Share option schemes
—1IRERE - Exercise of share options - - - 33 - _ 3
—-BHREER - Share option expense - - - - 3 _ 3
2017 RER 8 (Hi3E 13b)) 2017 final dividend (Note 13(b)) - - - - - (315) (315)
2018 IR 8 (Hft 13(2) 2018 interim dividend (Note 15(3)) - - - - - (268) (268)
BO Rz BRIA Shares repurchased and cancelled - - - - - (1) (1)
- - - 33 1 (582) (548)
12018F12 4318 At December 31, 2018 79 540 3 978 20 (224) 1,396

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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27. f##E 27. RESERVES
MR2019F12A31H » KEBZREE» T The reserves of the Group as at December 31, 2019 are analyzed
T~ as follows:
(K BEETRENL) (In HK$ million) 2019 2018
AR Contributed surplus 383 383
Nl Capital redemption reserve 3 3
%17 %= B Share premium 978 978
B ERE Share options reserve 20 20
BE (A Exchange reserve (22) (10)
H b Other reserves 114 72
REMERE IR A BEERIE Financial asset at fair value
2 RE E R through other comprehensive

income reserve (4) (3)

BT ) Retained profits 1,089 1,267
2,561 2,710

BURAHAR B (ML 13(3) Proposed final dividends

(Note 13(a)) (69) (260)
B Total reserves 2,492 2,450

REBz@BABHRDEREEEANELE S
HEIREE  MEBEERTIIREMN199545 A 29
A5 2 ket dlimEsT - IRIBEE R iE1981
FRENVE(FIBE]) - BABBADIR TR o

Hit#w o ERHBFBOT ¢

(@)

REBEPEREEREZLIMER -+
BAREZMBRRZEEREES A
RBEEFEEE(NE) RAAEMZE
B A F 2 EAER

RIBEFRE NS RER BIA D R R R %
R ABRBZAERREERB
He REMFEER A AR EEEARKE
BREEEAN - M AERSREIR

%o

RIBFTEE PGP R BDED - BB BT 2 B
BRAZEERBES  BRBAERE
Sh - ARMEDECZA ©

B Rh e 2 R & E5,9008
BT (20184 1.2118%7T) (MfzE28) »

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

= & W H

AR & A

The contributed surplus of the Group represents a credit arising
from a group reorganization pursuant to a scheme of arrangement
which was completed on May 29, 1995. Under the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus is
distributable to the shareholders.

Details of the main items in other reserves are as follows:

(@)

According to the relevant laws and financial regulations,
the statutory reserve funds of the subsidiaries in Mainland
China are used to make up prior years’ losses, if any, and to
increase the capital of the subsidiaries.

In accordance with the Korean Tax Incentive Limitation
Law and Korean Commercial Code, the statutory reserve
fund and other reserves of the joint venture in the Republic
of Korea may only be used to offset a future deficit or be
transferred to capital stock, but not for cash dividends.

According to the UAE Commercial Companies Law, the
statutory reserve fund of the subsidiary in the UAE is not
available for distribution except as provided in the Federal
Law.

Put option financial liability recognized of HK$59 million
(2018: HK$121 million) (Note 28).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

RURBEHHERE

2012 % -+ 7 £ @ 3t [ Giordano UAE K
Giordano KSAZ FE#5 A% A% 3 15 i 580l HR g -
NEEHERLERARIZBTEZ TAS
BFfEENYBEEMERAELN1.02E
PETT o FR IR AR B PO AN & B ST AN MLEE
Giordano UAE X Giordano KSAZ %1534 1%
BERS AT c MEEEIMBE - ZxEHKa
B IRE BN AER - BEFTERSE
MIREFE - BHRLBREEEAET(E
TDEHERIBREBEE -

R 20154 + Z< & & 5k M Giordano Fashions
Co. W.L. L.([ Giordano KW ) % GIO Fashions
W.L.L.([ Giordano QA ) Z JEIZR AR AR 5%
ROnHIE  UEEBEREE AR ZHT#
mPARBEMELANYBEEMERBELY
1,9008 87T  :ZI% L 2 h A AL B R
I B& Giordano KW X Giordano QA Z A& {734
%EERERI T MEBEDEAE - ZEYIB
BEVSEEBEERARER  EtEDS
HHRE - HHRLBAREaENETTER
P AEREAE

o

R20174 - KE&EBE FERGiordano Middle East
FZE([ Giordano MEF ) Z JE#ZE IR AR SR % H 3R
SHEAME - DAL E & Giordano MEF 2 2% #g
HTAEEMEENFBEEMERAEYD
600E BT o ZE I RA N AL BT H
& Giordano MEF 2 f& 17 3 & BERF AT 1T {2 -
MEBEINHAY ZETBABYVLSIEER
FEER  MGAELDSEMNRE - BHR
SHERE A EUETLAHERI AERBDEE -

MN20184 + ANEE EGiordano MEF3EIZ IR A
RET ML RATE —TBRE B AL6008 5
T AR EEE R % Giordano MEF Z 2% 25 ° %
TR A BB R -
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28. PUT OPTION LIABILITIES

In 2012, the Group recognized financial liabilities of approximately
HK$102 million in relation to the financial liabilities arising from the
put option granted to the non-controlling shareholders of Giordano
UAE and Giordano KSA to sell their remaining interests in these
companies to the Group. Such put option is exercisable any time
after 3 years from completion of the Group’s acquisition of the
shares in Giordano UAE and Giordano KSA and has no expiry date.
Such financial liabilities are initially recognized at their amortized
costs, which is measure at the present value of the estimated
redemption amount. The put option liabilities are denominated
in United States dollars (“US$”) and are classified under current
liabilities.

In 2015, the Group recognized financial liabilities of approximately
HK$19 million in relation to the financial liabilities arising from the
put option granted to the non-controlling shareholders of Giordano
Fashions Co. W.L.L. (“Giordano KW”) and GIO Fashions W.L.L.
(“Giordano QA”) to sell their remaining interests in these companies
to the Group. Such put option is exercisable any time after 3
years from completion of the Group’s acquisition of the shares
in Giordano KW and Giordano QA and has no expiry date. Such
financial liabilities are initially recognized at their amortized costs,
which is the present value of the estimated redemption amount.
The put option liabilities are denominated in U.S. dollars and are
classified under current liabilities.

In 2017, the Group recognized financial liabilities of approximately
HK$6 million in relation to the financial liabilities arising from the
put option granted to the non-controlling shareholder of Giordano
Middle East FZE (“Giordano MEF”) to sell 2% interests in Giordano
MEF to the Group. Such put option is exercisable any time after 3
years from the completion of the Group’s disposal of the shares
in Giordano MEF and has no expiry date. Such financial liabilities
are initially recognized at their fair value, which is the present value
of the estimated redemption amount. The put option liabilities are
denominated in U.S. dollars and are classified under non-current
liabilities.

In 2018, the Group entered into an arrangement with the non-
controlling shareholder of Giordano MEF and exercised a call
option to purchase back these 2% interest in Giordano MEF at
a consideration of approximately HK$6 million. The related put
option had been lapsed automatically.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
=AW EBAERAF
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28. RUERLEHBEEGRE(E) 28.

R - 2N £ & B Giordano UAE - Giordano
KW K Giordano QARIFEIEIRAR R AT 2 #p7sk -
HOERGEHE - UREDAIX2,1008 75
7T~ 11,1008 7 7T & 5008 # 7T 1 & Giordano
UAE&I20% 4% B #E 2= - Giordano KW&I31%
B 45 5 #E 25 I Giordano QA H) 41% B 4% 7
ez o M 7E # — & U B Giordano UAE -
Giordano KW & Giordano QA 7 # 25 & [&
B EETER AR 0h B M R M AR B RO
HEAECEER -

ZEAREEEO S RENE TR eS8
SRBHRARSANOESREAABZAS
MEE + RENHZZENZER N BE
Mg EMENEM(TAEREA) REE
BB HmEERNEISRZAARBNERD IR

BE=g o
29, EEBRIBEERE 29.

EXEHBEERBREINCEEERZE
ARERDERR 2 B RMIER B -

ARERFERZEEHEEEREHES S
(R —MBUHE 2 B BRI M T -

PUT OPTION LIABILITIES (continued)

During the year, the Group entered into agreements with the
non-controlling shareholder of Giordano UAE, Giordano KW and
Giordano QA who exercised the put option to sell 20% economic
interests in Giordano UAE, 31% economic interest in Giordano
KW and 41% economic interest in Giordano QA at considerations
of approximately HK$21 million, HK$11 million and HK$5 million
respectively. The associated put option liabilities recognized
arising from the put option granted had been lapsed accordingly at
the time of the further acquisition of Giordano UAE, Giordano KW
and Giordano QA economic interest.

The redemption amount of the put option liabilities is determined
at higher of fixed amount of cash or fair value of the equity
investment based on discounted cash flows, using inputs that are
not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs), which
is categorized as Level 3 under the fair value hierarchy pursuant to
HKFRS 13.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

Deferred tax liabilities are calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method at the rates applicable in the
respective jurisdictions.

The movement in the Group’s deferred tax assets and liabilities
(prior to offsetting of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction)
during the year is as follows:

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

EBEEHRBE(EE) &A@ Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
MEETTIE RDIKZ
Accelerated R
accounting  Unremitted Hitb a5
(U BEETAEN) (In HK$ million) depreciation profits Others Total
74201951 A1H At January 1, 2019 (6) 121 (39) 76
MEEH Translation difference ~ (3) - 3)
RABRF(GTA) /5% (Credited)/charged to income
(BiaF11) statement (Note 11) 6 (1) (7 (2
201912 A31H At December 31, 2019 - 117 (46) 71
R2018%1 A41H At January 1, 2018 (5) 127 (46) 76
MELE Translation difference (1) (8) 4 (5)
RFERATIZ Charged to income statement
(Hizt11) (Note 11) - 2 3 5
7201812 A31H At December 31, 2018 (6) 121 (39) 76

T W E B AER LA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

29. EEBIEEE (&)
EEBIR(EE) BE(E)

REBERERRLERIEEEG 2008 E T
(20184 : 7,300& B L) EBRNTHIE - hE
REREEF B E EE HF2,7008 %7 (2018
F : 3,800& % 7T) MR 20199F12 A31 H#ES
FRER - BN EE RN EENE
NaElz R EATIE S5 -

FEOEERNFAT » BREMFHRS RE—
M EXHAEEAREERBERAR
BB - TIHSBESABEBERER 1
EHEERBERAIIEK -

29.

201912 H31H
December 31, 2019

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (continued)
Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities (continued)

The Group has unrecognized deferred tax assets of HK$62
million (2018: HK$73 million) arising mainly from tax losses. These
unrecognized deferred tax assets to the extent of HK$27 million
(2018: HK$38 million) will expire within 5 years from December
31, 2019. The remaining portion is mainly related to the losses of
subsidiaries in Australia and Germany which have no expiry date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the
same fiscal authority. The following amounts, determined after
appropriate offsetting, are shown in the consolidated balance
sheet.

(B EETAEN) (In HK$ million) 2019 2018
IEEF A& E Deferred tax assets (54) (47)
BB A R Deferred tax liabilities 125 123
71 76
30. ERNERARREMESR 30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
(X E&EETREN) (In HK$ million) 2019 2018
FEATER K Trade payables 139 124
HA R R R Other payables and accrued

e & A expense 553 352
692 476

AT BRER BRI Z BRES D AT - The ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows:
(A F&EETAEN) (In HK$ million) 2019 2018
0&30H 0-30 days 111 93
31£260H 31-60 days 15 17
61%290H 61-90 days 1 4
#90H Over 90 days 12 10
139 124

ENEAREMEN R REERELARE
A -

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 & #

The carrying amounts of trade payables and other payables are
stated approximately at their fair values.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2019412 H31H
December 31, 2019

1. BEeRBITER 31. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
(B EETAENN) (In HK$ million) 2019 2018
HeMReEE Cash and cash equivalents 970 1,142
FEHB=EA A -3 H Bank deposits with maturity
ZIRITIFR over three months from
date of deposits 289 173
1,259 1,315

RNEFN RS RBETTHEEEESE2.50
BATT(2018%F : 354 BL) Z ARERS
M ERITHETE ©

AEETHEFFRNERNEX T F25%
(2018%F : 2.6%) ' FRZEFFRZ FI2IH
HRASZNR—@A -

Included in the cash and bank balances of the Group were cash
and bank balances totaling HK$250 million (2018: HK$354 million)
denominated in Renminbi.

The effective interest rate on bank deposits of the Group was 2.5%
(2018: 2.6%) per annum; these deposits have an average maturity
of more than 1 month as at year end.

32. RITER 32. BANK LOANS
(KX BFEETAEN) (In HK$ million) 2019 2018
MHEIRITE I B LA Short-term bank loans,
AT EBEHE unsecured and denominated in
- %7 - United States dollar 199 -
- BT - Hong Kong dollar 40 298
- A — New Taiwan dollar 26 -
265 298

R2019F 128318 » AEB ZEHRITER
HEEEFEAE2.4% (20184 :1.8%) < :2%4R
TEFR—FRNEIE -

RERTERNREEEZERAAERS

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
A REBRABERLIA

The effective interest rate of the Group’s short-term bank loans as
at December 31, 2019 was 2.4% (2018: 1.8%); these bank loans
are repayable within one year.

The carrying amounts of short-term bank loans are stated
approximately at their fair values.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

33. HE&IE

() A2019%12A831H  "EEBRTEE
R RENER AU RARBIEZ
HEnREEMHEEERNT

201912 H31H
December 31, 2019

33. LEASES COMMITMENTS

(@)

As at December 31, 2019, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease charges payable under non-cancellable
leases in respect of retail shops, office premises and
warehouses as set out below:

(KB &EETTREN) (In HK$ million) 2019 2018

1F R Within one year 32 634
161 E5F K After one year but within

five years - 603

5F M E Over five years - 10

32 1,247

HESHBEE TRBEGRR - HEeEH
WhE N AEME - B TPImcHEEEST
BESERBHSIAHERFAEZHE
E(ABEERE) o LAAETIZHE
REMEDAE -

E2019%F1 A1H#E - BREHHEEN -
AEECEZSHERRAERAESR
B #E— S ERE2MME15 -

(b) M2019F12A31H » "EEEALA
YNGRk NG /N N1 N3
S 2 S E T E /) A K E U & U A R

The leases contracts have varying terms, escalation clauses
and renewal rights. The lease rentals of certain outlets are
based on the higher of a minimum guaranteed rental or a
sales level based rental. The minimum guaranteed rental has
been used to arrive at the above commitments.

From January 1, 2019, the Group has recognized right-of-
use assets for these leases, except for short-term leases,
see Note 15 for further information.

As at December 31, 2019, the Group as lessor had future
aggregate minimum lease income receivable under non-
cancellable operating leases in respect of retail shops and

N office premises as set out below:
(KB &EETREN) (In HK$ million) 2019 2018
1R Within one year 17 15
1F & {B5F K After one year but within
five years 24 28
5% A Over five years - 3
41 46
34. EARALE 34. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

M20194 K20184 12 A31H » AEE I &
EAERHEMEEE  RREEHAER
2 & ARHIE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 & #

As at December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Group had no material
capital commitments in respect of leasehold improvement,
furniture and fixtures.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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35. MEERBELA 2EEHK

TRHFBASEREBRELRDNARG
BRASLIRSEY  BELTHAEED
BEDRREREME  IRKBEERES
AEBEGAVBRRTOBRBETBIE

HEHIRERE -

35. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below shows details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be classified in
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows from financing

activities.
MEXE-AE
Liabilities from
financing activities

BN
PR—Fz
RITEN
#HEE®E Bankloans
Lease due within
(U B EFETAEN) (In HK$ million) liabilities 1 year
M2018F1 A18 23 EH Net debt as at 1 January 2018 - 208
BeRE Cash flows = =
M2018%12 A31 H Z FEH Net debt as at 31 December 2018 - 298

ERTBURESE Change in accounting policy

RN E B Bk 28] adjustment on adoption of

F16RH TR HKFRS 16 1,110 -
RH2019F1 A1 B 2 FEH Net debt as at 1 January 2019 1,110 298
BEERITER Repayment of bank loans - (332)
FIBIRITER Addition of bank loans - 299
YTRHEEAaE Payment for lease liabilities

(BEFE) (including interest) (556) =
RS ED) Non-cash movements 554 =
201912 A31 B 2/ FEH Net debt as at 31 December 2019 1,108 265

FRSEBRAFEIUNHEEEED

TRAEEMEENFEER -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF

Non-cash movements include financial liabilities arising from new
leases entered during the year and the corresponding interest
expenses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

201912 H31H
December 31, 2019

36. EEREBALIRS 36. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
R A T 1E TEE&F?E? HlE—7 - Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability,
EH B R EBRRBEE S —FITEEARY directly or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise
BHZANT - HEZMAZESISZMAER significant influence over the other party in making financial and
FENZANTNMRAEEEBAL - operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related

if they are subject to common control or common significant
influence.
(a) HEBALTZXRS (a) Transactions with related parties
RAFEER  HETHBARIKR KR NE During the year, certain subsidiaries traded with joint
BESKBRRASE N THETIEEHEK ventures in the ordinary and usual course of business
MRS - BAZERZFFMWT ¢ on normal commercial terms. Details relating to these

transactions are as follows:

(LA E&EBT/RBEN) (In HK$ million) 2019 2018
HET— F'EEJ(:\%’ A Sales to a joint venture 160 156
HEGEE QT Purchases from
joint ventures 1 1
FraT R Royalty income from
B—E&aE QT a joint venture 26 27
(b) EEREEA L 24 (b) Balances with related parties
M12 A 31 B E W A L FUE Amounts due from these related parties at December 31 are:
(KB &EETREL) (In HK$ million) 2019 2018
FEURA &N R)FRIE Amounts due from joint
ventures 8 14
Ho019F12 B31H » |l fE Yy B B As at December 31, 2019, the above amounts due from
+ IE D kM FE U BR B R Hfh E R related parties are reflected in trade and other receivables.
oo EINFIEY AEEE - 2R REN The receivables are unsecured in nature, bear no interest
BESREFIETN o and are repayable on demand.
(c) EEEEE KN (c) Key management compensation
BT ESEHRGEATEESEE | Executive Directors are considered as key management and
EMENS B RBI IR MEM 10N IBE their emoluments have been disclosed in Note 10 to the
HTEETEBEEREMNEISOT financial statements. The emoluments payable to other key

management are as follows:

(OB TF T RE M) (In HK$°000) 2019 2018
EAXFHe & Basic salaries and
HAth iz Other Benefits 10,595 10,459
RINEFHEIHERK Contribution to pension
schemes 144 146
IS I TEAT Discretionary bonuses 4,526 5,193
15,265 15,798

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2019412 H31H
December 31, 2019

37. AREE 37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
20194 X 2018F 12 A31H » AEBE T E As at December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Group did not have any
FAERIARE - significant contingent liabilities.

38. TEWEA T 38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
AATRC019FE12A31B Y TEWE AT The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries of the Company
T as at December 31, 2019:

BERBZ BRTR2BHERE
EREIE AMER GBGEEX
Effective Issued and fully paid TEX£%#% EEHE
NGRS BR AL it B percentage of share capital/registered  Principal activities/
Name of subsidiary Place of incorporation equity holding capital/quota capital place of operation
2019 2018
BElRARAAN 55 100 100 3,000,000 AT HKETERNERER
Bluestar Exchange Limited*  Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 fEEm /&5
Retail and distribution of
apparel and accessories/
Hong Kong
East Jean Limited* & 100 100 1,000,0008T HETERELEBER/ &2
Hong Kong HK$1,000,000  Retail of apparel and
accessories/Taiwan
GIO Fashions W.L.L.* FERH 49 40 200,000 FERELH LETEREREHAR/
State of Qatar QAR200,000 REB
Retail of apparel and
accessories/State of Qatar
GIOR Fashion Company i 60 60 26,000,000,0008f & KETEREREBAR,/HH
Limited* Vietnam VND$26,000,000,000  Retail of apparel and
accessories/Vietnam
Giordano (Australia) EM 92.8 92.8 700,000 BT METERELEBESR/ RN
Pty. Limited* Australia AUD700,000  Retail of apparel and
accessories/Australia
Giordano Fashions L.L.C.*  ffitgg 49 49 3,000,000/ B} KETERRREHAR/
UAE AED 3,000,000 2
Retail of apparel and
accessories/UAE
Giordano Fashions W.L.L.*  RIE4 49 40 300,000 RIEEEMNE KETERELEERR/
State of Kuwait KWD300,000 RERE
Retail of apparel and
accessories/State of Kuwait
ERRAERAR Bk 100 100 5,000,000 HETERIERER
Giordano Limited"* Hong Kong HK$5,000,000  E#REm/EE

Retail and distribution of
apparel and accessories/
Hong Kong

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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38. TEMB AT (&)

BB mRMEE(E)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

201912 H31H
December 31, 2019

38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

BERGZ BRTR2BHERE/
ERESE aMEx/ BEEE
Effective Issued and fully paid FEEH% /TLHE
HEBLREE BR L B percentage of share capital/registered  Principal activities/
Name of subsidiary Place of incorporation equity holding capital/quota capital place of operation
2019 2018
Giordano (Thai) Co., Ltd.*  %&HE 100 100 10,000,000% 4% KETERRREBAR/ ZE
Thailand Baht10,000,000  Retail of apparel and
accessories/Thailand
Giordano (M) Sdn. Bhd. D i 100 100 500,0005KALSE METEREREHER/
Malaysia RM500,000  HkAER
Retail of apparel and
accessories/Malaysia
TR URFER AR B 100 100 50,00081% KWETEREREHEAR,/ RN
Giordano (Macau) Limited*  Macau MOP50,000  Retail of apparel and
accessories/Macau
Giordano Middle East FZE*  ME¢# — 5 100 100 1,000,000 B st & D HREREEAR/
Dubai - UAE AED1,000,000 BBt 15
Distribution of apparel and
accessories/Dubai — UAE
Giordano Originals 703 100 100 1,900,002 FMMET KETEREHRER
(Singapore) Private Limited Singapore SGD1,900,002 R R 3 15
Retailing and trading of apparel
and accessories/Singapore
Giordano Vietnam Limited* &% 60 60 802,000 £ RERR /BB
Hong Kong USD802,000  Investment holding/Hong Kong
Giordano (Cambodia) RHE 80 80 4000000KHRER LETEREREEAR/
Enterprises Limited* Cambodia KHR$4,000,000 RIHE
Retail of apparel and accessories/
Gambodia
PT. Giordano Indonesia* 0 40 40 2,500,000,00050E8 [ETERE  ERARK
Indonesia IDR2,500,000,000  HABER/HE
Retail of apparel, accessories
and related products/Indonesia
RINREERBRAR REARAME 100 100 210,100,000TARS REZR  RERBERER
Shenzhen Tiger People’s Republic of China RMB210,100,000 EERR,/ mEAE
Garment Ltd.* # Investment holding,
manufacturing and retailing
of apparel and accessories/
Mainland China
RELCEBRAT 0 100 100 60,001,008 REER KKBEHR
Tiger Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$60,001,000 REEBRY /RE AR

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 #
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Investment holding, trading of
garment products and
provision of management
services/Mainland China

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2019412 H31H
December 31, 2019

38. TEMB AT (&)

38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

BERH 2 BRTR2BHERE/
ERHAR TMERHEER
Effective Issued and fully paid FEEH% /TLHE

WEAREM

ek

percentage of

share capital/registered

Principal activities/

Name of subsidiary Place of incorporation equity holding capital/quota capital place of operation
2019 2018
Textile and Ready DEMAATE 75 75 27,000,000 8% METEREREEAR/
Garments Co. Ltd.* Kingdom of Saudi Arabia SR27,000,000 WEMAATR
Retail of apparel and
accessories/Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia
Walton International Ltd.* ReHE 100 100 102871 HEHESFE/BE
Cayman Islands USD102  Licensing of trademarks/
Hong Kong
Bt - Notes:
o ONEBENNE # A foreign owned enterprise
MEREZHB AR Subsidiaries held indirectly
39. HigsEE 39. SUBSEQUENT EVENT
B2020F1 AF A Bk m SR ARIT ([ AR Since the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic (the “Pandemic”)
THEBRUEK  AEAEZEAEHDREESD in January 2020, a number of provinces and municipalities in
RSN ANEREEANEFTEEH—F Mainland China have activated level | — the highest-level response
B KIS HERBEEEH AARTEILL - to major public health emergencies and adopted various strict
measures to curb the spread of the Pandemic.
P1ATE - ANEBUWE| K E S B AREH 7T K In late January, the Group received notices from local
FEBPIA R &R B ERRMEYRLEERRE governmental authorities, as well as management offices of
BA O B RERARKEEEETHRT various department stores and shopping malls in Mainland China,
MERLE  UERRASAXRITHIEZIE  1# under which it was required to temporarily suspend business
BRAZBRBRENMEZE - RIBEE  AHERER operations in certain cities to facilitate the prevention and control
METITWEEMZE  B1ATERE  KEE of the Pandemic and ensure the health and safety of the public.
FEREMEERPEAEZR TS5 Z2&SE In accordance with the measures, and to ensure the health and
M2020F3 A10H BV AR E B HA (48 & [ B safety of our customers and employees, the Group has temporarily
BEE ) - NAESABMEZ R (B iE28RH A suspended the operations of certain DOS situated in Mainland
REMNBEZE)NREE REREHZIIE China since late January, with 54 DOS (including 28 DOS in
BHA74ABEE I EE S EE o L2020 B ™MW Wuhan) still closed as at the date of this report on March 10,
R EREFPEAENEET  HAET 2020 (collectively, the “Subsequent Period”). The operation of a
REEFENELHHBEBTIERES B maximum of 174 DOS was suspended during the Subsequent
FS . &BAMIINEEAZHE S MNME ZFH Period. Together with the closed stores in Mainland China, the
EEELATIMNEE SEEBEESESE spread of COVID-19 has also adversely impacted the performance
RFAMBRFEEREZEE  WIHETHE Y of stores in most Asian regions including, but not limited to Hong
REEBMNPT BRI RIS EEENTE - Kong, Macau, Taiwan and Singapore during the first two months of
2020. Management will pay close attention to the development of
COVID-19 and will continue to evaluate its impact on the financial
position and operating results of the Group.
40. Bz 2 A& 40. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AP HHRRDAR2020F3 10 EEE S
E o

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF

The financial statements were approved by the Board on March
10, 2020.
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BEREARER
SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

On June 9, 2011, the Company terminated its share option scheme
adopted on January 24, 2002 (the “2002 Share Option Scheme”) and
adopted a new share option scheme (as amended on May 22, 2012) (the
“2011 Share Option Scheme”) on the same date. No options may be
and have been granted under the 2002 Share Option Scheme after the
expiry date. Under the 2011 Share Option Scheme, the Directors may, at
their discretion, grant to any eligible participants (as defined below) share
options to subscribe for the Company’s shares, subject to the terms
and conditions stipulated therein. Notwithstanding the expiry of the
2002 Share Option Scheme, the share options which had been granted
during the life of the scheme shall continue to be valid and exercisable
in accordance with their terms of issue and in all other respects its
provisions shall remain in full force and effect.

A summary of the principal terms of the 2002 Share Option Scheme and
2011 Share Option Scheme is as follows:

(1) Purpose

As incentives or rewards for the contribution or potential
contribution to the Group from the selected eligible participants.

(2) Eligible participants
0 (@

any Director or proposed Director (whether executive
or non-executive, including any independent non-
executive Director), employee or proposed employee

(whether full time or part time) of, or
(b) any individual for the time being seconded to work for;

any member of the Group or any controlling
shareholder or any company controlled by a controlling
shareholder; or

(i)  any holder of any securities issued by any member of the
Group or any controlling shareholder or any company
controlled by a controlling shareholder; or

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
=AW EBAERAF
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SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

(3)

(i)  AEEEAKE RAEFERBRE B
P BCER AR 6 2 (AT R A]EY

(@ ERERBREEKRME - IR -
AER - RERAK

(o) ERATHEEEHEFE - BR
A XM SR AT - B
A - BREAMRE -

© (EREmIRBEHER
d EEEP %
e FAERXIFATR(BEIEAR)

X v 5h2002F BEAR AT 8] & 2011 F AR AERT
2ms  BeEh (I ZEEIA FEM
BB EEFEH 2 TRAF]

BREZSTETTFRITZROBR

E AT R 2002 F AR R8I 2011 F HE AR
BEFTEIR B BRER S LA BITHOR
MBETSBBERESTEEMEZAERRA
BEITRD 210% © 5% 10% R 88 0] & R 1 &)
& BR AL T B T o 820024 BB AR & &I E W
% TS HBIRBZTEE— TR D ERE -

RITERBE2011 FHBREFERARFH
L B8 BCHE St 8% th 0 1) R AT (R RO P A BB A
B ARAETHEROBE NMEBARAT
TS B EITRD AR ERIB0% °

MR2020F3 4108 « RIE2011 F IR ELT &
AJEE1T AR 10 42 805 140,442,000 (4 FE &
RARRIEEITIRG 28.90%) @ MiR#E2002
FHERETE K011 FERETEERE M
W AT 8 B P B B AR 1T 2 i P BT R AR
BB D Rl A2,724,000% X 140,442,000 8%
(BBERAREEEHITRN 24017% R4
8.90%) °

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A W EBAERAF

(3)

(i) any member of the Group or any controlling shareholder or a
company controlled by a controlling shareholder;

(@) any business or joint venture partner, franchisee,
contractor, agent or representative of,

(b) any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support or any
advisory, consultancy, professional or other services
to,

(c) any supplier of goods or services to,
(d) any customer of, or
(e) any landlord or tenant (including any sub-tenant) of;

and, for the purposes of the 2002 Share Option Scheme and 2011
Share Option Scheme, shall include any company controlled by
one or more persons belonging to any of the above classes of
eligible participants.

TOTAL NUMBER OF SHARES AVAILABLE FOR
ISSUE UNDER THE SCHEMES

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all share options to be granted under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme and 2011 Share Option Scheme must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the shares in issue on the respective dates of
approval of each of the schemes. The 10% limit may be refreshed
with the approval of the Company’s shareholders. Following the
expiry of the 2002 Share Option Scheme, no further share options
can be granted thereunder.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding share options granted and yet to be
exercised under the 2011 Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of
the total number of shares in issue from time-to-time.

As at March 10, 2020, the total number of shares available for
issue under the 2011 Share Option Scheme is 140,442,000
shares (representing approximately 8.90% of the shares in issue)
and a total of 2,724,000 and 140,442,000 shares (representing
approximately 0.17% and 8.90%, respectively, of the shares in
issue) may be issued upon exercise of all options which had been
granted and yet to be exercised under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme and 2011 Share Option Scheme, respectively.
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BEREARER
SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

MAXIMUM ENTITLEMENT OF EACH ELIGIBLE
PARTICIPANTS

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the share options granted or to be granted to each
participant (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the
Company’s shares in issue unless the same is approved by the
Company’s shareholders in general meeting.

In addition, any share options to a substantial shareholder and/or
an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company or any of
their respective associates, and where the total number of shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options granted or to
be granted to such person in any 12-month period exceed 0.1% of
the Company’s shares in issue and with an aggregate value (based
on the price of the shares on the date of grant) in excess of HK$5
million, are subject to the Company’s shareholders’ approval in
general meeting.

TIME OF EXERCISE OF OPTION

An option may be exercised under the terms of the 2002 Share
Option Scheme and 2011 Share Option Scheme at any time during
a period commencing on such date on or after the date on which
the option is granted as the Board may determine in granting the
option and expiring at the close of business on such date as the
directors may determine in granting the option but in any event
shall not exceed 10 years from the date of grant.

THE MINIMUM PERIOD FOR WHICH AN OPTION
MUST BE HELD BEFORE IT CAN BE EXERCISED

As determined by the Board upon the grant of an option.

ACCEPTANCE OF OFFERS

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within 30 days
inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The amount
payable on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option is
HK$1.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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(9)
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(8)

(9)

BASIS OF DETERMINING THE EXERCISE PRICE

The exercise price is determined by the Board which shall be at
least the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date when an
option is offered;

(i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date on which an option is
offered; and

(i) the nominal amount of a share.

THE REMAINING LIFE OF THE SCHEMES

The 2002 Share Option Scheme was terminated on June 9, 2011.
No further options shall thereafter be offered under the 2002 Share
Option Scheme but the options which had been granted during its
life shall continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with
their terms of issue and in all other respects the provisions of the
2002 Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect.

The 2011 Share Option Scheme shall be valid for a period of 10
years from the date of adoption until June 8, 2021.
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SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

BREZEE MOVEMENT OF SHARE OPTIONS

BIE2002 8 s 2] 2011 E M IRHEET 2| 2 IR Movements of share options under the 2002 Share Option Scheme and
EREZ2019F12A31BIEFEER 8 H 5|0 2011 Share Option Scheme during the year ended December 31, 2019

™ are set out below:
2002F BB REET &
2002 Share Option Scheme
EREHA
Number of share options

=1y
R20195  REARE  RERTE  RERZH  REAZE  R010F iR
1518 Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled 12A318 Exercise

ABRSHE As at during during during during As at price REAH T8
Eligible participants 1/1/2019 the year the year the year theyear  12/31/2019 per share Date of grant Exercisable period

BT (A/B/%) (B/B/%)

HKS  (MM/DD/YYYY) (MWDD/YYYY)
BELNES 200,000 - - - - 200,000 3.340  07/07/2010  08/22/2012 - 06/30/2020
Continuous Contract Employees 2,524,000 - - - - 2,524,000 3.340  07/07/2010  08/01/2013 - 06/30/2020
4t
Total 2,724,000 - - - - 2,724,000
2011 BB IR FET &
2011 Share Option Scheme

EREHA
Number of share options

=1y
R20195  REARE  RERTE  REREH  REAZE  R019F iR
1R1H Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled 12A318 Exercise

LERSHE As at during during during during As at price REAH T8
Eligible participants 1/1/2019 the year the year the year theyear  12/31/2019 per share Date of grant Exercisable period
#r (B/8/%) (B/B/%)
HKS  (MM/DD/YYYY) (MWDD/YYYY)
£z
Directors
[ 400,000 - - - - 400,000 5200 10/07/2011  03/22/2012 - 09/30/2021
CHAN Ka Wai 600,000 - - - - 600,000 5200 10/07/2011  03/01/2013 - 09/30/2021
1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 5200  10/07/2011 02/28/2014 - 09/30/2021
100,000 - - - - 100,000 5000  08/24/2014 08/04/2015 - 08/23/2024
150,000 - - - - 150,000 5000  08/24/2014 08/04/2016 - 08/23/2024
200,000 - - - - 200,000 5000  03/24/2014  03/10/2017 - 03/23/2024
250,000 - - - - 250,000 5000  03/24/2014  03/09/2018 - 03/23/2024
300,000 - - - - 300,000 5000  08/24/2014 08/08/2019 - 08/23/2024
1,366,000 - - - - 1,366,000 4180 01/06/2017 08/11/2017 - 12/31/2025
1,666,000 - - - - 1,666,000 4180 01/06/2017  08/09/2018 - 12/31/2025
1,668,000 - - - - 1,668,000 4180 01/06/2017 08/10/2018 - 12/31/2025
7,700,000 - - - - 7,700,000

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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ERE22E(E) MOVEMENT OF SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
2011 FEE IR FE ST &I ()
2011 Share Option Scheme (Continued)
BREHA
Number of share options

=1
R20198  RERERE  RERTE  REARXHM  RERGEH 20195 (4
1R1H Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled 12A31H Exercise

RERSEE Asat during during during during As at price FHAH TEER
Eligible participants 1/1/2019 the year the year the year theyear  12/31/2019 per share Date of grant Exercisable period
Bt (F/8/%) (B/B/%)
HKS  (MM/DD/YYYY) (MW/DD/YYYY)
ES(f)
Directors (Continued)
REY 200,000 - - - - 200,000 5000  03/24/2014  03/04/2015 - 03/23/2024
Mark Alan LOYND 300,000 - - - - 300,000 5000  03/24/2014  03/04/2016 - 03/23/2024
400,000 - - - - 400,000 5000  03/24/2014 03/10/2017 - 03/23/2024
500,000 - - - - 500,000 5000  03/24/2014  03/09/2018 - 03/23/2024
600,000 - - - - 600,000 5000  03/24/2014  03/08/2019 - 03/23/2024
64,000 - - - - 64,000 3792 04/09/2015 03/10/2017 - 03/31/2025
1,332,000 - - - - 1,332,000 4180 01/06/2017 08/11/2017 - 12/31/2025
1,332,000 - - - - 1,332,000 4180 01/06/2017 03/09/2018 - 12/31/2025
1,336,000 - - - - 1,336,000 4180 01/06/2017 08/10/2018 - 12/31/2025
6,064,000 - - - - 6,064,000
EELNES 2,600,000 - - - 2,600,000 5200 10/07/2011  03/22/2012 - 09/30/2021
Continuous 4,740,000 - - - 4,740,000 5200 10/07/2011  03/01/2013 - 09/30/2021
Contract Employees 11,850,000 - - 600,000 - 11,250,000 5200 10/07/2011  02/28/2014 - 09/30/2021
402,000 - - 10,000 - 392,000 5380 06/12/2012 03/01/2013 - 12/31/2021
2,320,000 - - 80,000 - 2,240,000 7.650 0471072013  02/28/2014 - 03/31/2022
4,206,000 - - 280,000 - 3,926,000 5000  03/24/2014  03/04/2015 - 03/23/2024
6,278,000 - - 418,000 - 5,860,000 5000  03/24/2014  03/04/2016 - 03/23/2024
8,436,000 - - 560,000 - 7,876,000 5000  03/24/2014 03/10/2017 - 03/23/2024
10,594,000 - - 702,000 - 9,892,000 5000  03/24/2014 03/09/2018 - 03/23/2024
12,666,000 - - 630,000 210000 11,826,000 5000  03/24/2014 03/08/2019 - 03/23/2024
3,882,000 - - 398,000 - 3,484,000 3792 04/09/2015  03/04/2016 - 03/31/2025
4,644,000 - - 618,000 - 4,026,000 3792 04/09/2015 03/10/2017 - 03/31/2025
250,000 - - - - 250,000 4000  07/10/2015  03/04/2016 - 06/30/2025
250,000 - - - - 250,000 4000  07/10/2015 03/10/2017 - 06/30/2025
942,000 - - - - 942,000 4340 09/19/2016  03/10/2017 - 06/30/2026
946,000 - - - - 946,000 4340 09/19/2016  03/09/2018 - 06/30/2026
11,970,000 - - 1,148,000 - 10,822,000 4180 01/06/2017  08/11/2017 - 12/31/2025
13,128,000 - - 1,148,000 - 11,980,000 4180 01/06/2017  03/09/2018 - 12/31/2025
16,510,000 - - 1,496,000 - 15,014,000 4180 01/06/2017 08/10/2018 - 12/31/2025
2,824,000 - - 66,000 - 2,758,000 4050 06/09/2017  08/11/2017 - 12/31/2025
2,824,000 - - 66,000 - 2,758,000 4050  06/09/2017  03/09/2018 - 12/31/2025
2,852,000 - - 68,000 - 2,784,000 4050 06/09/2017 08/10/2018 - 12/31/2025
125,114,000 - - 8,288,000 210,000 116,616,000

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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BEREARER
SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

EREZSE(H) MOVEMENT OF SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
2011 FEE IR FE ST &I ()
2011 Share Option Scheme (Continued)
BREHA
Number of share options

=1
R20198  RERERE  RERTE  REARXHM  RERGEH 20195 (4
1R1H Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled 12A31H Exercise

RERSEE Asat during during during during As at price FHAH TEER
Eligible participants 1/1/2019 the year the year the year theyear  12/31/2019 per share Date of grant Exercisable period
Bt (F/8/%) (B/B/%)

HKS MMDD/YYYY) MWDDYYYY)

Eft 340,000 - - - - 340,000 5200 10/07/2011  03/22/2012 - 09/30/2021
Others 720,000 - - - - 720,000 5200  10/07/2011  03/01/2013 - 09/30/2021
3,000,000 - - - - 3,000,000 5200 10/07/2011  02/28/2014 - 09/30/2021
510,000 - - - - 510,000 5000  03/24/2014 03/04/2015 - 03/23/2024
758,000 - - - - 758,000 5000  03/24/2014 03/04/2016 - 03/23/2024
1,020,000 - - - - 1,020,000 5000  03/24/2014 03/10/2017 - 03/23/2024
1,282,000 - - - - 1,282,000 5000  03/24/2014 08/09/2018 - 03/23/2024
1,530,000 - - - - 1,530,000 5000  03/24/2014  03/08/2019-03/23/2024
200,000 - - - - 200,000 4180 01/06/2017 08/11/2017 - 12/31/2025
266,000 - - - - 266,000 4180 01/06/2017 03/09/2018 - 12/31/2025
436,000 - - - - 436,000 4180 01/06/2017 08/10/2018 - 12/31/2025
10,062,000 - - - - 10,062,000
&t
Total 148,940,000 - - 8,288,000 210,000 140,442,000

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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INFORMATION FOR INVESTORS

EEZERH
EERERRECFHE

KREREFRE 2020558188 &
202045228
(BRMABIEEN)

RHEARE B 20204F6 A2H =
202046 A4 H
(BEEMABIEEA)

BRERAEXRE

202045 H22H

B 2

FEARR B %1028 10

BIRT B E] 201949 A20H

EEARHRE %4454

K ES B Hi 20206 A19H

& 4 1K 5%

BRABMAERSM 1 709

EAi : 709 HK

FRFE : 0709.HK

BB H B

EFRBEBRER AT

BBNE

REBTTTE 77958

Kz TEKESE

= 1 (852) 2746 4668

B : (852) 2370 8864

BT IR investorrelations@giordano.com

48 1k

www.giordano.com

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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IMPORTANT DATES

Closure of Register of Members

Annual General Meeting

Final Dividend

Annual General Meeting
May 22, 2020

Dividends

Interim Dividend

Paid on

Proposed Final Dividend
Payable on

STOCK CODE

Stock Exchange
Bloomberg
Reuters

May 18, 2020 to May 22, 2020
(both days inclusive)

June 2, 2020 to June 4, 2020
(both days inclusive)

10.2 HK cents per share
September 20, 2019
4.4 HK cents per share
June 19, 2020

709
709 HK
0709.HK

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONTACT

Giordano International Limited

5th Floor, Tin On Industrial Building
777-779 Cheung Sha Wan Road

Kowloon, Hong Kong
Telephone

Facsimile

Email

WEBSITE

WWwWw.giordano.com

(852) 2746 4668
(852) 2370 8864
investorrelations@giordano.com
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ABOUT THIS REPORT
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Welcome to the 2019 Environmental, Social and Governance (the “ESG")
Report of Giordano International Limited (“Giordano”), which updates our
latest initiatives and achievements with respect to sustainability. As you
may be aware, "World Without Strangers’ has been Giordano’s credo since
inception and reflects our vision to create a sense of familiarity, regardless of
ethnicity, nationality or culture, which transcends throughout our operations
and management.

Giordano has long been committed to being a responsible corporate citizen,
and formally adopted its Corporate Social Responsibility policy statement in
2005. Since then, we have continued to focus on “doing well by doing good”
in order to make a positive impact in the communities where we do business,
paying particular attention to stakeholder relations, community involvement
and environmental protection.

With the onset of enhanced compliance requirements set by The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on ESG Reports
and growing demand for corporate disclosure from stakeholders in general,
this Report primarily addresses our approach and performance against ESG
metrics, including the impact that we are making on the environment and
the communities, the way we deliver responsible products and exceptional
service to our customers in a fair and transparent manner, how we invest in
our employees’ development and foster an inclusive and supportive working
environment, as well as our framework to develop strong governance,
effective risk management systems and robust controls.

Reporting Standard and Scope

Prepared in accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide of the Stock
Exchange, this Report provides an annual update of Giordano's ESG
performance for the year of 2019, which covers our operations in Mainland
China, Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan and Singapore (collectively, the “Reporting
Markets”), which contributed towards 54.1% of Giordano’s sales in 2019
excluding shops operated by our franchisees and licensees. There are no
significant changes in the reporting scope of this Report from that of the
last one in 2018. This Report is in compliance with the “comply or explain”
provisions, which also reports on selected “recommended disclosures” of
the Stock Exchange’s ESG Reporting Guide. A detailed References to “Stock
Exchange’s ESG Reporting Guide” has been included at the back of this
Report to aid readers and facilitate greater transparency.

Undoubtedly, stakeholders’ engagement is an integral part of Giordano’s
business development and commitment to global sustainable development.
Thus, in the preparation of this Report, we have continued to proactively
engage our key stakeholders (including our staff representatives, our core
suppliers as well as our customers) who play a critical role in our business
development. Stakeholders” input, obtained via questionnaires, has provided
us with a comprehensive assessment of the key performance indicators (the
"KPIs") with respect to ESG issues and helped us to identify the priorities of
our key stakeholders, which consequently strengthens the coverage of this
Report.

GIORDANO ESG
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MRS T MIAIRR
CARING FOR OUR ENVIRONMENT

BERE A1 : BHEFRHEELR DR

Environmental Aspect A1 : Minimized Emissions through Green-Minded Operations

(1) EEM - BHBIRREEESRRES (1) At Giordano, we seek to ensure that our business operations are

HPREEe e —IRED - AHEFNE environmentally friendly, making every effort to reduce waste and
EZERMNEE e 08 IRPEE emissions from every aspect of our business activities, from production
RED R o at our suppliers through to our own business operations.

(2 BEE - EENEETHNERLERE (2)  We believe that our business activities and the facilities of our
B A HEBENRRER © overall operations comply with the relevant laws and regulations on

environmental protection.

RBERE A2 - HNER

Environmental Aspect A2 : Conserving Resources

() ABEGREZESBSHMAETORY [HRE] (1) In active alignment with the Hong Kong governmental policy of
BE - BB OssutERE RN D ERE reducing “carbon footprint”, we are committed to reducing carbon
BEIR - KEIR ~ #RR RRME - UR Bk HE emissions and protecting and sustaining the environment through
W RERRBERE - 10 efficient use of resources and reduced consumption of electrical power,

water, paper and raw materials by:

° TEEB T EMARTHERIRIRIENE o incorporating sustainable environmental practices into our
business principles;

o  BAEMARMEREIR - Hlam A E R e using resources wisely and efficiently, such as cutting the volume of
R R B raw materials and packaging consumed;

o HEEBBEANRIBEWEIELE e reducing waste generation within our operations;

o  HEEHEETIEMEERMEHEE MU e promoting environmental protection, via supply chain management
fRHERIR - & and smart shop operations; and

o RARPMEBERHNRRES - e  promoting environmental awareness among our customers and

business associates.

GIORDANO



ER¥ORER

HRENEREREAREERERENER - = A electricity consump‘uon is the biggest contrlbutor to our greenhouse. ;
BRIVERBHOPAZHEBERRTATSE  gas (“GHG") emissions, various energy saving and efficiency measures -
TN BE IR TR = AL IR e O HE B - - have been undertaken in most of our office premises and shops:

E¥RE RIS i Energy Saving Initiatives

RGeS : B 2008 e - EEIEE A TR MEAREE

Lighting : A group-wide initiative to convert lighting in all shops to energy-saving lights commenced since 2008
EHRH D AEAEMH EREFRAAL EERS

Air-conditioning Replace chilled water air-conditioning with more efficient split-type air-conditioners

AR Z2 58 AR RO IR (R )

Shorten the operating time of air-conditioning
HRFEANTIPRELE 25- 26T

Maintain an average indoor temperature of 25 - 26T
EHIMERZER SRR EE

Maintain and repair air-conditioners regularly for better performance

ARRAEEENRE - R TEEE (2)  Striving to create shareholders’ value, we are also concerned with

TREVRE RIEEIRIR - EEK 5Rs [RAI — B the conservation of ecological resources and driving environmental

RBROER  MEER - MEBRANER protection. Based on the 5Rs principle - to Replace, Reduce, Reuse,

BA  ERREBENRET AREG - Recover and Recycle — Giordano spares no effort to cut down on the

N EIRERE - B - A ROR A R use of resources, recycle materials, as well as to reduce the generation

MEESE of waste by implementing different practices internally:

o TEMAEHEHRANENLBKERAE e displaying notices and posters of water conservation at offices and
W shops;

o  THUGE/KBEEE - WWARIREIEAREK e inspecting taps regularly and repairing any dripping promptly;
=P

o BB [Efes] @ FREFUE: e promoting the concept of “paperless meetings” with the use of

electronic copies of documents;

o BHXRMIERKEMNEEAY HAE e pre-setting printers for double-sided and black-and-white printing;
= ;

o [EREEMARK e recycling used paper;

o  TERAA RIS e reusing and recycling carton boxes;

s MERBAEHNRE: X e reusing shop furniture; and

o HEHBERERBAANEE- e reusing plastic packaging bags as bin bags.

GIORDANO
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(3) rEML

PR 6 BB IEAE R SR I8 0 - 73 T 2 A
MT—RER BEREMEFEETNEBLE
HWIRAI AR A — AR FNELEHR ° &
FIREERE  HtESEMRERRL TR
BERENEME RMAZEBETARE
HZE—o70 THEIERERRRAE -
2010 FHRMAEBTBAIKLE [HREEK]
BREP—ERFOHF - wBETRBMA
MRRK - HEAEBIEEIRE - BORIEEHK
VR o WEON - EETRHETT A TR b - PARRES

(3) Going Green at Work

Faced with the increasing threat to the environment over the years,
all of us undoubtedly owe a duty and responsibility to make Mother
Earth a cleaner and safer place to live in for ourselves and for future
generations. Acting in a socially and environmentally responsible way
is more than just a legal duty, and here at Giordano, we encourage
our staff to adopt environmentally responsible behavior and promote
environmental protection in the workplace. The “Green Team” set
up in our Hong Kong Headquarters in 2010 is a vivid example, which
brings together representatives from different departments to initiate
programs for promoting low carbon living. Moreover, to inspire and

- ko 140438 ©S3 6102

TH D 55 S MR A 08 B

MEENE TR HEEITH ¢ encourage staff's green actions, we have also launched the following
initiatives:
(y HEIEERARNBRRE [4ETE (i) “Tips for greening our workplace” and GREEN news posted at
RfusR | MA@ EE R office and Company’s Intranet
— 55| 8 T 4nfa] 8 iE — (EER R IS A A —  guiding staff to create a low-carbon working environment.
TIER%E -

Pl ik AR R - AW G.Link € 2018 45 12 H B S5 G4 &l

To strengthen green awareness, our G.Link Club started sharing GREEN news
from December 2018

G-Mﬁﬂ% community TTERES

BB - FEIERE T YIRS -

-
' Giordano ClubB SRR IEREE -

7

MFAIRE ET - BRANRBEEE I
BHLALAF - REMAHTHRS - | |
Dump Less Save More
EHIERE - MEADUEERIRR
EZNR - SENEREENARE
BERABNERS - (544)
EEHBREEE_F - EELIESW
BERBAFEE011-
| U—EBARERS  SXER—E
15SAFEEBIRS -

3% GREEN COUNCIL
ARELY

Q= EFEFE2019), K
G&EEN

EauE, SRRESSRIEEBN. BERALTARER  RRATS
oM BMOFEABERBHAREE  YASREENAREENT -

RIS ERNEREN - FER CEAAE 010, EEERE » BRRESRLIEE SHROFIOEKR
861546 E$1500 - ERNESER  EHESARROECEOTER -

- ARER : ®5RY - ERAY FEEHE TESIEE . BREBL. NASEL . FEMNEREEH G RIER/DE
EEOER  RRAELE -

BB DRI |
*QO 30003FASHEE—1— +BEvBIASE -
L ZERAR - EEAIED

GIORDANO




iy TE2HEELITFEHEZ (2019) (i)  "Donate books"” to World Vision (2019)

RIFETHRIFEE T ERE Wi maintain staffs’ good habits not to waste and to donate the non-
REFH EE B RSB REME use books to charities or other groups of people
FEAL

ELB ¢y

BiE— ANGERY

FARENED WK - RENEER
FPRTES 4 T 5 59 LR

BE_ AMGECESE
LCL Sglobp bid

il ]
REEXEMN/ME - 2E - BER - MRESERR

WS (ETRGRAFE - NEE - ARS8
HERXRAR )

B 75 AT EE !
AR {.

@iy [FRHFERUWERKAITE] 2019 (i) “Red Packet Reuse & Recycle” 2019

= O U ERKITE

IF=

o @l s o
L™

E Y7555 \
ElYEsER - 288H-2818H
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& 1

T B AVEFHRIERIR
WAIBIEE AR

¢

S 1 (AE_almEE
Scope 1 (tCO)

ERRE T EARIE - METE
A ERELE -

-14.1%*
250 15,000
200 12,000
150 9,000
100 6,000
50 3,000
2016 2017 2018 2019 2016 2017

Y2
=

9,762 98%)

==
B E

Electricity Consumption

@Q FEIKE Water Use

HAZt (LK)
Total (m?)
/A
4 P

V 4
Y 4
119,251 85,67)

=~

2016

GIORDANO

/\
\ 4 P
)/ “ A\ ) 4
/) .
110,444
81,31
2017 2018 2019

B =R E Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions :

) S 2 (AM—aiiEE)
Scope 2 (tCOe)

BRREIDHRERBNEE (B : AM_R(CHER)
Total GHG Emissions by Category (Unit : tCOe)

%

Green Performance Overview
Graph 1

Below is a summary of our environmental performance with respect to our
operations in shops, offices and warehouses in the Reporting Markets:

e,
/

MBEL (40365 1+2)

(RME— S/ E)

Total (Scope 1+2) (tCO,e)

* 2019 to ¥ 2018 HH L E S
2019 vs 2018 % Change

SRE GRS ESELHEER)
|I’1tel’1$ity (m*/HK$1m sales)

V 4
Y
38.003 26.525

2017

* 2019 ¥ 2018 HHLLEE)
2019 vs 2018 % Change

ME (AWM ELREE
S—EEETHER)

Intensity
(tCO,e/HK$1m sales)
-3.7%* 15,000 -4.0%* 50 +18.4%*

12,000 40

9,000 O 3.0 w

N N
6,000 N 20

o >
3,000 ' 10
0

2018 2019 2016 2017 2018 2019 2016 2017 2018 2019

# MERDEFIG AR 2019 FEOREREHFRERNE DL
# Percentage contribution of the subject consumption
towards our total GHG emissions in 2019

201 %y

NEIEWPRBEFEE
Corporate Vehicle Fuel
Consumption

+67.4%"

/\
4
A /I
/) .
42.072
25.13
2018 2019



,Zb- £

—1

RET (27
Total (Litre)

BEHIAEEFES Vehicle Fuel Consumption

WBIE (ARt B ERETHER)
Intensity (Litre/HK$1m sales)

+1.4%*
- *
100,000 17.7% 300
80,000 250
60,000 200
15.0
40,000 100
20,000 50
2016 2017 2018 2019 2016 2017 2018 2019

_
\PD

HET (T

BFEE)
Total (kWh in'000s)

#£E & Electricity Consumption

-3.1%"

sy s W ' 1y )

2016

2017 2018 2019

* 2019 b ¥ 2018 B L EE)
2019 vs 2018 % Change

BT (RA-E(HRER /S EEETHER)
Intensity (tCO,e/HK$1m sales)

+5.8%*

0.08
0.07
0.06
0.05
0.04
0.03
0.02
0.01

0.00

2016 2017 2018 2019

* 2019 ¥ 2018 By L EE)
2019 vs 2018 % Change

BE (TR /S A8ETHER)
Intensity (kWh/HK$1m sales)

+19.5%"
R e e

2016 2017 2018 2019

RE (AM-EHEE A BTHER) *
+18.6%
° o

Intensity (tCO,e/HK$1m sales)

Ern BN

2016 2017

4R IEFES Paper Use

BET (2mg)
Total (Tonne)

* 2019 L 2018 B EE)
2019 vs 2018 % Change

BE (AW S-EEETHER
Intensity (Tonne/HK$1m sales)

+2.3%* +26.29*
2016 2017 2018 2016 2017 2018
17 20 18 0.00535 0.00629 0.00554
: g 4 4 2016
- > » > " ’
2019 2019
18 0.00699
/’ //
" 4 e

#Et (2m)
Total (Tonne)

2018 2019

EEREEYBEINE (43R + s + 2Rk )
Non-Hazardous Waste Generation (Paper + Shopping Bags + Packaging Material)

* 2019 Ho ¥t 2018 HA L H)
2019 vs 2018 % Change

RIS (AW H-EEETHER)
Intensity (Tonne/HKS$1m sales)

-14.1%* +6.1%*

2017 2018 2016 2017 2018
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BEMEIEREE

Packaging Material Consumption

* 2019 ¥ 2018 HHELES)

2019 vs 2018 % Change

BIRIZER (RNE) BRIBELR (ANE) 4R (ANE)

Price Tag (Tonne) Plastic Packaging Bag (Tonne) Carton Box (Tonne)
2016 50 \\g\\g\ 2016 309 | 2016 837

2017 52 2017 319 | 2017 898

2018 49 2018 302 3 2018 853

019 45 T8:2%F o010 554 A5.9%* 019 7us 1279

i ON )

Total (Tonne) -13.3%*
2016 1,196 | 2017 1,268 | 2018 1,204 | 2019 1,044

SRS (DA BHRAE)
|ntensity (Tonne/Piece of Finished Product)

#F Flat
E BB % Change

2016 0.00004 | 2017 0.00004 | 2018 0.00004 | 2019 0.00004

BfRE

1. REREHR
o EREBUE - ERTSNTBIMAREREAT - TBRA
R B L AR E M AR E J) B R o
BERBHMOBERR _ERE SN AES (ARMAE
) - WRYR -
() BFRREZLCEFMZER ([IPCC)) #ir (2006 F
IPCCEFBERBBEEER)
(i) HRERATFTAARERAFEERTHEEETRE ORE
REBHTE  DERFRREEA) WERREER

(iii

ERFIITRRBATHE TZE RIRIRREZ TN (T8
REY) (% FEHRHAME) WREREIRIRIRN
REMIMEIES] (2010 FhR) )

BEEBBRAR  PERNERAFRFIENBRAF
MEERE Rk
V) BIFREEREHMANBETE -

(iv,

s RTERERTMEAUAERBIROER - BHIORBERER
MEAMEHERAFEFRTIABEFHEE (RERBRTES -
EZERFEEL) WERBEER  E-SBERRORE
REBHEEI D BT M E SRS -

() (4685 1] REMERDSHEEREEOEBERELNR
EREVH - EEBRE QA EROPBEFE (T RERFTE
BENER)

(i) (4685 2] % & R ERERT IS REFEMINEE 58 [
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Notes:

1.

BYRHEE
Shopping Bag Consumption
* 2019 Lb¥f 2018 HH LLES)

2019 vs 2018 % Change

485t (RER)

fioN=]

Total (Tonne) ] __ -17.9%*

2016 | 2017 | 2018 VIS

399 348 | 313 | 257

RE (RN H-EEATHEE)
Intensity (Tonne/HK$1m sales)
+1%*

2016 2017 | 2018 2019

0.127§ 0.108 1 0.097 | 0.098

GHG Emissions
® Due to our business nature, the significant air emissions of the Reporting Markets are the GHG
emissions arising mainly from the use of electricity and fuels derived from fossil fuels.

* GHG emissions data is presented in carbon dioxide equivalent (in tonnes) and is computed with
reference to:

@

(i)

(i)

(iv]

v)

the "2006 IPCC Guidelines for National Greenhouse Gas Inventories” issued by the
Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (“IPCC");

the international reporting framework published by the World Resources Institute and the World
Business Council for Sustainable Development, as reported in “The Greenhouse Gas Protocol: A
Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard”;

the “Guidelines to Account for and Report on Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Removals for
Buildings (Commercial, Residential or Institutional Purposes) in Hong Kong (2010 Edition)”
issued by the Electrical and Mechanical Services Department and the Environmental Protection
Department in Hong Kong;

the sustainability reports of the Hong Kong Electric Company Ltd, the China Light and Power
Company Ltd and the Companhia de Electricidade de Macau; and

the data published by the International Energy Agency.

In order to provide a more comprehensive view of our GHG impact, we have further classified the
GHG emissions of Giordano into 2 scopes (as below), which are defined in accordance with the
international reporting framework published by the World Resources Institute and the World Business
Council for Sustainable Development, as reported in “The Greenhouse Gas Protocol: A Corporate
Accounting and Reporting Standard”:

0]

(i)

“Scope 1" covers direct emissions from operations that are owned or controlled by the Reporting
Markets, arising mainly from fuel used by our own corporate vehicles (excluding the vehicle fleets
of our contractors);

“Scope 2" covers “energy indirect” emissions resulting from the generation of purchased
electricity consumed within the Reporting Markets (excluding electricity consumed in some retail
outlets in departmental stores and/or shopping malls where electricity is not separately charged).

In view of our business nature, Giordano is not aware of any significant generation of hazardous waste.

Some retail stores operate in shopping malls and/or departmental stores where water supply and
discharge are controlled by the building management. Thus, the retrieval of the relevant data is not
feasible.

There is no issue in sourcing water that is fit for the purpose during the daily operations of the Reporting
Markets.

The amount of paper use is the amount of paper purchased to support the daily operation of the
Reporting Markets (excluding those of paper shopping bags and packaging material).

The amount of shopping bags consumed is the amount of paper and plastic shopping bags purchased
for store use in the Reporting Markets.
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Environmental Aspect A3 : Minimizing Impact on the Environment and Natural

Resources for Sustainable Development
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IRE - AEE HK$0.5 3 HNZE HKST o

GORDANG)

m

Giordano places great emphasis on protecting the environment and
natural resources. We strive to improve our technical know-how to
minimize negative impact on the environment during production and
operations. We:

e take into account the environmental impact of our activities and decisions;

e continuously improve the environmental protection initiatives and strengthen
target and responsibility assessments, environmental protection supervision
and management; and

e strictly control environmental risks.

Giordano follows strict sustainable development practices throughout
its operations, and places environmental protection as one of its top
priorities in the process of supply chain management. We are concerned
with the environmental risk factors in production, such as emissions and
waste discharge. Thus, in the selection of our suppliers, their measure
of protecting the surrounding environment is one of our key selection
criteria.

Moreover, we introduce green elements into our products. For example,
we use polypropylene as one of the major components of our G-Warmer
thermal base layer collection. Polypropylene is degradable when
exposed to heat and UV radiation, and is also fully recyclable. For our
premium crossover collection with the outdoor wear brand, Silvermark
by G-Motion, we, starting from 2017, used fabrics applied with Teflon-
EcoElite finish, which is a non-fluorinated fabric treatment for durable
water repellency with 60% of its raw materials being renewably sourced.

Furthermore, in support of environmental protection, we opted to
charge more per plastic shopping bag than that requested under
the Environmental Levy Scheme on Plastic Shopping Bags of the
Government of the HKSAR; that is, from HK$0.5 to HK$1, effective from
January 1, 2016, to discourage the use of plastic bags and to encourage
customers to bring their own bags.

GIORDANO
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mEERMBHET
CARING FOR OUR EMPLOYEES

tEEE B1: (B
Social Aspect B1 : Employment

(1) EABEBMAREZER  ESNNZER (1) As an international apparel retailer, Giordano's retail network spreads

IR SR T AM - EZFE2019F12/831H - across five continents of the world operating a total of 2,375 shops as
BB 2375 MEEH  BRMEMNTER at December 31, 2019, which enables us to deliver our ‘World Without
FWEE DEEBEANHTR] BES - B Strangers’ credo globally. For the Reporting Markets, our headcount
Z2019F 12831 B BRMEEFRTIHA reached 4,272 talents as at December 31, 2019, with a 9.6% decrease
BT ABDER 4,272 A 0 H 2018 F T % from 2018:

9.6% :

2 Graph 2

EHmmIBHE T 5 Talent Distribution by the Reporting Markets

R ELPy Mainland China / - //k;k M\ EFHBKXEPFY Hong Kong & Macau
2016 2017 2018 2019 /; T \ 2016 2017 2018 2019
2,787 2,535 2,431 2,017 P 1 / ¥ ¢ 2 1,001 1,003 907 923

&% Taiwan AR Yd >
2016 2017 2018 2019 ‘”‘--:,;_;‘ & 4
1,203 1,178 1,116 1,114 «-”f R

2 EAWEE BESREKY  2BEER (2) Giordano believes that its long-term success depends on the

N F—IKEMBER - Btk - ER AR FE R contribution of each and every individual in the organization. As
> BEMEEHEFET - HMHBE - BOEE - such, Giordano is committed towards treating its staff with fairness
& ET—0OMEEEERES R ZIRERE - and respect. We believe in co-operation, teamwork and trust as the
© BMETEEEEREZEBHENNRE - foundation of Giordano. We hire on the basis of ability and merit,
g WIZ R B T A E A RIFRTE R AR - reward and promote on the basis of performance.

e

5

a

e

e

ESG GIORDANO
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Respecting and Reflecting Diversity

We believe in diversity and endeavor to safeguard a diverse working
environment, which is reflected in the composition of our staff as
demonstrated below:

; 1, >
- U iam"

BEMERASTTIL

HARRL B — A2 TR TIFRR - AR
RTERMHETHEA

3 Graph 3
EBEER DA FRDM BLZET{R
Employment Type Age Distribution Staff Composition by Gender
Distribution 2016 B Male Z 1% Female
: 305 2,588 (51.6%) 2017
2B Full-time <30yearsold 2,265 (47.3%) 2018
2016 2017 2018 2019 1,878 (44.0%) 2019
3,800 3,598 3,391 3,011 2016
(71.9%) (71.7%) (70.8%) (70.5%) 3050 2,238 (44.6%) 2017
30-50yearsold 2,305 (48.2%) 2018 2016 77.7%
3B /| &4 Part-time / Contract 2,176 (50.9%) 2019 R
2016 2017 78.0%
2016 2017 2018 2019 Apsom 190 (3.8%) 2017 018 28 6%
1,485 1,418 1,396 1,261 >50yearsold 217 (4.5%) 2018 0o
(28.1%) (28.3%) (29.2%) (29.5%) 218 (5.1%) 2019 2019 79.5%

3)

EFHRE— R REBRE - B TFMATR
AR EAIR 8 LA AE —fE A F R AIEH

IRE T TIE - B MIRER R 2= 52 BREE -
BiE:

0

(i)

(iii)

8T

EFRERSE TS TER - HEm
BERIHG—BRAC - X - #
MAEAAZ ML E S0 Mg
Tk~ BIRE R - RE Fie - EEUA
BUARIRSUE AR E

oAl

ERPREHE  EEMATFREERN
BE  TREMBAREZERNKIID
Ao Bt - LR TRNEIEERE
TEZERPEEBERTHER - e
ERMWHIRTRENEBNEXBER
& DBRBEBBEHEMEFNEL - £
EBFHEIER -

KR B R R
RAZ—ERFR - BRAMT 2 TR
5 BEIESREMEE  RM—ER

BT HBBNBER - AFFE TIRBEM
BER c WEIEFHIRGER R RE
RIETRESS -

3)

A series of policies, handbooks and protocols are in place in Giordano
to help build a workplace where our staff are treated fairly and equally,
with their rights and interests being protected. These include:

0]

(i)

(iii)

Staff Handbook

Giordano strictly complies with relevant labour laws and
regulations. All staff are treated equally, and their employment,
remuneration and promotion will not be affected by their social
identities such as ethnicity, race, nationality, gender, religion, age,
sexual orientation, political faction or marital status.

Code of Conduct

Giordano believes that honesty, integrity and fairness are important
values, and are crucial to our long-term development and success.
Thus, the Code of Conduct has been established to convey our
expected standards of conduct and practices to all staff, who
are required to adhere to the highest standards of business and
professional ethics so that we can earn the trust of our business
partners and customers and grow our business.

Whistle Blowing Policy

To create an open, transparent and safe working environment
where staff are able to speak up, we have a longstanding
whistleblowing policy in place that allows them to raise concerns
and for Giordano to follow up cases in a systematic yet protective
setting.

GIORDANO
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@ EARBE-RINANERERER R
I8 TIRHE N TIFRIR

() ¥REM

ERPR T EBMAE TAZRS 0
FiB - BERENARERRINAERD
BERE  URBMBESEENERY
B

(i) BINEFFR

2017 5 - ARG I TARRE B T
BHFRAE ENMERMMAEESS
B TAEAN A B AR A AR Tt (P9 T 18
R LEDE Eﬂl%ﬂq/\ﬁ M
IR S TR 5

(i) REREERFEER
(a) SEM FDERE

P72 8 TR L ER BT IER
K BB EEEEE TIWEM
PIEAT I R B8 © FE - B AFIEL
H&E— M HEE T RARAZE
BT (FIRE - W H 2016 FF#ER
FEBEBR GBI EE
_FIRRFR o B AR 0 BLIL A EGE
ME * BFIhFHETHRE THT
(ERE[] » BHTEEHIR S| RN +
JIA G170 : KREEEIZFRIRA L ©

b) XfFEFRE

BRI FEB & e TERIH
REF| - BB BARREIIRAE
FF 5 31t PIF RS T — 118 E HIFAN
ZEfR] - LAEHERELZ]

(c) FAEMITHERE 14 FHER

FREFTEWZHT + BB B
B 20184 10 H 23 A » Z4 &
WAER T 14 FBAFERKE - X
(EEEEFIE R AIAR A B RGBT £
BENEE -

(d) FIEHTT 5 XFER

B [FIBs - B 2018 4 11 A 13 A
B BB BB BN E LR
THEH R 5 RAVfFER @ #Hig?
PRI IE -

(e) MREXLIERRE (HAZE

BEEST#—HERTIEHEALZE
B RIS BLEER 2018 &£
8 A NEEFX T (Ers B2
—/\iF (B 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.)
m R aT &% - B R 2018 F 10
HEE BRI B95EE + LUmES T
A RBZEFIEZ -

GIORDANO

4)

The following people management arrangements are in place in
Giordano to provide our staff with a better environment to work.

(i)  Remuneration

Giordano offers competitive remuneration packages, share options
and generous goal-oriented or performance-based bonuses
tailored to different levels of staff, in order to reward and retain a
high-caliber leadership team.

(i) Increasing Annual Leave Entitlement

In 2017, we largely increased the annual leave entitlement of staff
in Hong Kong and Macau markets. This not only allows them to
have a better work-life balance and work performance, but also
helps retain and recruit talents and finally enhance Giordano's
competitiveness.

(iii) Family-Friendly Employment Practices
(a)  Flexi-Time Arrangement at Work

We want our staff to both enjoy and succeed at work and at
home. This is one of the keys to both retaining high quality
staff and allowing them to thrive. That is why we strive to
create a working environment which caters for the needs of
our staff and their families, with the introduction of flexi-time
work arrangements for office staff in Hong Kong and Taiwan
from 2016. Concurrently, for our shop operations, we also
adjust the front-line staff's working hours to attract certain
targeted manpower, e.g. homemakers and retirees.

(b)  Supporting Breastfeeding

In support of our working mothers’ needs of pumping milk in
the workplace, we have specially designated a private space
in the office of our Hong Kong Headquarters for expressing
milk.

(c)  Early Introduction of 14-Week Extended Maternity Leave

In advance of government enforcement, our Hong Kong
Headquarters implemented an extended 14-week paid
maternity leave policy from October 23, 2018, taking care of
the needs of parents working in our Hong Kong offices and
on the front-line to look after their newborn babies.

(d)  Early Introduction of 5-Day Paternity Leave

Meanwhile, effective from November 13, 2018, we also took
an early lead in introducing the 5-day paternity leave for
our male staff in Hong Kong, which is far ahead of the local
legislation.

(e) Shortened Daily Working Hours (Office)

To further address staff's work-life balance needs, a trial
program first introduced in August 2018 to reduce working
hours in the office of Hong Kong Headquarters by 1-hour
per working day (i.e. from 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.) has been
made permanent to fulfill individual employees’ personal and
professional goals, effective from October 2018.



[ 4% 98 32 3¢ Excellent Employer Award] (9/2019) (Malaysia Market 294 %15 )

FE504,090 55 KA SE R R - EFHRE KPR
SR EE R B ATE S ([EPF)AEZEH) [2019
FEHEHEEXR] - EPFRER FRELEAR
AEe—  AEBSETEEHERNRER - %8
TR 2019 F G B =12 A T #8882 BCRLEY R
A -
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* RAETHENBER
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o
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SIJIL PENGHARGAAN

Anugerah Majikan Cemerlang

dianugerahkan kepada

GIORDANO (M) SDN BHD

A M ]
e e

Giordano Malaysia won an "Excellent Employer Award" for the year 2019
by Employees Provident Fund ("EPF") out of total 504,090 employers. The
EPF is one of the world's oldest provident funds who help workforce to
prepare for their retirement. The award was in recognition of an excellent
employer of 2019 that achieve:-

No delay in salary payment

No case of compliant

No case of dishonesty

Has never been convicted of a civil crime

using e-portal for submission and payment

The award recognizes Malaysia Market's efficient and effective service
standard.

GIORDANO
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(b) AR LE

RTREGEEBRBRYREN S
HET - BAIBFHERERIR
BRIERRREmOF  +FR
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(iv) Acknowledging Our Staff
(a) Staff Commendation Award Scheme
e Commended cases :

Not only do we circulate commendations from our customers
who acknowledged our staff's good performance, our Hong
Kong Headquarters has additionally implemented a “Staff
Commendation Award Scheme” since September 2016 to
encourage and award staff with outstanding performance and/
or significant contributions. Outstanding staff will be nominated
every quarter and the winners will be awarded with a Staff
Commendation Certificate and a cash coupon as a token of our
appreciation.

MBS S EES e L .

Fong - Teco RTEREFSNHE I,-’!.m

EERRGHEER -

B RELSHAREN MEZAEDN i
VIE'J’SINIM!ENIE L L

LERSANAATAZAT
SBANRIERAE -
!*." \IRIRORR - EH MG

AERRE - MANSTO TR

(b) Long Service Award

In recognition of the faithfulness of our long-serving staff at
Hong Kong Headquarters, we present Long Service Awards
annually to staff who have served the Company for 5 years, 10
years and 30 years, respectively.

GIORDANO



v) BIEH (v)  Staff Activities

ANk B T8 FH R 55 8 B KRR b 1P To reinforce staff's sense of belonging to Giordano with a healthy
WAERBEHEN TEMEEFER - &M work-life balance, we arrange a wide range of staff activities every
BEHZHET —RHINETEE - 5F - year. This year, we organized various interest group activities for
BOEE T S EEB RS - BET staff to participate.

2m-

5 China Market

2019
R x e

2019K(RIMERAER ({FAPEFER)
1 4 —SRBBERD

IRARBFRIRES
Beijing 5 Miles Marathon

AT Hong Kong Market

Find the HEro in You ﬁ&ﬁ%ﬂﬁ%tﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬂ
o . A i

GIORDANO
149.0é. 2019

Save the Date

ELDYREA IMTUE WA BIEESHAR -
B9 : 201965198

b s 1000830 &+ 6-9

84 : 4/F Leaming Centre

u

fBIm A EHEA
Blood Donation Day Flag Day
B /&M% Taiwan Market e Indonesia Market

2 B 58 PR E B T B B REHA
Health Talk and Flower Making Sports Day at Independence Day
v) BImEERZE (vi)  Staff Satisfaction Surveys
BF ENRHeETEIREESR Each year, Giordano conducts staff satisfaction surveys to collect
& AREEREE - EREIFTAF useful feedback as reference for improving our policies.

BEE R E -

GIORDANO
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EED B2 : WERREARE (BRR)

Social Aspect B2 : Occupational Health and Safety (OHS)

BZRREEARBRBLEERNERLD

BETESMRDRENRZZERRZ —

BE

EMEHNER - B TELEKANBERER
ON - WAPIE 2019 FEBEMREE - BBR
FANIEF - PASR b 2 L MR TT R B8 B Bk
ZHRRE - WEBE—F  ENPURBER
I EB LR EREAEREN -

RER—ERZZ2HOTIERE - 30

(i)

(i)

(iii)

RHEEEI - URSEINTEEE

EHERTESANZ R FhlEDIK
EHFERENEBERANAEEZE
WHRHAF N EMZ 20 TR -
AR B S DR (E 2 2 A

AR - AENEHHIT TS
AT AR D TS BB A
-

(a) WMAZMEIRE

FERREPFLELIERBUESE
B DR REELE -

(b) REIANBALRE [BFELELRE
FER] mER

GIORDANO

m

OHS is a crucial component of Giordano’s overall safety framework,
and reducing health and safety risks in the workplace is our important
and constant objective. In addition to a long history of no-smoking
policy at workplace, we continued to reinforce our strong leadership,
management system and training programs in 2019, so as to strengthen
our safety culture and enhance our overall OHS performance. In review
of last year, Giordano is not aware of any non-compliant cases relating
to OSH.

To ensure a safe working environment, we:

i)

(i)

(iii)

provide intensive training programs for our staff to improve their
safety awareness;

regularly monitor workplace safety, particularly with District
Supervisors allocated to supervise and monitor shop and
warehouse operations, to ensure each phase of which operates
safely by facilitating necessary tools with safe working environment;
and

carry out workplace tidiness at our offices, warehouses and shops
to reduce workplace hazards.

(a) Office Inspection Report

Conduct regular office working environment inspection to
promote cleanliness, fire safety and work safety.

(b) Hosting the webpage “Tips on Occupational Health &
Safety” on Company’s Intranet



M

iEEE B3 : AARRRIGZHE
Social Aspect B3 : Talent Development and Retention Strategy

ENRESBETRE - T EHR - HM
RBEBER 2F HENEEREAZR
BERRERBOER - it HATE
EERTAHENEFPRETENZEE
MERE - hAEEE  REIMEESEIEIE
HollgR - OB BETHREMBEAAERRE
WA 55 MR AR ) TAEEIEK -

foa 3E (A - EMRM) B - £
R 2016 FRFA T AEFIEEETHEG R
B UBRIATERFEHIBERE ©

ERPIEREERBTE AT - EEABERKRE
F OREBEREMMEFRYN RS -

() BLAEERE  EARERERESE
("MT") 518l - BERIBEETEAS - KR
LTARE -

(i) 72014 5F - JAEF B LB IRE MT
FHE D WAREBHRERAREAR
NHERZ2EEFE —EE 2 EIIE
B EXLRERRZEETEE
BAG BEXBEBERAENKE
("FTs") - ERAEBERESEREES
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B EENERERCEE - LEEN
AR BREMAZRNEENEMEE
2 ARSI -

(i) 72017 % RAEHEBEEERAD
HEERERRETE AN - /TR
RHERIEEFZNTEEAS

m

Giordano encourages learning and recognizes that values and fairness
as well as opportunities for continuous professional and personal
development are equally important drivers for high achievers. As
such, we invest heavily not only in comprehensive staff training and
development programs in sales and service, but also in management,
planning and leadership programs, to address staff's professional and
personal development needs and to retain a skilled and motivated
workforce.

Pursuant to our 3E (i.e. Economy, Efficiency and Effectiveness) policy,
Giordano conducted a review of the team structure by department
heads in 2016 and identified talents for focused development in the
coming years.

Giordano has always placed a strong focus on cultivating talents with
international perspective, insight into international practices and strong
competitiveness.

(i) Ever since the 1990's, Giordano has operated a Management
Trainee (the "MT") program to nurture retailing talents, with
satisfactory results.

(i) In 2014, we modified and upgraded our MT Scheme in Hong
Kong Headquarters to ensure that participants received a
holistic and comprehensive training experience, such that upon
graduation, successful graduates could be placed directly into
mid-management roles. With the renaming of MTs as Fast-Trackers
(the "FTs"), this reform included a tightening in our admission
requirements in terms of academic results and a restructuring of
the syllabus to include real business tasks in various departments
and functions within Giordano. Successful graduates have
now taken on a number of important roles, including product
development and management as well as brand management.
Some of them have even been stationed to overseas regions.

(i) In 2017, we also extended this Hong Kong style FT program to our
Mainland China market to cultivate more retailing talents for our
future growth.

GIORDANO
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@ ERATERBEATBEAIZHFIRKE @)
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BIFERFED - HPIEE [HESHHE
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HE—ER s  BEMAREESRTHIIEER
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B 4

ETEIABEINNBRE
Total In-House Training Hours Received by Staff

JERIFET
Non-Frontline Staff

RIARE T
Frontline Staff

2016 29,288 /]\EF Hours
2017 48,774 /)N Hours
2018 35,608 /J\EF Hours
2019 20,137 /" Hours

-43.4%"

2016 4,369 /]\E5 Hours
2017 9,289 /J\EF Hours
2018 7,909 /J\EF Hours

2019 2,999 /"85 Hours

-62.1%"

GIORDANO

Global Talent Development & Retention Initiative ("TDRI") is one of our
key strategic investments in coming years. Apart from hiring FTs from
outside, we have turned to pinpoint and groom our existing talents
within the Group's business across all subsidiary regions.

Further to the nomination by regional General Managers of between 1
to 3 talents with (i) proven contribution towards their business; and (ii)
potential to become a future member of senior management, bespoke
and role-specific 1-year development program involving overseas events
and short-term postings have been devised and executed.

Giordano invests heavily in learning and development to maintain its
competitive edge. We believe that continual updating of professional
skills and the sharing of knowledge will allow the Company to grow with
the times. We therefore allocate ample resources to staff training and
development with the aim of sustaining a competent, professional and
ethical staff force that will contribute to the success of the Company. In
2019, we have provided in-house training to our frontline staff and non-
frontline staff of the Reporting Markets for over 20,000 hours and 2,900
hours, respectively. The total number of training hours delivered in this
year is over 23,000 hours.

Graph 4

* 2019 ¥ 2018 B &S
2019 vs 2018 % Change

B TR 2
Total in-house Training
Hours Received

-

2016 33,657 /)\EF Hours
2017 58,063 /]\#F Hours
2018 43,516 /)\EF Hours
2019 23,136 /)& Hours

-46.8%"




iy MWUABK- - EZEERINEED (i) People-Oriented Staff Development

BMHETRANIERE  THASHE Based on our staff's different needs, we regularly organize internal
RN R B TR EfE I R EREEF training and on-job training for staff in different roles — this not only
2 BKIRAE T TERIRIN - TREEL improves our staff's work performance, but also helps equip them
EMMIERIBE - Y - with new skills to face new challenges.

(a) EBIABERE
Induction Talk for New Staff

HFRERIE - BEIRS

L\ E

RTBEMABESE FBASEM - SERGCUEFXHEE -
BB TES L EOHER - MFEELZERIREARAE -

(b) Refresher Training #&1&15 3|

B T ERE S THELEEES) -

w Bt E 8 TR ERATHY
BAZ - B ETTRE
EHREKF

In addition to strengthening
the basic skills, we equip staff

with the latest information and
knowledge, so that they could

carry out their duties to the
highest standards.
@
(i)  AEE (i) Internal Training
HinREEFIRIE S E B E T8EE Other internal training programs are designed to help staff
N~ BEREFEMESMPIAEIRFAR develop their capabilities, advance their careers and enhance their
1 e management and interpersonal skills.
S
FR Bl T 32 Mainland China Market E
o
= 5D B AT +HEBIE BESE T (e [ m
: =R JC_1-% I= BEERT RS w2 RSl P
7 Habits of Most Efficient & Workshop on Change %
. New Staff Development Plan 5
Effective Person Management .
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E#B ™% Hong Kong Market

hnss 8 T 55/ Rk B EES
Strengthening Staff Engagement Team Building

) F & (&F82019)
Charisma Meeting (Hong Kong 2019)

CHARISMA

GIORDANO

FEEBE I ABOAXEREREAMEL IR All Hong Kong staff participated to vote for their colleagues for the six
[Exh=] - TEE] - (R0 [kE IR e ] principles of Charisma, “Service”, “Team Power”, “Caring”, “Recognition”,
FNIERAIMIRE - R BEE T HIEE “Challenge” and "Opportunity”. During the meeting, special guests are also
DEMPIREEE invited to share their experiences.

GIORDANO
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e-Learning course “Awareness Training on Phishing — Giordano”

REEREBITHRTER - RABERBHERR
REE TR B TIRHP AR 0 R TR
L3RR - NN ARBRRERRITHRES —
BRERETL  REBERRLEBIIAROEIR
BR HEPENARTEGRAELNRERH
9A - ANRESIE SAR) FARAE SR I E A AT A KR A B
THBHRLTEY - BEIBRETHE LRE
% BAWETHAUENARNAIBETEHF
BMES - BENRETBHNMEROLER
20% (F—Wm\BHNARE) BE TR 1% (8
“WmPANaEE)  BERENTEITEMNTK
o

In order to improve the cybersecurity awareness of all our staff, we have
engaged a service provider to launch an e-Learning course "Awareness
Training on Phishing — Giordano” to our staff in the second half of the year.
Phishing is one of the most popular cybersecurity attacks. According to the
data provided by the International Security Institution, corporate intrusion
is often initiated by phishing emails. Strengthening our defense against
phishing attacks can greatly reduce the likelihood of security incidents. It is
noticed that our staff are more vigilant about the potential phishing email
after the e-Learning period. The percentage of click on phishing emails has
been significantly dropped from 20% (1st round phishing simulation) to 1%
(2nd round phishing simulation), which is far below the average of the retail
industry.

$7 03K 45 Singapore Market

EmiEl

Trainings on Product Knowledge
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(i) FEAREREEELE

ERREARZFHROEE - BEX
EMEERBRERRMKDNEER - £
ERITBARIERGLHET £
PEATRAMBPFIAENNE - BELE
BEMERBEKANMELCE  HETHE
B2E - HMFERER  TRNEX
HMBEREMARHE SN - O EARE
BREANXT  EFRMANBIERE
HWiSE

(iii)  Giordano Corporate Management Guide

Giordano's core values, corporate culture and accumulated
experience are parts of our success story. Led by our Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer, Dr. Lau Kwok Kuen, Peter, together with
the contribution from staff members from various departments, we
have summarized this information into four guide books for staff's
handy reference. It is hoped that, by turning tacit knowledge built
on experiences, aptitudes and know-how into explicit knowledge,
our staff could benefit in the long term.

(iv) [BEXM] EENELBEER

(iv) Online Learning Resources on the "Knowledge is Golden”

- WENLA TRERER. ANS -8
T EEERER

(—RERFREAHT) * FHE 7 HRRAE. CRE
—

Webpage
(a) [tridEokE] (b) [Professor G #3z ]
Giordano Library Professor G Blog
> { T GRRERAR, 7 | Sep J | EEEE=HEWLEEE - AT/ N Professor G Blog & A&
£ AEREREAENT - MRERG - RER .
Step: S S2EEEFNMNGZE - BETFERAEFINER BHANE  New
. EERGTARENERAD @ P EERNGLT mEn mrun
B WAFR (%) ;0 - 190 (SD122) > N CROEE. AENIRES | AETRAONES .| HEAR

LT T ]

SXPERMCERLGXEWRANR - BERR -TL ||, pppeyiEsadmEeT  EHENEE-ART

MR, - ok LR
ol L BABANE
X - MMM ER - MNam -

> EETENETH : CREANENG . NISSR-S
TR ERABBEH BT MRS - ME - —enE

FETRIATUGERNDNTT - RFER-E— | |, pagn. 8, B a7, BSEFET . BEAN?
MR 2 W E WG BIE | e

el * - L > AMEE-

BMEEENERERTARE_NE - RBEREReE E'

I et £ http//professorgio
SARBACHTARMREREE - BBt M- | sgmses .weebly.com/ O
Ed - RMNETNR - BRELEMNRZE B | oy po cooonems G e
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GIORDANO

(v)  Self-Learning Scheme

Through the Self-Learning Scheme adopted since 1999 in Hong
Kong Headquarters, we foster a continuous learning atmosphere
to promote staff’s individual initiative and responsibility for
development by self-learning.
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(vi)  Survey on Training Needs

Each year, we conduct a survey to understand our staff’s
expectations and needs for training, which aids in designing the
useful and practical training programs for them in the following
year.

(vii) Training Subsidies

To further motivate our staff to continue developing their skills
and enhancing their knowledge, Giordano has different subsidy
schemes in place:

(a)  Study Allowance Scheme

To encourage our staff to enhance their knowledge and skills
for personal growth, which benefits their work performance
and future career development, Hong Kong Headquarters
has set up a "Study Allowance Scheme" to subsidize our staff
in taking external work-related training courses.

(b) Management Academic Assistance Scheme

The “Management Academic Assistance Scheme” has been
implemented since September 2016, which is designed to
develop existing and potential management talent at Hong
Kong Headquarters through financial support to successful
applicants who wish to pursue higher education, such as
studying in undergraduate, or postgraduate degrees or
attainment of professional qualifications or accreditation.

(viii) “Career Development Program” for Shop Staff

To provide our shop staff with more opportunities for development
and enhance their job satisfaction, Hong Kong Headquarters
has launched a “Career Development Program”. It is tailored for
those shop staff nominated by their supervisors, aiming to equip
staff with the skills they require to develop their careers through
additional training.

I EEE B4 : FTHREMARBEK
Social Aspect B4 : Policies on Labour Standards and Human Rights

ERERBREFR - BT MEEmNEERE - £ Giordano prohibits the employment of child, forced or compulsory labour

MR HERET - 9R3AR %458 o 7£ 2019 F - in any of its operations, including at suppliers’ production facilities. In 2019,

BB ERAMNEERARENMHERERERAEL - we did not identify any operation or suppliers having significant risks of child

AF T AT TIE - SRIBRFISE) o labour, workers exposed to hazardous works, or forced or compulsory labour.
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CARING FOR OUR SUPPLIERS

il EEE B5 : SRAHEREE
Social Aspect B5 : Efficient Supply Chain Management

EFREEEEEIE UM EERREEAAAE At Giordano, supply chain management is based on the premise of satisfying
EETEMNEEINEERRE oMMt E - & customers' needs, and better coordination among the various functions
& Bl WMESERIRE - 88 REEBBUHE of our business, such as the supplies, manufacturing, warehousing and
HEIRES - B AMIBLREFRIRA AN (s HR AL o distribution by better planning and through information sharing. With
more effective integration of resources, we thus reduce costs and maximize
efficiency.
HE2019412 431 B - EREE 114 Rt fE As at December 31, 2019, Giordano has a total of 114 suppliers, located in
& DA RS different parts of the world:
5 Graph 5
HEmMSMIE S % Suppliers by Geographical Region
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P 3E Notes:
. [ftrEm ] 2R HREEE EREBERNREMEHA RN . "Supplier” refers to the manufacturers of apparel and accessories which are directly engaged by
R o Giordano.
. HEFBNLERIBREEESM REPOLEMET . The geographical location of a Supplier is based on the location of its production facilities and its
headquarters.

e ARMBRIANERR E5EFHMERAETFTREL
100% °

oy

T . The respective figure may not add up to 100%, due to rounding.
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We have established a complete supplier quality assurance mechanism,
which covers the approval and evaluation of suppliers, quality inspection and
supervision, strategic supplier development and materials procurement.

Furthermore, we actively promote the sustainable development of our supply
chain and the joint fulfillment of corporate social responsibility with our
partners to provide the public with high quality products and services. As
such, supply chain management is always one of the key links in Giordano’s
quality control system.

(1) Ethical Sourcing

As supply chain management is critical for Giordano’s success, we
work closely with suppliers to ensure that they comply with our quality,
performance and not least labour standards. In particular, we expect
them to comply with the below "Core Ethical Sourcing Requirements”:

only employs workers that are above the local legal minimum age;

does not use forced or prison labour in any part or aspects of its
facilities;

does not, or threaten to, physically abuse its workers;
does not contravene local environmental laws and regulations;
provides a safe and healthy work environment for its workers; and

is compliant with our various standards and committed to following
up corrective actions.

We aim to do business with those suppliers sharing similar values and
principles, and intend to purchase from those who meet our above
“Core Ethical Sourcing Requirements” and have demonstrated a
commitment to improving their standards on labour, health and safety,
and environmental practices. Thus, prior to engagement, new suppliers
are required to complete and pass our “Ethical Audit Questionnaire”.

(2) Quality Assurance Mechanism

(i)

Giordano exercises a high level of scrutiny over the selection of
suppliers. Apart from eligibility checking, suppliers are also subject
to assessment and on-site audits on product quality as well as
suitability and quality consistency tests conducted by our Quality
Assurance Team. Only those pass our audits and assessments will
be included into the "Qualified Supplier List” for bulk purchases.
Also, to ensure our product quality, we carry out long-term quality
monitoring and regular audits/reviews on all suppliers. Should
there be any significant change in a supplier’s eligibility or any
serious quality issue, we may suspend its deliveries immediately
and, if necessary, cancel its status as our qualified supplier.
Moreover, our unannounced inspections from time-to-time will
ensure our suppliers comply with our various standards.

In order to mitigate environmental and social risks within our
supply chain, and to promote the sustainable development of
our suppliers, a "Quality Manual” which covers below guiding
documents is also distributed to our key suppliers:

o "Suppliers Code of Conduct”;
o "Workplace Standards”;

e “Product Safety and Regulated Substances Specification”;
and

o "Accepting and Offering Policy”.
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(i) A supplier database has been established, and through on-
line transactions, we provide suppliers with fair, transparent and
competitive opportunities. With “open business, controlled
processes, fully documented and permanently traceable” as our
watchwords, we thus ensure the quality of procured products and
services compliant with our standards.

Enhancing Competitiveness by Technological Innovation

Giordano will carefully examine every detail of the production process
and raise any issues that may be discovered, with the aim of working
with its suppliers to identify possible areas for further improvement.
By optimizing the process, upgrading the technology and improving
the workmanship, our suppliers not only greatly improve their
production efficiency and product quality, but also help upgrade their
capabilities in response to more challenging markets and enhance their
competitiveness. This close-knit working relationship between both
sides allows the parties to maintain a more stable and mutually benefit
cooperation.

Inventory Control

(i) Inventory control is a key indicator of merchandising efficiency
and remains a core competence of Giordano. "ZERO STORAGE"
is another core value of Giordano's inventory control. We will
continue to cautiously adjust our inventory portfolio and, once the
resultant overstock depletes, our margins and profitability further
recover. As a result of effective inventory control, our inventory
remained healthy, with inventory turnover days on cost for the year
ended December 31, 2019 was 100 days.

(i) In addition to our own consolidated inventory, Giordano
responsibly monitors inventory held at our suppliers and the
franchisees in Mainland China to ensure that we do not build
up off-balance sheet inventory that would jeopardize our
merchandising flexibility and wholesale business in future.

On-line Delivery Based Open-to-Buy Application (“DBOTB")
Giordano started implementing an on-line DBOTB from 2016, which:

(i) systematically controls and adjusts purchase orders and delivery
schedules;

(i) improves communication among our buyers, subsidiaries and the
Headquarters on-line;

(i) simplifies the planning and buying process;
(iv) allows prompt response to dynamic market conditions; and

(v) enhances the Headquarters’ visibility when performing stock
allocation and hence maximizing sales opportunities.

GIORDANO
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CARING FOR OUR CUSTOMERS

iIEEE B6 : RISMER KT

Social Aspect B6 : Service and Product Liability

END IS N ARPIREREETHOEYE At Giordano, we continuously strive to provide our customers with the most
B o B [ABEHFERMERBREEARR] & enlightening shopping experience. Giordano's straight-forward mission,
B - EEETSRT T B =8RG "To Make People FEEL GOOD and LOOK GREAT’, fully illustrates our total

= B o commitment to superior service and outstanding quality.
() MEFHRBE R AR TS I#GE (1) "Giordano Means Service” Campaign

1 FHR S R 2 AR TS B0 AGE IR X 1989
BRHELE MERRBRRS] A B
BB THERBNE [EARRAERS] &
EEHE - (HER  REEEREHKS
ERROREZ—

RTHERSUE TREEENETFPRE - &
PIBFBAR I BE R RAT A S IR BRI A
RABRIATAR 8 THIRRIEKF - RIFIBO BT
FREEEIRY  REGBEHKE  ZFKE
BEHEERKERNEE  BRFETEE
BipgaEn (2019 FREELREE] -

Giordano's commitment to superior service stems from the “Giordano
Means Service” campaign which was first launched in 1989, at which
time every staff wore yellow badge bearing the words “Giordano
Means Service”. Since then, quality service has become one of the
tenets of Giordano.

To ensure every shop staff offers excellent customer service, we
conduct performance evaluations frequently at the store level, as
well as for frontline staff by mystery shoppers. Our efforts to provide
excellent customer service have been recognized by a long list of
service-related awards we have received over the years, including the
"2019 Service & Courtesy Award” presented by the Hong Kong Retail
Management Association (“HKRMA”").

HKRMA Annual Awards

FERRE

zegI08 ’ ®* @ *
BEETETEREREN
) [2019 GG ARG 42 |
201 2019 Service & Courtesy Award”

[BHEEHNE | EZFRENRFAN—
EfERE - ER0F (Bl EEHE

Awarg

2] presented by HKRMA

"Exceeding customers’ expectations” is a simple objective that
Giordano has upheld for many years, which we achieve throug
"thinking one step ahead for customers’ needs" and "providing t :
made services". Our frontline staff provide professional advice ‘
flexible and rapid response to customers, helping them choo:
right products in need. Meanwhile, to satisfy our customer.

allow them to return and exchange products after purchase
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#2019 BRIHBE R P A (KK RACEAERY ) $REE -
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2019 Outstanding QTS Merchant & Service Staff
Awards

Hosted by Hong Kong Tourism Board, to award the retailers for their
outstanding services and Giordano won a silver award. Also, Giordano has
continuously recognized as a Quality Merchant by the Hong Kong Tourism
Board for 15 years.

BRRER 25 B ERpEE
20191B 5 & 8 TR¥E

= < T ANNIVERSARY
v BREE_ LN

20198 H SRS R AT
2018 Outstanding QTS Merch
Awards Presentation Cer
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Awards and Recognition
e Giordano Website won Top 10 eCommerce Website Award

The Retail Asia Expo has awarded Giordano's eCommerce website as one
of the “Top 10 eCommerce websites” for 2018. This “Top 10 eCommerce
Website Award”, which recognized and awarded websites that have raised
the bar for user experience and achieved outstanding operation growth,
has acknowledged Giordano’s eCommerce website for fostering and
delivering continuous and exemplary e-commerce standards as well as
enhancing user experience with an outstanding shopping platform.

Giordano’s Legal Team at Hong Kong Headquarters named in the GC
Powerlist

Meanwhile, we are also delighted to announce that Giordano'’s Legal Team
at Hong Kong Headquarters has been named in the “Team Powerlist”
category of the GC Powerlist Hong Kong, published by The Legal 500 -
which carried out the research to corroborate and validate our inclusion, in
recognition of our in-house legal team:

1. being instrumental in changing or forming opinions within the
company or industry;

2. developing technical solutions to complex issues;

3. creating innovative structures to ensure that the in-house function is
driving the business forward; and

4. providing a business working model that other corporate counsel
should follow.

Giordano is a global fashion brand and clothing retailer with locations across 30
countries and 2,400 stores across Asia, Australasia and the Middle East. It operates
the brands Giordano, Giordano Ladies, Giordano Junior, BSX and Beau Monde
and is moving to expand into Europe and the Americas. Leading the legal team at
the company is Mark Loynd, who in his role of general counsel, company secretary
and director of human resources, has been responsible for the company’s legal,
compliance and regulatory affairs globally since 2013. The legal team under Loynd's
direction has facilitated the company’s recent rapid expansion and development
which resulted in some of its highest growth since thanks to work managed and
completed by the legal team in the last five years. The team manages all of the
legal affairs of the company including its regulatory affairs relating to import and
export tariffs, supply chain regulations, privacy and IP, as well as employment
matters. A truly multijurisdictional team, the Giordano legal department has
recently overseen the opening of another flagship store in Hong Kong, as well as
the company’s completion of a business acquisition in Vietnam and the opening of

the first location in Mongolia.
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e Giordano Junior was awarded with “2018 Parents’ Favorite Family Brand”

Giordano Junior was awarded with “2018 Parents’ Favorite Family Brand”
under the “Children Clothing” category in 2018. This Award was presented
by Baby Kingdom, a popular online parent-child platform at Hong Kong.
Further to the assessment by the members of Baby Kingdom and a panel
of professional judges, Giordano Junior stood out from the other 3 finalists,
being in recognition of its creative designs and high-quality products.

@

Safety and Health

0]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

In addition to the professional customer service, a pleasant
shopping experience also requires a comfortable and safe
shopping environment. We are committed to (a) ensuring a
safe and healthy environment for our staff and customers, and
(b) eliminating preventable accidents and health hazards in our
business locations.

As mentioned in earlier Social Aspect B5(2)(ii), we have a Quality
Manual setting forth our standards and specification regarding
product quality and safety for our suppliers’ compliance.

We demand our suppliers to comply with all applicable laws and
regulations on product safety, and regularly update them of the
hazardous substance and inhumane production processes banned
by Giordano, such as the “sandblasting” process and the “live-
plucking” goose down process.

We also engage independent and accredited third party
laboratories to test our materials and products, to ensure
compliance with the international safety standards.

"We care because you care”

Much effort has been spent on product safety, which is one of
our core values. For instance, we make sure that all drawstrings in
our Giordano Junior clothing are fixed to the waistband to avoid
pulling out by children accidentally. We also will not use metal
zippers, which are however commonly used by our counterparts.

Protecting intellectual property rights
(i

"IP Manager Training Program”

Nowadays, intellectual property (“IP") is recognized as a key
element in business development and, here at Giordano,
protecting IP rights is one of our top priorities. To enhance
awareness of IP protection within Giordano and to proactively
protect our IP from infringement, two of our subsidiaries
participated in the IP Manager Scheme organized by Intellectual
Property Department of Hong Kong in 2017. After completion of
its "IP Manager Training Program" by our staff, we were awarded a
Certificate of Commendation.
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(i) Intellectual Property Rights & Design/POP Vetting Workshop

Meanwhile, two rounds of the Intellectual Property Rights &
Design/POP Vetting Workshop were held in our Dongguan
Design Centre and Hong Kong Headquarters office separately in
December 2018 and January 2019 - striving every effort to train up
our staff with knowledge of protecting the IP rights and avoiding
infringements.
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Consumer Data Protection and Privacy Policies

Customer privacy has become a hot topic that we cannot overlook.
In compliance with the local laws and the European Union’s General
Data Protection Regulations (effective from May 25, 2018, “GDPR"), we
have updated our Group-wide “Privacy Policy and Personal Information
Collection Statement” and “Privacy Notice” (both in English and
Chinese, as uploaded onto our official websites and/or e-shops, where
appropriate) for the public and customers’ reference. We invited an
independent third party global law firm to audit our practices and
confirmed our compliance with the GDPR. Furthermore, staff are kept
reminded to fully observe the policy from time to time.

We adopt a zero-tolerance approach towards bribery and corruption,
and our Staff Handbook and Code of Conduct (as uploaded onto
the Company’s Intranet) clearly inform our staff of Giordano's strict
standards regarding anti-corruption, anti-bribery, conflicts of interest,
gift, procurement and whistle-blowing policies, as well as our policies on
dealings and investment in Giordano's shares.

To ensure that our staff comply with the requirements imposed and
uphold high ethical standards, all staff are required to complete and
submit a “"Declaration of Interests” at least once a year. If there are any
cases of conflict of interest, the relevant staff are required to update
their declaration immediately.

We also proactively promote business integrity and ethics among our
staff by organizing seminars on anti-corruption regularly. This kind of
seminars is compulsory as to be attended at least once by each Hong
Kong Headquarters staff.

Furthermore, our contracts with suppliers require their full compliance
with our Quality Manual, including "Advantage Solicitation and
Acceptance” as quoted in earlier Social Aspect B5(2)(ii). In addition,
we regularly issue reminders to all relevant staff, business associates
and suppliers reminding them of our Group Policy on Accepting and
Offering Advantages (i.e. twice a year, before Mid-Autumn Festival and
Chinese Lunar New Year). We are not aware of any incidents of non-
compliance in relation to anti-corruption in 2019.
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CARING FOR OUR COMMUNITY
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Social Aspect B8 : Community Involvement
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Contributing to our communities is a very important part of Giordano'’s
ethos. Acting on our belief in a "World Without Strangers’, Giordano actively
supports various charitable organizations and causes, especially those
associated with education, children and the underprivileged.

Giordano has engaged in a number of ongoing educational projects:

(1) In 2014, we launched the "Do Not Read This” campaign in conjunction
with Room to Read, which raised funds for the non-profit organization
through selling limited edition T-shirts in Giordano’s shops. With
Giordano's donations, Room to Read published 15,000 copies of two
children’s books in two Indian languages for underprivileged children.

(2)  This focus on education for underprivileged children is also evident
in another Giordano’s ongoing project, Project Hope, a public service
project organized by the China Youth Development Foundation.
Giordano has been a long-standing supporter of the project’s work in
providing children in poverty-stricken rural areas of Mainland China
with access to primary school education by funding the construction of
a number of Giordano Hope primary schools. As at the end of 2019, 22
Giordano primary schools of Hope have been completed.

(3) We also donated to the Caring for Children Foundation in support of
children’s welfare in Mainland China.
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Hong Kong Daily News One of the children books, in Hindi, published by Room to Read with

Giordano's donation.
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(4) TE2019F » FMEEER 7 LIEML RE (4) In 2019, we have several community activities in Taiwan, including
B REERBRENSEEREY - second-hand clothing donations and beach cleaning activities.

—FREE
Second-Hand Clothing Recruitment

by L)
Beach Cleaning Activity

2019 B EXKIBEIEE
2019 Central District Old Clothes Donation Project
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Aspects, General
Disclosures & KPls

— AR ER

General Disclosure

B AA I IRALLT
KPI A1.1
FASHERIRIRAT.2
KPIAT.2

RASAMIEIRAL3
KPIA1.3

R AA IR
A1.4 KPI A1.4

R A IEIR
A1.5 KPI A1.5

FASRAAUIEIR
A1.6 KPIAT.6

—ARIEE

General Disclosure

R AA I IRA2.T
KPI A2.1
RAHE IR IRA2.2
KPI A2.2
RS A MIEIRA2.3
KPI A2.3
FSHERIRIRA2 4
KPI A2.4

RS AE IEIRA2.5
KPI A2.5

it

Description

REEAT : BEBW Environmental Aspect A1: Emissions
BRAERIOREREHN - MKRIHMEEES  AERBEEERMNELSH

(@ BE: R

(b) ETHEITABERZENHEMERMRPINER

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and

generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

BER IR AR R AR BB BUR

Types of emissions and respective emissions data.
RERBAEENE R (NER)EE

Greenhouse gas emission in total and, where appropriate, intensity.
EEREEEMEER(NER)BE

Total hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, intensity.
MELBEERMRENTE

Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity.

R EHE B E B b S PTIS B R

Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved.
MM ERIEAE R EERERENN L  REELZENEELAERR
Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, reduction
initiatives and results achieved.

BEMEA2 : EJREEMA Environmental Aspect A2: Use of Resources

BRERER(BIEER - KEEMERME)BBER

Policies on efficient use of resources including energy, water and other raw
materials.

BRENBSNERLR SR ERAREREE

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and intensity.
BFRKERZE

Water consumption in total and intensity.

MRS IR A R s w8l R PSR

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

FE SR EGE KR _E Rl B M RRE - bA R AR T 8 RS AR
Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water, water efficiency
initiatives and results achieved.

YR MATAREMBNBER (WER)SEEBMEE

Total packaging material used for finished products, and if applicable, with
reference to per unit produced.
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Aspects, General
Disclosures & KPls

— AR IR

General Disclosure

R AA I IRAS.T
KPI A3.1

—RRIEE

General Disclosure

RS A RIEIRB1.
KPI B1.1

BASEAE N IE1RB1.2
KPI B1.2

—RIEE

General Disclosure

RS AR IE1RB2.1
KPI B2.1
RS A NIEIRB2.2
KPI B2.2

RS AR B2.3
KPI B2.3

—fRHEE

General Disclosure

AR 48 I 1ZB3.1
KPI B3.1
R4 E IR 1ZB3.2
KPI B3.2

i
Description

BEETAARERARAARERERERNZENBEK

Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact on the environment and natural
resources.

R EBEHHRFELRAERNEAZERERRERAHATLENTH

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural
resources and actions taken to manage them.

L 2/BMB1 : {18 Social Aspect B1: Employment

CRFHLRE BEREM  TERE  BE - TEEE 2t REEAREM

FrBRARFH) -

(@) XK

(b) BETHETABERVENHEBEEZLENNER

Information on:

(a) the policies, and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours,

rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits

and welfare.

RIER - EREAR - Fieln MRS 5 HESBHE

Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical region.

BRI~ FiRER Kbz o rE B IR X

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region.
HEEMB2 : BEEZ 2 Social Aspect B2: Health and Safety

FHRHLZ2TERERREREREBEBE AR

(@) BE: R

(b) BETFTHBETABERZENEMEZLRRGNER

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from

occupational hazards.

ETIEREREME TR AR S L &

Number and rate of work-related fatalities.

FTEERTIER S

Lost days due to work injury.

AL PTER AR B R R B R 21 5 - A SABRA T R E R A

Description of occupation health and safety measures adopted, how they are
implemented and monitored.

#HEEMEB3 | R KL Social Aspect B3: Development and Training
BRRTHEERTT TERE M FHE R REEMBUR - Hl 5 E

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at
work. Description of training activities.

RUERREERANESNZIEEBD L

The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category.
RIERIREEBRENE D - BREBTKIIN TR

The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee
category.

C2019F]RI%
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2019 ESG Report

RIBEMEAS : BIER KAEIR Environmental Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
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A3
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Graph 2 & 3
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Aspects, General
Disclosures & KPls

— AR ER

General Disclosure

RS A IR IRBA
KPI B4.1

RABHARIEIRBA.2
KPI B4.2

— R R

General Disclosure
R SR 4B 5 1ZB5. 1
KPI B5.1

BASEAE 512 B5.2
KPI B5.2

—ARIEE

General Disclosure

RS AR5 1RBG.
KPI B6.1

RS AN IE15B6.2
KPI B6.2

B4R IR 1RB6.3
KPI'B6.3

RS A NIEIRBO.4
KPI B6.4

RS A NIE1RB6.5
KPI B6.5

i

Description

#E2EMEB4 : % %8| Social Aspect B4: Labour Standards

BRIPT IEE Tkl T

(@ BE: R

(b) EFHBETABERYENBREERROINER

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

R AT RIS DI e AR R E T eG4 T

Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and forced

labour.

HMTE R IE AR ERR E T R a& H 45 TIER P e 22 58

Description of steps taken to eliminate child and forced labour practices when

discovered.

#HEEBMEBS  HEHEEI Social Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
ERHEENRE N S RRBR

Policies on managing environment and social risks of the supply chain.

i E s MBS E
Number of suppliers by geographical region.

i AR AHERNIED - MENTEREMNNHERRE  AREBEMNNNITE
BRI

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers where
the practices are being implemented, how they are implemented and monitored.

#HEEEB6 : EMEE Social Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

FEAMRHERTRBOREELZS BE  RERLEFEUARMRIEN -

(@ BRI R

(b) ETHETABERTENHEBERMRPIOER

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to

products and services provided and methods of redress.

EERDEXERBHETEAL BRFEEHMARKNE D

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and health
reasons.

BERNERMRBVIRFEE AR EE X

Number of products and service related complaints received and how they are dealt
with.

it BR A N RIS AN E B AR IE D)

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual property
rights.

i BT IBAR N A an [0 AR 7

Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.

OB B E A RHMRIE RALBBOR - DA RABB T R EER A

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they are
implemented and monitored.
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Disclosures & KPls

#EEMEB7 : RE’T Social Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

—RRHEER BEAMIIEBRE - 1R - BGEFRARER - B7
General Disclosure (a) B &

(b) HETFHBETAEERATZENEBEZRBMNNER

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

RS AE MIE1EBT 1 RERPAHETAREEERDT O EENESHFARMA A MFFARER
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the
issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.
BB IE1EBT .2 H P E A R R RAR T - A RARRARIT RE R A B1(3), BY
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, how they are

implemented and monitored.

B EMEBS : L ERE Social Aspect B8: Community Investment

— AR IR B RSERTREEMELRFTENEREEZLZHSERLRIEOBIR B8
General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the community

where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
community’s interests.

SR AE 5 1EB8. 1 HIrEBEE B8
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution.

RAfRiE IE1ZB8.2 EEIHEMBAER

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus areas.
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Giordano International Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

5th Floor, Tin On Industrial Building
777-779 Cheung Sha Wan Road
Kowloon, Hong Kong
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